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CORPORATE INFORMATION
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GROUP RESULTS

Revenue of the Group for the current year of 2015/16 was
HK$938,434,000 (2014/15: HK$1,133,864,000) and the overall profit
was HK$4,357,000 (2014/15: a loss of HK$23,608,000).

BUSINESS REVIEW AND PROSPECTS

Profit from operations for the year under review was HK$23,305,000 as
compared to HK$7,666,000 in the previous year. Besides the reduction
of our cost of sales, operation expenses as well as selling and distribution
expenses that attributed to the positive results, the favourable valuation of
our properties also helped to increase our profits of the year. However the
continuous loss of our investments in the joint ventures in Wuxi of which
the group holds 49% had diminished the group’s profit. The loss of our
Wuxi investments for 2015/16 amounted to HK$28,391,000 (2014/15:
HK$20,356,000).

Through the management’s consistent efforts and dedications over the
years in optimizing our operation, minimizing the manufacturing costs and
restructuring the setup, our factories in China (Panyu and Guigang) had
been able to, after several years of unsatisfactory performance, recorded
positive results in the year under review.

The profit recorded by our factory in Bangladesh in this financial year was
lower than expected. This was due to the increase of our manufacturing
and operating costs, and the decrease of our garment prices.

Our factory in Myanmar, opened in August 2014, was in its second year
of operation in the year under review. Although it still incurred a loss, its
results had improved mainly due to the higher efficiency of the sewing
workers and higher garment prices.

As mentioned above, our investments in Wuxi had incurred a higher than
expected loss in the year under review. The reasons for the poor results
were due to inferior quality of cotton supplied from its primary source in
Xinjiang, lower productivity due to outdated machinery, over supply of
viscose related products and strong competition.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
EREHRE

OUTLOOK

The weak Euro and GBP had adversely affected our profit margin in the
current year. This would be even more intense in the coming year with
Britain opted out of the European Union. Disruption to our garment sales
as well as narrowing down our profit margins would be inevitable. Despite
the positive results of our factories in China, the sign of improvement of
our Myanmar factory as well as Bangladesh factory’s steady business,
the management expects the results of our core garment operation in
the coming years to be difficult and uncertain. Wuxi’s investment would
continue to be a big concern to the management. Stringent measures
had already been taken by the Wuxi’s management with the aim of
improving its profitability. The coming financial year would be a hard and
challenging one in view of all the unfavorable factors facing both our core
business and Wuxi’s investment.

APPRECIATION

| would like, on behalf of the Board and shareholders, to express our
appreciation to the Company’s employees for their hard work and loyal
service to the Company during the past year.

By Order of the Board

Chan Wing Fui, Peter
Chairman

Hong Kong, 29 June 2016
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEENWED N

KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS

Performance Indicators

Revenue

Gross profit

Gross profit margin

Profit from operations

Operating margin

Profit/(loss) attributable to equity
shareholders of the Company

Net profit margin

Earnings before interest,
taxation, depreciation and
amortization (EBITDA)

EBITDA margin

Return on total assets

Financial Health Indicators
Cash and bank balances

Net current assets

Total assets

Total liabilities

Shareholders’ equity

Return on shareholders’ equity
Current ratio (times)

Shareholders’ Return Indicators
Earnings/(loss) per share — basic
Dividend per share

Dividend payout

Cash Flow and Capital Expenditure
Cash generated from operations
Capital expenditure — other assets
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7,666
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7,376
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272,465
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184,211
1,252,661
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(30.11)
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11,166
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Change
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+3 pp
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+1 pp
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEENWED

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

The Group’s revenue for the year ended 31 March 2016
was HK$938,434,000 a decrease of 17% as compared with
HK$1,133,864,000 of the year before. Despite the drop of revenue, a
profit of HK$4,357,000 was recorded for the year under review while in
2014/15 there was a loss of HK$23,608,000.

GARMENT BUSINESS

Yangtzekiang Garment Limited and Hong Kong Knitters Limited
are the two names that we use to operate our garment business.
We manufacture a wide variety of products that include men’s and
ladies’ shirts, trousers, shorts, polo shirts, T-shirts, jackets and knitted
outerwear, etc. Hong Kong is our Group’s headquarters that handles all
garment businesses including manufacturing, trading and sourcing. We
have factories in China (Guigang and Panyu), Bangladesh and Myanmar.
Besides Hong Kong and places where we have factories, we also have
offices in China (Dongguan and Hangzhou). These offices not only
provide support to our own factories, but also monitor and liaise with our
subcontractors and business partners in the areas.

It had been another challenging year for our core garment business.
On the selling side, the weak Euro and GBP had a big impact on our
profit margin and affected our competitiveness in the market. On the
manufacturing side, the usual unfavorable factors like: shortage of labour,
uneven spread of orders, ever increasing manufacturing costs and lower
garment prices demanded by customers continued to challenge our
factories’” management. Despite all the adverse factors, we were able to
record a profit of HK$4,357,000 (2014/15: a loss of HK$23,608,000).
There were two main reasons that attributed to the positive results. Firstly
was the hard work and perseverance of our management and staff in
cutting down our manufacturing and operating costs. Secondly was the
substantial valuation gain of our investment properties. However the hefty
losses of our Wuxi investment had shrunk the overall profits. The general
sluggish market conditions, plus the weak and unstable European
currencies largely due to Britain leaving the European Union made the
coming year even more difficult and unpredictable for our garment
business. Our management and sales teams would monitor closely, stay
alert and ahead of the situations.

Our China factories operating under the names of Exquisite Knitters
(Guangzhou) Limited and Whampoa Garment Manufacturing (Guigang)
Co., Ltd., after years of restructuring, maximizing resources and
minimizing expenses finally paid off, recorded positive results in the
year under review. For year 2016/17, to combat the fierce competition
both domestically and from our neighboring countries, the management
would focus on the increase of efficiency, introduction of semi-automatic
machines, expansion of its domestic operation and development of new
products. By doing so, it is hoped that our China factories would be able
to continue contributing positively towards the group’s profits.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Lavender Garment Limited, our factory in Bangladesh, recorded a
positive result for the year under review. Comparing to the last financial
year, its profit, however, had dropped quite considerably. Lower garment
prices and extra costs to maintain the factory attributed to the lower
profit. The management expected the situations to be similar for the
coming year. The workers’ safety authority — Accord and Alliance of
Bangladesh has imposed very strict safety control on all factories there
including the building, electrical and fire protection. On one hand this
added extra costs to the factories but on the other it helps to improve
Bangladesh factories’ image. Overseas customers are now more willing
to place orders there which is a positive signal and beneficial to our
operation there.

Our factory in Myanmar — Dagon Talent Garment Limited, was in its
second year of operation since its establishment in August 2014. Its
financial results, though still at a loss, had improved considerably. The
better than expected result was the outcome of higher efficiency of
the sewing workers and the increase of garment manufacturing prices.
The political environment had been stable since the new Myanmar
government took office in April this year. This attracted more and more
overseas customers to place their orders there. This was an encouraging
sign. Our management there would insert its best efforts to improve the
factory’s productivity and competitiveness, and it is hopeful that it could
have a breakeven result for the coming year.

OTHER BUSINESS

Wuxi No. 1 Cotton Investment Co., Ltd. in which we have a 49%
shareholding is a joint venture that owns several textiles related
companies in Wuxi, China (“Wuxi Group”). The core business of the
Wuxi Group is the production of medium range to high end yarns.
The Wuxi Group recorded a loss of HK$28,391,000 in the year under
review (2014/15: HK$20,356,000). There were several reasons for the
higher than projected losses. Firstly was the severe inferior quality of
cotton supplied by its primary source in Xinjiang that affected its yarn
production. Secondly, the low efficiency of some of the machinery in part
of the weaving department had affected the productivity and hence the
competitiveness of the products. Thirdly was the over supply of viscose
related products that affected its profit margin, and fourthly was the
strong competition from Xinjiang suppliers that had grown in number
over the years as a result of national policy. The next financial year would
remain challenging for the Wuxi operation. It is hoped that through
improving productivity, closing down uncompetitive weaving divisions,
adjusting product mix and increase clientele in Europe and Pakistan, the
coming year’s financial result would be less volatile.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEENWED

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL POSITION

During the year under review, the Group’s operations continued to be
mainly financed by the internal resources.

As at 31 March 2016, the cash and bank balances of the Group
were approximately HK$311,644,000 (2015: HK$272,465,000). As
at 31 March 2016 and 2015, the Group did not have any short term
borrowings and long term borrowings.

The Group adopts a prudent policy to hedge the fluctuation of foreign
exchange rates. As most of the Group’s sales, purchases, cash and bank
balances are denominated in Hong Kong dollars, United States dollars,
Euros, Pound Sterling or Renminbi, the Group may enter into forward
foreign exchange contracts to hedge its receivables and payables
denominated in the above foreign currencies against the exchange
rate fluctuation when the exposure is significant. As at 31 March 2016,
the Group has forward foreign exchange contracts hedging forecast
transactions with a net fair value of HK$671,000, recognised as derivative
financial liabilites (2015: HK$531,000, recognised as derivative financial
assets). The details of cash and cash equivalents balance denominated in
foreign currencies are set out in note 26(c)(ii) to the financial statements.

LAW AND REGULATIONS

Law and regulations in relation to workplace quality, product safety and
environmental performance may have a material effect on our Group’s
principal activities.

Workplace Quality

The Group believes that continued business success relies on the
full contribution and support of our employees. We are dedicated
to promoting equal opportunities for all of our employees in different
areas, including recruitment, compensation and benefits, training, staff
promotion, transfer, and dismissal. All employees are assessed based on
their ability, performance and contribution, irrespective of their nationality,
race, religion, gender, age or family status.

The Group is committed to the health, safety and welfare of our
employees. We pledge full compliance in all occupational health and
safety legislations and we have implemented an effective and safe
working environment for our employees.

We complied with labour or other relevant legislations. We did not identify
any material non-compliance or breach of legislation related to workplace
quality.

Product Safety

The Group places the highest importance on the welfare of its customers
globally, as well as on its broader societal and environmental impact. The
quality and safety of our products is a vital part of this.

All products are safe and fully adhere to international environmental and
safety standards. We did not identify any material non-compliance or
breach of legislation related to product safety.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Environmental Performance

The Group is committed to protecting and sustaining the environment
through reduced consumption of electrical power.

We are committed to upholding high environmental standards to fulffill
relevant requirements under applicable laws or ordinances during the
manufacturing and material disposal processes.

We did not identify any material non-compliance or breach of relevant
standards, rules and regulations on air and greenhouse gas emission,
discharges into water and land, generation of hazardous or non-
hazardous water, etc.

SOCIAL PERFORMANCE

The Group has long been committed to being a responsible corporate
citizen and actively supports various charitable organisations and causes.
We encourage Staff to join our "YGM Volunteer Team" and participate
in various charitable activities to help people in need, demonstrating its
corporate social responsibility and promoting the caring culture in the
society.

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

Risks and uncertainties can affect the Group's businesses, financial
conditions, operational results or growth prospects leading to a
divergence from expected or historical results. Key risk factors and
uncertainties affecting the Group are outlined below. In dealing with
these risk factors and uncertainties, the Group remains in touch with
our stakeholders with the aim of understanding and addressing their
concerns.

These factors are not exhaustive or comprehensive, and there may be
other risks in addition to those shown below which are not known to the
Group or which may not be material now but could become material in
the future.

Global Economy and Macro-economic Conditions

The global economic recovery has been weaker than expected with
uneven recovery in advanced economies. Downside risks have increased
due to economic pressures and geopolitical tensions such as showing
growth in emerging markets and the instability in Middle East and Eastern
Europe.

The principal business activities of the Group is the manufacture and sale
of garments and textiles to the customers in Europe, North America and
Mainland China. The industries in which the Group operates are affected
by the economic conditions, consumer spending, contagious disease
outbreaks and currency environment in these regions. Any combination
of these factors or continuing adverse economic conditions in these
regions may adversely affect the Group's financial position, potential
income, asset value and liabilities.

The Group has taken a proactive approach to monitoring changes
in global economy and macro-economic conditions. Adequate risk
mitigation measures are in place and are constantly reviewed for
enhancement.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEENWED

Currency Markets

The Group operates on a global basis and earns revenues, incurs costs
and make investments in a number of currencies. The Group's financial
results are reported in Hong Kong dollars. The majority of reported
revenues are earned in non-Hong Kong currencies. Therefore the Hong
Kong dollar value of reported revenues, profits and cash flows may be
reduced as a result of unfavourable currency exchange rate movements.

The Group adopts a prudent policy to hedge the fluctuation of foreign
exchange rates. The details of the policy are set out in the paragraph of
“Liquidity and Financial Position”.

Impact of Local, National and International Regulations

Local business risks specific to individual countries and cities where the
Group operates could have a material impact on its financing conditions,
operating results and growth prospects.

The Group is, and may increasingly become, exposed to different and
changing political, social, legal, tax, regulatory and listing requirements
at the local, national and international level. New policies or measures
by governments, whether fiscal, tax or regulatory, may pose a risk to the
returns delivered by the Group's business and may delay or prevent the
commercial operational of an individual business, with a resulting loss in
revenue and profit.

The Group has taken a proactive approach to monitoring changes in
government policies and legislation. Adequate risk mitigation measures
are in place and are constantly reviewed for enhancement.

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

As at 31 March 2016, none of the assets of the Group was pledged.

EMPLOYMENT AND REMUNERATION POLICIES

As at 31 March 2016, the Group, including its subsidiaries but excluding
its associates and joint ventures, employed approximately 3,900
employees. Remuneration packages are determined by reference to
employees’ performance and the prevailing salary levels in the market.
In addition, the Group provides year end double pay, provident fund
scheme, medical insurance and training to staff.

RELATIONSHIP WITH SUPPLIERS AND
SUBCONTRACTORS

Fair and Open Competition

The Group promotes fair and open competition that aims to develop
long-term relationships with suppliers and subcontractors based on
mutual trust.

Public Interest and Accountability

The procurement from suppliers or services providers is conducted in a
manner consistent with the highest ethical standards. This helps assure
high quality products at all times to gain the confidence of customers,
suppliers and the public.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Procurement Procedures

The subcontracting and the purchase of goods are based solely on need,
quality and price. This ensures compliance with procurement policies and
fosters positive and open competition.

RELATIONSHIP WITH CUSTOMERS

Customer Services

The Group seeks to provide efficient and courteous customer service
to maintain customer satisfaction and co-operation. Customers have
access to information about the operation and development of the Group
through annual reports. The Group shall not make any misrepresentation,
exaggeration or overstatement.

Pricing Policies

The Group believes in the economic system of the free market, in which
price is determined by supply and demand. The Group also seeks to
provide customers with the highest quality products at fair prices which
allow the Group a reasonable profit in relation to the value provided.

IMPORTANT EVENT AFTER THE END OF THE
REPORTING PERIOD

There is no important event affecting the Group which has occurred since
the end of the reporting period.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EXEHES

The directors submit herewith their annual report together with the
audited financial statements of Yangtzekiang Garment Limited (the
“Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) for the year ended 31
March 2016.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activities of the Group are the manufacture and sale of
garments and textiles, provision of processing services and rental of
properties. Further discussion and analysis of these activities as required
by schedule 5 to the Companies Ordinance, including an indication of
likely future developments in the Group’s business and a discussion of
the principal risks and uncertainties facing the group, can be found in the
Chairman’s Statement and Management Discussion and Analysis set out
on pages 3 to 4 and pages 5 to 11 of the Annual Report respectively.
This discussion forms part of this directors’ report.

The analysis of the principal activities and geographical locations of the
operations of the Group during the financial year are set out in note 11 to
the financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in the Company’s share capital during the year
are set out in note 25(c) to the financial statements.

DIVIDENDS

The directors now recommend the payment of a final dividend of HK10
cents (2015: HK8 cents) per ordinary share in respect of the year ended
31 March 2016.

CHARITABLE DONATIONS

Charitable donations made by the Group during the year amounted to
HK$32,000 (2015: HK$30,000).

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The information in respect of the Group’s sales and purchases
attributable to the major customers and suppliers respectively during the
financial year is as follows:

HERERHERERITIURKAERAA (AL
A RHMBAR ([AELH]) - #HE_F—A
FZHA=1T—HILFEEZFRIBELZIRE -

dh o~ R TR A S o R A
RGBT REFTHLE - A B % % 3605 2 — 0 Bl
Beop A (BL45 A 4 B SE 5 R A T RE 3% J 2 46 51 -
B A7 Bl A 45 T i T e R B K AN i E PRI R
A ) A AR AS AR B H B R4 H E
S H R A H R B il B A A B o Lt
wl o A g ot 2 — R e

A SR T TP A B BUAR BE 2 T SRR M SR AR
L85 53 A7 O S 5 A B A

HREEHAERRERE T -ANE=A=1+—
H 1k 4R B 2 R 8 ik B 4 B @ 1 ovs il (— %
— T4 3L -

A A AR 2 2 RO 32,0008 0T (- E— T
4 1 30,000 78) ©

EL ¥ AN %Y %]

A BUAE BE N E R F R AL A 2
BB MR EHE T

Percentage of the Group’s total

A5 7 4 [ A8 7
2016 2015
RN SE—AAF
Sales Purchases Sales Purchases
o8& R ik & R I
The largest customer mREF 12% 12%
Five largest customers in | H A K&EF &5
aggregate 43% 43%
The largest supplier e K BE I R 7% 8%
Five largest suppliers in R A R
aggregate 23% 24%

At no time during the year have the directors, their associates or any
shareholder of the Company (which to the knowledge of the directors
owns more than 5% of the Company’s share capital) had any interest in
these major customers and suppliers.
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DIRECTORS

The directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of this
report are:

Executive Directors
Chan Sui Kau

Chan Wing Fui, Peter
Chan Wing Kee

Chan Wing To

Chan Suk Man

Chan Wing Sun, Samuel
Chan Suk Ling, Shirley
So Ying Woon, Alan

Independent Non-executive Directors
Leung Hok Lim

Lin Keping

Sze Cho Cheung, Michael

Choi Ting Ki

A full list of the names of the directors of the Group’s subsidiaries can be
found in the website of Yangtzekiang Garment Limited, the intermediate
holding company at www.ygm.com.hk under “Investor Relation/
Corporate Governance”.

Pursuant to Article 105 of the Company’s Articles of Association, Mr.
Chan Wing Fui, Peter, Mr. Chan Wing Kee, Mr. Chan Wing To and Mr.
Choi Ting Ki, will retire from the Board by rotation and, being eligible, will
offer themselves for re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting
of the Company.

The Company confirms that it has received from each of the independent
non-executive directors an annual confirmation of their respective
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“the
Stock Exchange”) (“the Listing Rules”) and the Company considers the
independent non-executive directors to be independent.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the directors who offered themselves for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company has entered into
any service contract with the Company or any other member of the
Group which is not determinable by the relevant employer within one
year without payment of compensation, other than normal statutory
obligations.

INDEMNITY OF DIRECTORS

A permitted indemnity provision (as defined in section 469 of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance) for the benefit of the directors of the
Company is currently in force and was in force throughout this year.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS

Apart from the connected transactions under Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules as set out amongst other related party transactions in note 28
to the financial statements, no transaction, arrangement or contract of
significance to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party,
and in which a director of the Company had a material interest, subsisted
at the end of the year or at any time during the year.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EXEHES

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES

(@ As at 31 March 2016, the interests and short positions of the

directors and their associates in the shares, underlying shares and
debentures of the Company or any associated corporations (within
the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance
(the “SFO”)) which were required to be notified to the Company and
the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the
SFO (including interests and short positions which they are taken or
deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO), the Model Code
for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (“the Model
Code”) and which were required to be entered in the register kept
by the Company under section 352 of the SFO were as follows:

W B B A

R FE-ANFE=ZH=1+—H > A A &#
5 R 2 B BN R AR R BT T
N (FE 2 KO B B (T8 20 19 1) 56
XVl 2 W 5€) 2 Mty ~ A8 B e 1y 12 {5 o
B A AR 25 R SEXVIR SR 7 X80~ b
2% 7 35 S AT R8O 58 o AR R ST J) ([ AR e
TR D) 22 R JH R & A o\ L g 5 P 2 HE
ai SR (B 13 55 AR 8 5% < 8 2 Mok 1) B
FE WA ECR R A 2 e 42 k) > IR
R R AR 45 W SR Mk ] S5 35210k £ B 2 B R
izt g IR T -

Number of ordinary shares

W 0 B By B H

Personal Family Corporate Other

interests interests interests interests
Name of director WHEE A il A B 2% P 9/3 %3 2 i) Bl 2% b B 22
Chan Sui Kau B i Kk 13,965,280 - - (1)
Chan Wing Fui, Peter B 7k 48 486,102 8,678,465 = (i)
Chan Wing Kee i 8,589,624 319,691 - (i) & (ii)
Chan Wing To B 7K I 12,353,389 - - (i) & (ii)
Chan Wing Sun, Samuel B 7k %% 6,089,244 250,000 3,604,415 (i)
Chan Suk Ling, Shirley JE bR WS 4,535,816 524,000 - (i)
Chan Suk Man B BRI 3,438,466 - - (i) & (ii)
So Ying Woon, Alan #5 M IH 12,000 = = =
Leung Hok Lim o722 i - - - -
Lin Keping N - - - -
Sze Cho Cheung, Michael it A5 4 - - - -
Choi Ting Ki SRAEH = = = =

Notes: A

0

(i
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48,032,240 shares of the Company were held by Chan Family Investment
Corporation Ltd. (which is owned by Messrs Chan Sui Kau, Chan Wing Fui, Peter,
Chan Wing Kee, Chan Wing To, Chan Wing Sun, Samuel, Madam Chan Suk Ling,
Shirley and Madam Chan Suk Man and other members of the Chan Family) and
its subsidiaries.

2,383,500 shares of the Company were held by Super Team International Limited
which is indirectly owned by Messrs Chan Wing Kee, Chan Wing To, Madam
Chan Suk Man and other members of the Chan Family.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2016, none of the
directors or their associates, had, under Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV
of the SFO, nor were they taken to or deemed to have under such
provisions of the SFO, any interests or short positions in the shares,
underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) or any
interests which are required to be entered into the register kept by
the Company pursuant to section 352 of the SFO or any interests
which are required to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND OTHER
PERSONS’ INTERESTS

Other than the interests disclosed in the section “Directors’ Interests
In Shares” in respect of the directors, the following shareholder had
interests in 5% or more of the ordinary share of the Company in issue
as at 31 March 2016, according to the register of interests and short
positions required to be kept by the Company under section 336 of the
SFO:

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EEXEHRES
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RoFE-ARFE=ZA=+t—H BRELHLIEF
Z M HE AR | P B B 2 HE 4R A o AR BB R Mk 1
55 336M KL E A7 B 2 B 4 HE i % IR B T I
o FEE AN E B AT S WA A 5% L E
it < BERFC BRI R

Number of Percentage of

ordinary ordinary shares

shares held in issue

Capacity A% B A B AT A R

Name of shareholder B K 4 W B #2 Pk & B4y % H Bedr | 4 e

Guangzhou Textiles Industry & | B M 454k T &2 4> 2 Beneficial owner 17,781,000 8.60%
Trade Holdings Ltd. LEHARAFA HiHEA A (note)
(HtFE)

Note: The shares were directly held by Yue Xiu Textiles Co., Ltd., a 100% owned
subsidiary of Guangzhou Textiles Industry & Trade Holdings Ltd.

Save as disclosed above, no other interests required to be recorded in
the register kept under section 336 of the SFO have been notified to the
Company.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Details of connected transactions under Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules are set out amongst related party transactions in note 28(a) to
the financial statements. As certain directors and their associates are
collectively the controlling shareholders (as defined in the Listing Rules)
of YGM Trading Limited and its subsidiaries (“YGMT Group”) and the
Group, the related party transactions constitute connected transactions
or continuing connected transactions as defined in Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules. Of these, sales of garment products to YGMT Group and
rental income received and receivable from YGMT Group constitute the
connected transactions to be disclosed as defined under Chapter 14A of
the Listing Rules. Other transactions with YGMT Group are exempt from
the disclosure requirements in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

Related party transactions in note 28(b) to the financial statements related
to the purchases of raw materials from a related party, which are not
connected transactions under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

In the opinion of the independent non-executive directors, the connected
transactions were entered into by the Group:

()  inthe ordinary and usual course of its business;
(i) conducted either on normal commercial terms (which expression will
be applied by reference to transactions of a similar nature and to be
made by similar entities) or where there is no available comparison,
on terms that are fair and reasonable so far as the independent
shareholders of the Company are concerned,;

(i) in accordance with the terms of the agreements governing the
transactions; and

(iv) in accordance with the pricing policies of the Group, where
applicable.
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EXEHES

The Company’s auditor was engaged to report on the Group’s continuing
connected transactions in accordance with Hong Kong Standard on
Assurance Engagements 3000 “Assurance Engagements Other Than
Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial Information” and with reference
to Practice Note 740 “Auditor’s Letter on Continuing Connected
Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. The auditor has issued his
unqualified letter containing his findings and conclusions in respect of the
continuing connected transactions disclosed by the Group in accordance
with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. A copy of the auditor’s letter has
been provided by the Company to the Stock Exchange.

There are no other connected transactions which are required to be
disclosed in this report in accordance with the requirements of Chapter
14A of the Listing Rules.

RETIREMENT SCHEMES

Particulars of the retirement schemes of the Group are set out in note 22
to the financial statements.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

To comply with the Code of Best Practice as set out in Appendix 14
to the Listing Rules, the Company has set up an audit committee
(the “Committee”) with written terms of reference, for the purposes of
reviewing and providing supervision on the financial reporting process
and internal control of the Group. The Committee comprises four
independent non-executive directors.

FIVE YEAR SUMMARY

A summary of the results and the assets and liabilities of the Group for
the last five financial years is set out on pages 107 to 108 of the annual
report.

PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the directors, as at the date of this report, there
is sufficient public float of not less than 25% of the Company’s issued
shares as required under the Listing Rules.

AUDITORS

KPMG retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment. A
resolution for the re-appointment of KPMG as auditors of the Company
is to be proposed at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the
Company.

By Order of the Board
Chan Wing Fui, Peter
Chairman

Hong Kong, 29 June 2016
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

The board of directors (the “Board”) of the Company is dedicated to
uphold a high corporate governance standard. The Board firmly believes
that the principles of transparency, accountability and independence are
essential for protecting the interests of the Company and maximizing
shareholder value.

The Company has complied with the code provisions in the Corporate
Governance Code (the “Code”) set out in Appendix 14 of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) (the “Listing Rules”) throughout
the financial year ended 31 March 2016, except for the deviation from
code provision A.4.1 of the Code, pursuant to which the non-executive
directors of the Company should be appointed for a specific term,
subject to re-election. The non-executive directors of Company are not
appointed for a specific term but are subject to retirement by rotation and
re-election requirements at the annual general meeting of the Company
in accordance with Articles 96 and 105 of the Company’s articles of
association.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board is committed to act in good faith in the best interests of the
Company and its shareholders. The Board sets the Group’s overall
objectives and strategic directions, monitors and evaluates its operating
and financial performance. It also decides on matters relating to annual
and interim results, audited financial statements, notifiable transactions,
appointment and re-appointment of directors, major acquisitions and
disposals, material contracts, risk management, major financings and
borrowings, accounting and dividends policies. The Board delegates
day-to-day operations of the Company to the management of the Group
and also instructs the management to implement the Board’s decisions
and resolutions. In addition, the Board has also delegated various
responsibilities to the Audit Committee, the Remuneration Committee, the
Nomination Committee and the Risk Management Committee.

The Board comprises eight executive directors and four independent
non-executive directors. The number of independent non-executive
directors represents at least one-third of the Board in accordance with
Rule 3.10A of the Listing Rules. The independent non-executive directors
bring a diverse range of expertise, skills and experience to provide
effective guidance and an outside perspective to all major decisions of
the Group.

Details of backgrounds and qualifications of the directors as well as
relationships between them are set out in the section of “Directors and
Management”.

The Board, Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee, Nomination
Committee and Risk Management Committee had held 4, 2, 1, 1 and 1
meetings respectively in the year under review.
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EXERRSE

The attendance at the Board and respective Board committees meetings
held in the year ended 31 March 2016 are as follows:

EHGARERZRAONBE T - RNF=4
= Bk AR BE R BT B AT & R R D SR S
o

Risk Annual
Audit Remuneration Nomination Management General
Board Committee Committee  Committee = Committee Meeting
o 4
e HHEHA HMEHE RAZHE ZHE BREERE
Executive directors Wik

Chan Sui Kau P i 3K 4/4 N/A N/A N/A N/A 1/1
Chan Wing Fui, Peter Bk 2 4/4 N/A 1/ 11 1/1 1/
Chan Wing Kee B At 4/4 N/A 1/1 1/1 1/1 1/1
Chan Wing To Bk 1B 4/4 N/A N/A N/A N/A 1/1
Chan Suk Man BI BB 3/4 N/A N/A N/A 1/1 11
Chan Wing Sun, Samuel Bk £ 4/4 N/A N/A N/A N/A 1/1
Chan Suk Ling, Shirley A T 4/4 N/A N/A N/A N/A 1/1
So Ying Woon, Alan BRI 4/4 N/A N/A N/A 11 11

Independent non-executive | B FEH#ATHE S

directors

Leung Hok Lim Bk 4/4 2/2 11 11 N/A 11
Lin Keping M 4/4 2/2 1/1 1/1 N/A 1/1
Sze Cho Cheung, Michael T 16 4 4/4 2/2 11 1/1 N/A 11
Choi Ting Ki B 4/4 2/2 11 1/1 N/A 1/1

The 2015 Annual General Meeting (“AGM”) was held on 16 September
2015, all the directors, including the Chairman of the Board, the
Chairman of each of the Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee
and Nomination Committee and the external auditor of the Company,
attended the AGM to answer questions raised by shareholders.
Proceedings of annual general meeting are reviewed from time to time to
ensure that the Company follows good corporate governance practices.
Voting results were posted on the Company’s and the Stock Exchange’s
websites on the day of the AGM.

Each of the independent non-executive directors has confirmed with the
Company in writing his independence from the Company in accordance
with the relevant guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The
Nomination Committee and the Board considered that all independent
non-executive directors of the Company are independent with reference
to Rule 3.183.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE POLICY AND
DUTIES

The Board is committed to ensure that a good corporate governance
framework and practices are established within the Group. The Board is
responsible for performing the duties on corporate governance functions
as required under code provision D.3.1 of the Code which are set out
below:

(1) developing and reviewing the Company’s policies and practices on
corporate governance and making recommendations to the Board;
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

(2) reviewing and monitoring the training and continuous professional
development of directors and senior management;

(8) reviewing and monitoring the Company’s policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

(4) developing, reviewing and monitoring the code of conduct and
compliance manual (if any) applicable to employees and directors;
and

(5) reviewing the Company’s compliance with the Code and disclosure
in the Corporate Governance Report.

CHAIRMAN AND MANAGING DIRECTOR

The Chairman of the Board is Mr. Chan Wing Fui, Peter and the
Managing Director of the Company is Mr. Chan Wing Kee. The roles of
the Chairman of the Board and the Managing Director of the Company
are separated, with a clear division of responsibilities. The Chairman
of the Board is responsible for formulating corporate strategies and
overall business development planning. The Managing Director’s duty
is to oversee the execution of daily business activities. The division of
responsibilities at the Board level is to ensure a balance of power and
authority.

DIRECTORS’ TRAINING

According to code provision A.6.5 of the Code, all directors should
participate in continuous professional development to develop and
refresh their knowledge and skills to ensure that their contribution to
the Board remains informed and relevant. The Company should be
responsible for arranging and funding suitable training, placing an
appropriate emphasis on the roles, functions and duties of the directors.
The Company provides tailored induction programme to new director
upon his appointment to equip him with the appropriate understanding
of the business and operations of the Group and to ensure that he is fully
aware of his responsibilities and obligations under the relevant law and
the Listing Rules.

During the year, the Company organised one in-house seminar to update
the Directors on the new amendments to the corporate governance code
and relevant Listing Rules. The Company circulates materials relating to
the legislative and regulatory environment to the directors on a regular
basis for their information. The Company also encourages Directors to
attend relevant seminars, conferences or forums to develop and refresh
their knowledge and skills. During the year, all directors participated in
continuous professional development in compliance with code provision
A.6.5 of the Code.

DIRECTORS’ INSURANCE

During the year, the Company has arranged for the renewal of an
insurance policy on directors’ and officers’ liability to ensure our directors
and senior management are protected from any liability arising from the
performance of their duties.
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BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established the Audit Committee, the Remuneration
Committee, the Nomination Committee and the Risk Management
Committee, each with mandate to oversee particular aspects of the
affairs of the Company. Each of these four Board committees is set up
with written terms of reference. The Board committees are provided
with sufficient resources to discharge their duties and are able to seek
independent professional advice in appropriate circumstance at the
expenses of the Company.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company has established an Audit Committee with written terms
of reference. The Audit Committee comprises four independent non-
executive directors, namely Mr. Leung Hok Lim, Mr. Lin Keping, Mr. Sze
Cho Cheung, Michael and Mr. Choi Ting Ki. It is chaired by Mr. Leung
Hok Lim. The members’ attendance to the Audit Committee meeting is
listed out on page 18.

The Audit Committee is mainly responsible for monitoring the integrity
of the Company’s financial statements, reviewing the Company’s
internal control system and its execution through the review of the work
undertaken by the internal and external auditors, evaluating financial
information and related disclosure, reviewing connected transactions and
considering the adequacy of resources, qualifications and experience of
staff of the Company’s accounting and financial reporting function, and
their training programmes and budget.

During the year ended 31 March 2016, the Audit Committee has, inter
alia, reviewed and discussed with management and the external auditor
the interim and annual results with a view to ensuring that the Group’s
financial statements were prepared in accordance with accounting
principles generally accepted in Hong Kong. The Audit Committee has
met with external auditor twice a year, in the absence of management,
to discuss any issues arising from the audit and any other matters the
auditor may wish to raise. The Audit Committee has also reviewed the
independence and quality of work of KPMG and has recommended to
the Board to re-appoint KPMG as auditor for the year ending 31 March
2017.

During the year, the Board has not taken any view that is different from
that of the Audit Committee nor rejected any recommendation presented
by the Audit Committee.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Committee comprises two executive directors, namely Mr. Chan
Wing Fui, Peter and Mr. Chan Wing Kee, and four independent non-
executive directors, namely Mr. Leung Hok Lim, Mr. Lin Keping, Mr.
Sze Cho Cheung, Michael and Mr. Choi Ting Ki. It is chaired by Mr. Sze
Cho Cheung, Michael. The members’ attendance to the Remuneration
Committee meeting is listed out on page 18.
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The Remuneration Committee is responsible for ensuring formal
and transparent procedures for developing remuneration policies
and in overseeing remuneration packages of the directors. It makes
recommendations to the Board on the remuneration packages of
individual executive directors and senior management. It takes into
consideration factors such as salaries and compensation packages paid
by comparable companies, time commitment and responsibilities of the
directors. It would also take into account whether the emoluments offered
are appropriate given the duties and performance of the respective
individuals concerned and whether such emoluments are competitive and
sufficiently attractive to retain such individuals.

Details of the directors’ emoluments are set out in note 7 to the financial
statements.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Nomination Committee comprises two executive directors, namely
Mr. Chan Wing Fui, Peter and Mr. Chan Wing Kee, and four independent
non-executive directors, namely Mr. Leung Hok Lim, Mr. Lin Keping,
Mr. Sze Cho Cheung, Michael and Mr. Choi Ting Ki. It is chaired by Mr.
Leung Hok Lim. The members’ attendance to the Nomination Committee
meeting is listed out on page 18.

The roles of the Nomination Committee are to review the structure,
size and composition of the Board, identify individuals suitably qualified
to become members of the Board, and assess the independence of
independent non-executive directors and make recommendations to the
Board on the appointment and re-election of directors and succession
planning for directors, in particular the chairman and the managing
director. The Nomination Committee will consider the suitability of the
candidate on the basis of his professional qualification, skills, experience
and background.

During the year ended 31 March 2016, the Nomination Committee
has reviewed the structure, size and composition (including the skills,
knowledge and experience) of the Board.

RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE

The Company established a Risk Management Committee (“Risk
Management Committee”) on 22 March 2016. The Risk Management
Committee comprises four executive directors, namely Mr. Chan Wing
Fui, Peter, Mr. Chan Wing Kee, Ms. Chan Suk Man and Mr. So Ying
Woon, Alan. It is chaired by Mr. Chan Wing Fui, Peter. The members’
attendance to the Risk Management Committee meeting is listed out on
page 18.

The purpose of the Committee is to oversee the overall design,
implementation and monitoring of the risk management and the internal
control systems of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively, the
“Group”) and to advise the Board on the Group’s risk-related matters.
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EMOLUMENTS OF SENIOR MANAGEMENT

The senior management of the Group comprises 7 individuals. Details of
backgrounds and qualifications of each senior executive are set out in the
section of “Directors and Management”.

During the year ended 31 March 2016, the emoluments of the senior
management of the Group fell within the following bands:

R B M &

AEEBEREHRABCRH7EANL - HRFATEH
ANEEREEEER #EERERAR] -

WEZZ-ARNFE=ZHA=+—HILFEERN » K&
i AR N B RN A R N 5 [ R

Number of senior executives

Emoluments W 4 FRATB B H
HK$0 to HK$1,000,000 0%k JC¢ £1,000,000%k T 1
HK$1,000,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,000,001 % 5t 2,000,000 G 6

7

DIRECTORS’ AND AUDITOR’S
RESPONSIBILITIES IN RESPECT OF THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for overseeing the preparation of financial
statements of the Group and ensure that the financial statements are
prepared in accordance with all relevant statutory requirements and
applicable accounting standards.

The statement of external auditors of the Company about their reporting
responsibilities of the financial statements is set out in the “Independent
Auditor’s Report” on pages 29 to 30.

AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

During the year, total auditors’ remuneration in relation to statutory audit
work of the Group amounted to HK$1,970,000 (2015: HK$1,784,000),
of which a sum of HK$1,877,000 (2015: HK$1,661,000) was paid or
payable to the Group’s principal auditors, KPMG.

The remunerations paid or payable to the Group’s principal auditor,
KPMG and its affiliated firms, for services rendered in statutory audit and
non-audit were HK$1,877,000 (2015: HK$1,661,000) and HK$481,000
(2015: HK$165,000) respectively. The non-audit services principally
comprise tax and internal control review services provided to the Group.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted a Securities Dealing Code regarding
director’s securities transactions on terms no less exacting than required
standard set out in the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) contained in Appendix 10
of the Listing Rules. All directors have confirmed, upon specific enquiry by
the Company, that they have complied with the required standard set out
in the Model Code and the Securities Dealing Code throughout the year
under review.
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INTERNAL CONTROL AND RISK MANAGEMENT

The Board recognises its responsibility for maintaining sound and
effective internal controls. A sound system of internal control is designed
to provide reasonable assurance, but not absolute assurance, regarding
the achievement of the Company’s objectives.

Management is primarily responsible for the design, implementation,
and maintenance of internal controls, while the Board, through the Risk
Management Committee, oversees the actions of management and
monitors the effectiveness of internal controls and risk management. The
process used in reviewing the effectiveness of internal control system
includes discussion with management on significant control failings or
weakness and risk areas identified by management.

Based on the information received from management and internal audit
function, the Audit Committee concluded that for the year ended 31
March 2016, the internal control system was adequate and effective.

INTERNAL AUDIT FUNCTION

During the year under review, the Internal Audit Department has been
reviewing and assessing the design and effectiveness of internal controls
of the Group. Since January 2016, the board has engaged an external
consultant to perform internal audit services to replace the internal audit
function carried out by the Internal Audit Department. Thereafter, the
external consultant has assisted the Group to perform a review of the
effectiveness of internal controls system for certain selected processes.
The assessment results and proposed improvement opportunities were
discussed and agreed with Management and were reported to the Audit
Committee.

COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company Secretary is an employee of the Company and has day-
to-day knowledge of the Company’s affairs. The Company Secretary
is responsible for advising the Board through the Chairman and/or the
Vice Chairman on governance matters and also facilitates the induction
and professional development of directors. The Company Secretary
also keeps proper records of all Board and Committee meetings.
The biography of the Company Secretary is set out on page 28. The
Company Secretary has undertaken no less than 15 hours of professional
training during the year.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Procedures for Shareholders to convene an extraordinary general meeting
66EGM”

Article 67 of the articles of association of the Company provides that
an extraordinary general meeting shall be convened on requisition, as
provided by the Companies Ordinance. According to section 566 of the
Companies Ordinance, the directors of the Company are required to
call a general meeting if the Company has received requests to do so
from shareholders representing at least 5% of the total voting rights of all
shareholders having a right to vote at general meetings of the Company.
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Procedures for putting forward proposals at EGM

Pursuant to section 566 of the Companies Ordinance, the request for
a general meeting must state the general nature of the business to be
dealt with at the meeting and may include the text of a resolution that
may properly be moved and is intended to be moved at the meeting. The
request may be sent to the Company in hard copy form at the registered
office of the Company or in electronic form at cs_info@ygm.com.hk
and must be authenticated by the requisitionist(s). The directors must
call a general meeting within 21 days after the date of the receipt of the
requests to do so. The meeting called must be held on a date not more
than 28 days after the date of the notice convening the meeting.

Procedures for directing Shareholders’ enquiries to the Board

Shareholders may put forward enquiries to the Board through the
Company Secretary who will direct the enquiries to the Board for
handling. The contact details of the Company Secretary are as follows:

The Company Secretary
Yangtzekiang Garment Limited
22 Tai Yau Street

San Po Kong

Kowloon

Hong Kong

E-Mail: cs_info@ygm.com.hk
Telephone: (852) 2327 5111
Facsimile: (852) 2352 2286

Changes in the Company’s constitutional documents

No amendments are made to the articles of association of the Company
during the year ended 31 March 2016.
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DIRECTORS AND MANAGEMENT

DIRECTORS

Chan Sui Kau, GBM, GBS, JP

Aged 91, Dr. Chan is the founder of our Group. He established the
Company in 1949 and is the Honorary Chairman of the Company. Having
been a Justices of the Peace since 1983, Dr. Chan was awarded the
Gold Bauhinia Star in 2002 and six years later in 2008 he was awarded
the Grand Bauhinia Medal. Dr. Chan used to serve as a member of
the 8th and 9th term of the Chinese People’s Political Consultative
Committee until he reached the retirement age. Dr. Chan is also an
Honorary Citizen of Dongguan, Foshan, Guangzhou and Wuxi (Jiangsu).
In 2013 Dr. Chan was being awarded Industrialist of the Year from The
Federation of Hong Kong Industries.

Dr. Chan received an Honorary Doctoral Degree of Business
Administration from The Hong Kong Polytechnic University in 2001;
an Honorary Doctoral Degree of Social Sciences from City University
of Hong Kong in 2007 and in the same year an Honorary University
Fellowship from The University of Hong Kong. Dr. Chan received another
two honorary university conferments: one was an Honorary University
Fellowship from Hong Kong Baptist University and the other one was
an Honorary Doctoral Degree of Social Sciences from The Hong Kong
University of Science & Technology in 2008. Dr. Chan received an
Honorary Fellowship from The Chinese University of Hong Kong in 2013.

Dr. Chan is the former Chairman of the Clothing Industry Training
Authority (1986); former Chairman of the Textile Council of Hong Kong
(1988-1994) and presently its Honorary Chairman; former President
of Federation of Hong Kong Garment Manufacturers (1977-1988) and
currently its Life Honorary President; Honorary President of Hong Kong
Woollen & Synthetic Knitting Manufacturers’ Association since 1980 and
former member of Textile Advisory Board of Hong Kong (1971-1987) as
well as the Hong Kong Labour Advisory Board (1985-1995).

Chan Wing Fui, Peter, MA

Aged 70, Mr. Chan received a Master’s degree in Administrative Science
from Yale University, USA in 1969 and joined the Group in the same year.
He was appointed as Director and Managing Director of the Company in
1971 and 1980 respectively and Vice Chairman of the board of directors
of both the Company and YGM Trading Ltd in 1987. Mr. Chan is at
present the Chairman of the board of directors of the Company. Mr.
Chan was the Chairman of the board of directors of YGM Trading Limited
from 2010 to 2015. Mr. Chan has been actively involved in garment
manufacturing and marketing in the Far East and the USA for over 30
years. He is the son of Dr. Chan Sui Kau and the brother of Mr. Chan
Wing Sun, Samuel and Ms. Chan Suk Ling, Shirley.

Chan Wing Kee, GBS, OBE, JP

Aged 69, Mr. Chan received a Bachelor’s degree in Industrial Engineering
in 1970. He joined the Group in 1970 as Production Manager and later
became Sales Manager. He was appointed as Director in 1977 and
Managing Director in 1987. He is also an Executive Director of YGM
Trading Limited; Independent Non-executive Director of China Travel
International Investment Hong Kong Limited and China Construction
Bank (Asia) Corporation Limited. Mr. Chan has participated in many
textile negotiations with the USA and Europe for Hong Kong and
Macau. He is a Standing Committee Member of The 10th, 11th and
12th of The Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference; Deputy
of the 8th and 9th National People’s Congress of China, Ex-member
of Commission on Strategic Development of Hong Kong Special
Administrative Region; Ex-member of Economic Council of Macau
Special Administrative Region; Ex-member of the Textile Advisory Board;
Ex-Committee Member of the Preparatory Committee for Hong Kong
Special Administrative Region and Ex-Advisor of Hong Kong Affairs. He is
the brother of Mr. Chan Wing To and Ms. Chan Suk Man.
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Chan Wing To, PhD

Aged 65, Mr. Chan joined YGM Singapore in 1978. He was appointed as
Executive Director of the Group in 1983 and YGM Trading Ltd in 1987.
Mr. Chan received a Doctor of Philosophy degree in economics from the
University of Rochester, USA in 1978. He has extensive experience in the
textile and garment business. He is the brother of Mr. Chan Wing Kee
and Ms. Chan Suk Man.

Chan Suk Man, MSc

Aged 68, Ms. Chan received Master of Science Degrees from the
University of Windsor, Canada in 1973 and Case Western Reserve
University USA in 1975. Madam Chan joined the Group in 1976 and was
appointed as Executive Director in 1993. She is the sister of Mr. Chan
Wing Kee and Mr. Chan Wing To.

Chan Wing Sun, Samuel

Aged 68, Mr. Chan received a Bachelor's degree from University of
Manchester, the United Kingdom in 1970 and qualified as a Chartered
Accountant in 1973. He was the Company Secretary of the Group
from 1974 to 1988 and has been an Executive Director since 1977. Mr.
Chan was the Managing Director of YGM Trading Limited from 1987 to
2006 and the Chief Executive Officer of YGM Trading Limited from 2006
to 2010. He was the Vice Chairman of the board of directors of YGM
Trading Limited from 2010 and was re-designated as the Chairman of
board of director of YGM Trading Limited in September 2015. Mr. Chan
has been the chairman of the board of directors of Crater Gold Mining
Limited, whose shares are listed on Australian Securities Exchange, since
2013. He is the son of Dr. Chan Sui Kau and the brother of Mr. Chan
Wing Fui, Peter and Ms. Chan Suk Ling, Shirley.

Chan Suk Ling, Shirley, JP

Madam Chan joined the Group in 1973 and appointed as the Director
since 1983. She is also the Vice Chairman and Executive Director of
YGM Trading Limited. Madam Chan has extensive experience in the
garment retail and wholesale business. She is a Member of Advisory
Group on Implementation of Fashion Initiatives of Hong Kong Special
Administrative Region (“HKSAR”), a Member of Fashion Industry
Training Advisory Committee of HKSAR, a Council Member of the
Hong Kong Trade Development Council (“HKTDC”), the Chairman
of Staff & Finance Committee of HKTDC, the First Vice-President of
the Chinese Manufacturers’ Association of Hong Kong, a Committee
Member of the Tianjin Municipal Committee of the Chinese People’s
Political Consultative Conference, the Vice President of the Guangdong
Association of Enterprises with Foreign Investment, a Member of the
Rehabilitation Advisory Committee of HKSAR and a Council Member of
The Hong Kong Polytechnic University. She received a Bachelor’s degree
from Nottingham Trent University, United Kingdom in 1973. Madam
Chan, aged 65, is the daughter of Dr. Chan Sui Kau and the sister of
Mr. Chan Wing Fui, Peter and Mr. Chan Wing, Sun, Samuel.

So Ying Woon, Alan

Aged 66, Mr. So received a Bachelor’'s degree from the Chinese
University of Hong Kong in 1974. Mr. So joined the Group in 1974 and
was promoted to the position of Sales Manager in 1976. He has been
the General Manager since 1993. Mr. So was appointed as Executive
Director of the Company in 2005
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DIRECTORS AND MANAGEMENT

Leung Hok Lim, FCPA (Aust.), CPA (Macau), FCPA (Practising)

Aged 81, Mr. Leung has been an Independent Non-executive Director
of the Company since 1993. He is the founder and senior partner of
PKF, Accountants and Business Advisers. Mr. Leung is a non-executive
director of Beijing-Hong Kong Exchange of Personnel Centre Limited,
and the independent non-executive director of a number of listed
companies, namely YGM Trading Limited, Fujian Holdings Limited,
Phoenix Satellite Television Holdings Limited, S E A Holdings Limited and
High Fashion International Limited.

Lin Keping

Aged 77, Mr. Lin has been an Independent Non-executive Director of
the Company since 2004. Mr. Lin is an engineer, graduated from Beijing
University of Posts and Telecommunications in 1963. He is a member
of the Eighth National Committee of the Chinese People’s Political
Consultative Conference and an executive member of the Eighth All-
China Federation of Industry and Commerce. He has served in postal
and telecommunication research institutes, the Ministry of Posts and
Telecommunications and other organisations for years, and was an
executive vice president of China Minsheng Bank Corp. Ltd. He is also an
Independent Non-executive Director of YGM Trading Limited.

Sze Cho Cheung, Michael, GBS, CBE, ISO, JP

Aged 71, Mr. Sze has been an Independent Non-executive Director of
the Company since 2010. He was a former Executive Director of the
Hong Kong Trade Development Council, a position he held for eight
years prior to his retirement on 1 May 2004. Before that, he worked for
25 years in various capacities in the Hong Kong Government. He is also
an Independent Non-executive Directors of Swire Pacific Limited and
YGM Trading Limited. Mr. Sze resigned as a non-executive director of
Lee Kum Kee Co., Ltd. in June 2010 and currently acts as a consultant
to the board of Lee Kum Kee Co., Ltd.

Choi Ting Ki

Aged 61, is a felow member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. In 1978, Mr. Choi graduated from the Department of
Accounting of the Hong Kong Polytechnic (currently known as the Hong
Kong Polytechnic University). He joined KPMG in the same year and has
held various positions, including Partner of the audit department of KPMG
Hong Kong Office, Managing Partner of KPMG Shanghai Office, Senior
Partner of KPMG Huazhen Shanghai Office as well as Senior Partner of
KPMG Huazhen in Eastern and Western China. Mr. Choi retired from
KPMG Huazhen in April 2010. Mr. Choi has been an Independent Non-
executive Director of the Company since December 2012. Mr. Choi
is also an Independent Non-executive Director of Sinopec Shanghai
Petrochemical Company Limited and YGM Trading Limited.
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MANAGEMENT

Lau Shing Choy

Aged 68, Mr. Lau received a Bachelor’'s degree from the Chinese
University of Hong Kong in 1969, and a Doctor of Philosophy Degree
from Case Western Reserve University, USA in 1978. Mr. Lau joined the
Group in 1978 to develop the China business. He is the Director of Hong
Kong Knitters Limited. He is the husband of Ms. Chan Suk Man.

Senoussi, Serge

Aged 51, is the Managing Director of Lavender Garment Limited and the
General Manager of liaison office in Bangladesh. Mr. Senoussi obtained
a Master’s degree in Econometrics in 1986 and a diploma in Scientific
Management Methods in 1987 from the University of Paris X Nanterre,
France. He joined the Company in 1993 to develop the business in
Bangladesh.

Leung Ming Wai, Alan

Aged 58, Mr. Leung is the General Manager of Sales Department and
obtained the diploma in Management Studies at Hong Kong Polytechnic
University and Master Degree in Business Administration at University of
Macau. He joined the Company as Sales Manager in 1986.

Chui Wai Ha, Catherine, MBA

Aged 54, Ms. Chui is the General Manager of Sales Department. Ms.
Chui joined the Group in 1994, and has over 30 years' managerial
experience in fashion business. She was awarded Master of Business
Administration (Fashion Business) by the Hong Kong Polytechnic
University in 2004.

Yung Chor Yin, Margaret

Aged 52, is the General Manager of Sales Department and received
a Bachelor's degree from RMIT University and a Master's degree in
Business Administration from Hong Kong Polytechnic University. She
joined the Company in 1985.

Yip Chung On

Aged 53, Mr. Yip is the General Manager of Sales Department. Mr. Yip
joined the Company in 1982, and was promoted to Sales Manager in
1989. With wide range of both woven and knit experience in garment
sourcing and merchandizing, he was appointed as General Manager in
2005.

Hui Sau Ling

Aged 50, is the Financial Controller and Company Secretary of the
Group. She joined the Group in 2000 and has extensive experience in
auditing, accounting, treasury and company secretarial work. She is a
fellow member of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants and
a member of Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

KkpmG

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE
MEMBERS OF YANGTZEKIANG GARMENT LIMITED
(Incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Yangtzekiang
Garment Limited (“the Company”) and its subsidiaries (together “the
Group”) set out on pages 31 to 105, which comprise the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 31 March 2016, the consolidated
statement of profit or loss, the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of
changes in equity and the consolidated cash flow statement for the year
then ended and a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial
statements based on our audit. This report is made solely to you, as a
body, in accordance with section 405 of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free
from material misstatement.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
B R BE RS

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about
the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements.
The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s
preparation of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and
fair view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the directors, as
well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial
statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair
view of the financial position of the Group as at 31 March 2016 and of
the Group’s financial performance and cash flows for the year then ended
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have
been properly prepared in compliance with the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

KPMG
Certified Public Accountants

8th Floor, Prince’s Building
10 Chater Road
Central, Hong Kong

29 June 2016
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

meEBEER

For the year ended 3| March 2016 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BE-_T-RXF=ZA=1t—HLFE LETH)

2016 2015
ZR N S TS
Note $°000 $°000
Bt 7t T F
Revenue WA 3 & 11 938,434 1,133,864
Cost of sales P A (774,124) (968,503)
Gross profit EH 164,310 165,361
Other income g 4 9,029 7,045
Selling and distribution expenses B Kooy 8 (64,116) (71,164)
Administrative expenses 1T B A (66,363) (68,611)
Other operating expenses oAt 58 4% (19,555) (24,965)
Profit from operations 52 ik A 23,305 7,666
Finance costs il & B A 5(a) (3,002) (8,671)
Share of losses of an associate JE A5 — Tk 7 > ) s 48 15 — (355)
Share of losses of joint ventures FEAL & 8 A 1R (28,391) (20,356)
Impairment loss on plant TR e A I (E s 4R
and equipment 12(e) (4,656) -
Net valuation gains on G W A0 B R 5 1 AR
investment properties 12(a) 20,759 6,964
Profit/(loss) before taxation B BE i B A Ol 1) 5 8,015 (9,752)
Income tax Jir 15 % 6(a) (3,658) (13,856)
Profit/(loss) for the year AR R A O 8 4,357 (23,608)
Attributable to: 9% S RS -
Equity shareholders of the Company NN RSN 4,413 (23,241)
Non-controlling interests I e I A SRR 25 (56) (367)
Profit/(loss) for the year AAE R A (B 4,357 (23,608)
Earnings/(loss) per share B A OEE)
Basic and diluted B FNYE: 10 $0.02 ($0.11)

Details of dividends payable to equity shareholders of the Company
attributable to the year are set out in note 25(b). The notes on pages 37

to 105 form part of these financial statements.

TR AR AR 2 ) B HE 5 A N A A B TR U AR R 1 SR

Fif 5%25(b)

537 H £105H MY B 5 & 4 7% )
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
mReEmEkEMER RS X

For the year ended 3| March 2016 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
HE-F-—AF=A=t—BLEE CUETH)

2016 2015
ZE N ZR— AR
Note $°000 $°000
Btz T F
Profit/(loss) for the year AAE R B Ol ) 4357  (23,608)
Other comprehensive income AR AR B i 2 i WG 22
for the year (after tax and (00 B3 BE I B
reclassification adjustments) 43 35 B 1% ) 9
Item that will not be reclassified to HEN T E AT
profit or loss: 18 7 B9 HH H -
Surplus on revaluation of land and M p T AL A R
buildings transferred to (IS S Ly
investment property - s 834
Items that may be reclassified A 7] GE o E
subsequently to profit or l0ss: Har B9 H A -
Exchange differences on translation T 5t 22 3
of:
- financial statements of — Y U AN T S )
subsidiaries outside Hong Kong B R T E R (6,891) (62)
- share of an associate’s and — 0 ARG — W A R R
joint ventures’ net assets EESCEEETFHE (31,197) 686
(38,088) 624
Available-for-sale securities: AL R R
net movement in the investment 1 B A il A 8 B IR AR
revaluation reserve (897) 114
Cash flow hedges: B4
net movement in the hedging ESRU TR T RE
reserve (969) 493
______ (39,954 12381
Other comprehensive income 2 A i H At 4 T A A
for the year @9y 2,065
Total comprehensive income AR AR B 4 i e 2% A8
for the year (35,597) (21,543)
Attributable to: JE 8 e
Equity shareholders of the Company | A2 & BHEREA A (85,472) (21,153)
Non-controlling interests FE = 1 B R 25 (125) (390)
Total comprehensive income AR AR B 2 i G 2 A8
for the year (85,597) (21,543)

The notes on pages 37 to 105 form part of these financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
e BRIk &

At 3| March 2016 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
RZB—RF=ZA=+—8 L&)

2016 2015
RN —E— R4
Note $°000 $°000
Kt 7 T F oo
Non-current assets e B % A
Investment properties "EmE 12 233,506 215,196
Other property, plant and equipment | HAt#) 2 ~ g5 M 5% 12 82,368 93,553
Interest in leasehold land held for FEKEHEZ A H
own use under operating leases TG+ Mo #E 25 12 1,496 1,638
317,370 310,387
Intangible assets Y & 13 3,270 3,117
Interest in an associate — Wk N A RE £5 15 = =
Interests in joint ventures BB A ERE 2 16 541,095 600,683
Other financial assets HoAth 4 & e 17 4,250 7,052
Deferred tax assets % SIE B IH K 7E 23(b)(ii) 1,687 1,501
______ 867,672 922,740
Current assets W A
Inventories 75 18 79,482 108,526
Trade and other receivables R e R K S H Al JEE Wiz K 19 121,667 136,522
Current tax recoverable AT i ] A HA A 1H 23(a) 804 3,799
Cash and cash equivalents Bl& KBl % EY 20 311,644 272,465
______ 913,597 521,312
Current liabilities B 7 %
Trade and other payables JRE AT R 3 S H A JBE ASF 3K 21 109,977 132,420
Current tax payable JRE ASE A% 38 Bl T 23(a) 14,668 13,799
______ 124,645 146,219
Net current assets wEEFEE 388,952 . 375,093
Total assets less current liabilities | % 7S 48 %1 W ¥ 95 £3 % 1,256,624 1,297,833
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

e Bk &

At 31 March 2016 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

R-B—NEFE=A=1+—8 (& T:)

2016 2015
ZE N ZR— AR
Note $°000 $°000
Mt it T F
Non-current liabilities I B 11 £
Provision for long service payments 1% IR 75 4 4l 24 21,673 19,508
Deferred tax liabilities A% JiE B IH B K 23(b)(ii) 17,292 18,484
_______ 38,965 87,992
NET ASSETS ¥ e - 1,217,659 1,259,841
CAPITAL AND RESERVES & 7S B fili
Share capital il 25(c) 208,418 208,418
Reserves it ffi 1,002,557 1,044,243
Total equity attributable to equity | E$#% &t As 2 v JBe A
shareholders of the Company Fe 5 A B 2% 48 B 1,210,975 1,252,661
Non-controlling interests Ik 5 B B 3K M 2% 6,684 7,180
TOTAL EQUITY HE 2% A8 1,217,659 1,259,841

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 29 June

2016.

HEGON T NEANA T IUH B RR
HEEEM ESIIRE -

B A& AL
A

Chan Wing Fui, Peter
Chairman

Chan Wing Kee
Managing Director

Bl ok 4%
EY3

The notes on pages 37 to 105 form part of these financial statements. 5537 H 2105 F 1 5T 8 A W s e R 2 — By o
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

MEEDZEHR

For the year ended 31 March 2016 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

BE-F~F=A=t—BLEE KETH)

Land and
Goodwill Investment  buildings Non-
Share  Exchange  arisingon revaluation revaluation Hedging Other  Retained controlling Total
capital reserve consolidation reserve reserve reserve reserve profits Total  interests equity
sk H A % LERME FHERBA
B BRRE mEZEE ERRE O EWRE O MMEE  CRRE  REEA it e RREE
$000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $:000 $:000 $000
7z 7z 7z 7 7 7 7 7 Tz Tz r
Note (Note (Note (Note (Note (Note (Note
() 2o(a) 250 2o(alfil)  25()iv)  25(d)v)
3 U751 ( (i (i # i3
29e) 254 25(0i) 2500)fi) 25(d)fiv) 25()
Balance at 1 April 2014 REF-MENA—H
25k 8418 159216 (42,174) (548) 31,086 73) 726 916907 1280016 7216 1,287,292
Changes in equity ERERSS :
for the year:
Loss for the year KERER - - - - - - - (8041 (2324) (367)  (23,608)
Other comprehensive income | K& Fili& 9 - 647 - 114 834 493 - - 2,088 23) 2,065
Total comprehensive income ATRESE - 647 - 114 834 493 - (8241 (21159 (390) (1,549
Capital contribution from FHRBREARA
non-controlling interests - - - - - - - - - 294 204
Dividends approved in respect | HiEB R E—EEHRE
of the previous year 25(o) i - - - - - - - (6,202) (6,202) - (6,202)
Balance at 31 March 2015 RoF-1k
and 1 April 2015 SV ) 3
“R-TENA-H
25 208418 159863 (42174) (434 31870 418 723 887464 1,050,661 7180 1,050,841
Changes in equity ERERSS
for the year:
Proft for the year AEERA - - - - - - - 4413 4413 (56) 4357
Other comprehensive income b2 mis 9 - (38,019) - (897) - (969) - - (39,885) (69)  (39.954)
Total comprehensive income AHlEA%H - (38019 - (897) - (969) - 4413 (35479 (125)  (35,507)
Derecognised upon disposal HE-REA AR
of a subsidiary fbwER 14 - - - - - - - - - 2,016) 2,016)
Realisation of reserve upon HE-REATR
disposal of a subsidiary fEER 14 - (12) - = = = = = (12 = (12
Capital contribution from FHRRRGARA
non-controlling interests - - - - - - - - - 1,645 1,645
Dividends approved in respect | MBI L~ EEHRE
of the previous year 26(b)(i) - - - - - - - 6,202) 6,202) - 6,202)
Balance at 31 March 2016 RoZ-AR
ZREF-H2ER 208,418 121,832 (42,174) (1,331) 31,870 (651) 7,236 885,676 1,210,975 6,684 1217659

The notes on pages 37 to 105 form part of these financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT

HERTREBR

For the year ended 3| March 2016 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
HE-F-—AF=A=t—BLEE CUETH)

2016 2015
ZEB N AR
Note $°000 $’000
Vi i For
Operating activities BB W
Cash generated from operations WEEW IR EH & 20(b) 46,999 521
Tax paid E Bl = (511) (7,666)
Net cash generated from/(used in)  RZHWHHEH (i H)
operating activities 1 3L 4 5 i 46,488 (7,145)
Investing activities BE&E I W)
Payment for the purchase of W A 2 - BB &
other property, plant BEENEN
and equipment (5,911) (11,166)
Payment for the purchase of T A OE A K
intangible assets (192) -
Proceeds from disposals of ALY ZE - WS K&
other property, plant B A T A5 B E
and equipment 124 4,126
Proceeds received upon maturity of B 28 2 EES
held-to-maturity debt securities FI| 1A 5 7 45 2KE 1,939 =
Interest received i AR 1,301 2,440
Net cash inflow from disposal of A — B A
a subsidiary B4 A E B 14 2,088 -
Dividends received from BEli—AEeEZRE
a joint venture - 18,521
Dividends received from L i B HE B 5 2 R
equity securities 1,015 455
Capital contribution from I P e B SR AR A
non-controlling interests 1,645 294
Net cash generated from B %35 B 7 £ 04 B4
investing activities 2,009 14,670
Financing activities 7% )
Interest paid 2 A LB (2,970) (3,659)
Dividends paid B R i S (6,202) (6,202)
Net cash used in financing Tl 3% ) 9T R B 4
activities (9,172) (9,861)
Net increase/(decrease) in cash BHERBRAESEHWn,
and cash equivalents (W &) 3 39,325 (2,336)
Cash and cash equivalents at RAER 2 B4 K
the beginning of the year ReE%5EYy 272,465 275,070
Effect of foreign exchange A W 58 5 % 5 ) 2 5 B
rate changes (146) (269)
Cash and cash equivalents at RAERZ B & R
the end of the year B4 E 20(a) 311,644 272,465

The notes on pages 37 to 105 form part of these financial statements.
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(b)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 7% 3R R B &

For the year ended 3| March 2016 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with
all applicable Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”),
which collective term includes all applicable individual Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards
(“HKASs”) and Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”), accounting principles
generally accepted in Hong Kong and the requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. These financial statements
also comply with the applicable disclosure provisions of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (“the Listing Rules”). A summary of the significant
accounting policies adopted by the Group is set out below.

The HKICPA has issued certain new and revised HKFRSs that
are first effective or available for early adoption for the current
accounting period of the Group. Note 2 provides information on
any changes in accounting policies resulting from initial application
of these developments to the extent that they are relevant to the
Group for the current and prior accounting periods reflected in these
financial statements.

Basis of preparation of the financial statements

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March
2016 comprise the Company and its subsidiaries (together referred
to as the “Group”) and the Group’s interests in an associate and
joint ventures.

The measurement basis used in the preparation of the financial
statements is the historical cost basis except that the following
assets and liabilities are stated at their fair value as explained in the
accounting policies set out below:

— investment properties (see note 1(g));

- financial instruments classified as available-for-sale securities
(see note 1(g)); and

— derivative financial instruments held as cash flow hedging
instruments (see note 1(f)).

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with HKFRSs
requires management to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions that affect the application of policies and reported
amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. The estimates
and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and
various other factors that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances, the results of which form the basis of making the
judgements about carrying values of assets and liabilities that are
not readily apparent from other sources. Actual results may differ
from these estimates.

YANGTZEKIANG GARMENT LIMITED Rir &4 B A |
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TH (2BKEE(f) -

2 IR A i B s o E T A R G BB OB R
T B RG J A  BABS BRI - A R
KB % H - A A RS B T
BORWEER > R EHMEE - B
W ai K S B R o B I AR 9 AR T
RN SRR RE B B A At AR PRI AS - Ho&
BRI AR 45 IR S AC B AN AR B A DL R RE A A
B A PR 3R AT o BB A 2R AT AE SR
fhah B E 5 -

37

ANNUAL REPORT 2016 3§



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 7% 3R R B

For the year ended 3| March 2016 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
HE-F-—AF=A=t—BLEE CUETH)

(c)

38

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Basis of preparation of the financial statements (continued)

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an
ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in
the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only
that period, or in the period of the revision and future periods if the
revision affects both current and future periods.

Judgements made by management in the application of HKFRSs
that have significant effect on the financial statements and major
sources of estimation uncertainty are discussed in note 29.

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. The Group
controls an entity when it is exposed, or has rights, to variable
returns from its involvement with the entity and has the ability
to affect those returns through its power over the entity. When
assessing whether the Group has power, only substantive rights
(held by the Group and other parties) are considered.

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into the consolidated
financial statements from the date that control commences until
the date that control ceases. Intra-group balances, transactions
and cash flows, and any unrealised profits arising from intra-group
transactions, are eliminated in full in preparing the consolidated
financial statements. Unrealised losses resulting from intra-group
transactions are eliminated in the same way as unrealised gains, but
only to the extent that there is no evidence of impairment.

Non-controlling interests represent the equity in a subsidiary not
attributable directly or indirectly to the Company, and in respect
of which the Group has not agreed any additional terms with the
holders of those interests which would result in the Group as a
whole having a contractual obligation in respect of those interests
that meets the definition of a financial liability. For each business
combination, the Group can elect to measure any non-controlling
interests either at fair value or at the non-controlling interests’
proportionate share of the subsidiary’s net identifiable assets.

Non-controlling interests are presented in the consolidated
statement of financial position within equity, separately from equity
attributable to the equity shareholders of the Company. Non-
controlling interests in the results of the Group are presented on
the face of the consolidated statement of profit or loss and the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income as an allocation of the total profit or loss and total
comprehensive income for the year between non-controlling
interests and the equity shareholders of the Company.

Changes in the Group’s interests in a subsidiary that do not result in
a loss of control are accounted for as equity transactions, whereby
adjustments are made to the amounts of controlling and non-
controlling interests within consolidated equity to reflect the change
in relative interests, but no gain or loss is recognised.
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(a)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 7% 3R R B &

For the year ended 3| March 2016 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests (continued)

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, it is accounted
for as a disposal of the entire interest in that subsidiary, with a
resulting gain or loss being recognised in profit or loss. Any interest
retained in that former subsidiary at the date when control is lost is
recognised at fair value and this amount is regarded as the fair value
on initial recognition of a financial asset (see note 1(g)) or, when
appropriate, the cost on initial recognition of an investment in an
associate or joint venture (see note 1(d)).

In the Company’s statement of financial position, an investment in a
subsidiary is stated at cost less impairment losses (see note 1(k)).

Associates and joint ventures

An associate is an entity in which the Group has significant
influence, but not control or joint control, over its management,
including participation in the financial and operating policy decisions.

A joint venture is an arrangement whereby the Group and other
parties contractually agree to share control of the arrangement, and
have rights to the net assets of the arrangement.

An investment in an associate or a joint venture is accounted for in
the consolidated financial statements under the equity method and
is initially recorded at cost, adjusted for any excess of the Group’s
share of the acquisition-date fair values of the investee’s identifiable
net assets over the cost of the investment (if any). Thereafter,
the investment is adjusted for the post acquisition change in the
Group’s share of the investee’s net assets and any impairment
loss relating to the investment (see note 1(k)). Any acquisition-
date excess over cost, the Group’s share of the post-acquisition,
post-tax results of the investees and any impairment losses for the
year are recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss,
whereas the Group’s share of the post-acquisition post-tax items
of the investees’ other comprehensive income is recognised in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income.

When the Group’s share of losses exceeds its interest in the
associate or the joint venture, the Group’s interest is reduced to
nil and recognition of further losses is discontinued except to the
extent that the Group has incurred legal or constructive obligations
or made payments on behalf of the investee. For this purpose, the
Group’s interest is the carrying amount of the investment under the
equity method together with the Group’s long-term interests that in
substance form part of the Group’s net investment in the associate
or the joint venture.

Unrealised profits and losses resulting from transactions between
the Group and its associate and joint ventures are eliminated to
the extent of the Group’s interest in the investee, except where
unrealised losses provide evidence of an impairment of the asset
transferred, in which case they are recognised immediately in profit
or loss.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 7% 3R R B

For the year ended 3| March 2016 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
HE-F-—AF=A=t—BLEE CUETH)

(e)

40

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Associates and joint ventures (continued)

If an investment in an associate becomes an investment in a joint
venture or vice versa, retained interest is not remeasured. Instead,
the investment continues to be accounted for under the equity
method.

In all other cases, when the Group ceases to have significant
influence over an associate or joint control over a joint venture, it is
accounted for as a disposal of the entire interest in that investee,
with a resulting gain or loss being recognised in profit or loss. Any
interest retained in that former investee at the date when significant
influence or joint control is lost is recognised at fair value and this
amount is regarded as the fair value on initial recognition of a
financial asset (see note 1(g)).

In the Company’s statement of financial position, investments in
an associate and joint ventures are stated at cost less impairment
losses (see note 1(k)).

Other investments in debt and equity securities

The Group’s policies for investments in debt and equity securities,
other than investments in subsidiaries, an associate and joint
ventures, are as follows:

Investments in debt and equity securities are initially stated at fair
value, which is their transaction price unless it is determined that the
fair value at initial recognition differs from the transaction price and
that fair value is evidenced by a quoted price in an active market for
an identical asset or liability or based on a valuation technique that
uses only data from observable markets. Cost includes attributable
transaction costs, except where indicated otherwise below. These
investments are subsequently accounted for as follows, depending
on their classification:

Investments in securities held for trading are classified as current
assets. Any attributable transaction costs are recognised in profit or
loss as incurred. At the end of each reporting period the fair value
is remeasured, with any resultant gain or loss being recognised in
profit or loss. The net gain or loss recognised in profit or loss does
not include any dividends or interest earned on these investments
as these are recognised in accordance with the policies set out in
notes 1(t)(iv) and 1(t)(v).

Dated debt securities that the Group have the positive ability and
intention to hold to maturity are classified as held-to-maturity
securities. Held-to-maturity securities are stated at amortised cost
less impairment losses (see note 1(k)).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 3| March 2016 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Other investments in debt and equity securities (continued)

Investments in securities which do not fall into any of the above
categories are classified as available-for-sale securities. At the end
of each reporting period the fair value is remeasured, with any
resultant gain or loss being recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated separately in equity in the investment
revaluation reserve. As an exception to this, investments in equity
securities that do not have a quoted price in an active market for
an identical instrument and whose fair value cannot otherwise be
reliably measured are recognised in the consolidated statement
of financial position at cost less impairment losses (see note 1(k)).
Dividend income from equity securities and interest income from
debt securities calculated using the effective interest method are
recognised in profit or loss in accordance with the policies set out in
notes 1(t)(iv) and 1(t)(v), respectively.

When the investments are derecognised or impaired (see note 1(k)),
the cumulative gain or loss recognised in equity is reclassified to
profit or loss.

Investments are recognised/derecognised on the date the Group
commits to purchase/sell the investments or they expire.

Cash flow hedges

Where a derivative financial instrument is designated as a hedge
of the variability in cash flows of a recognised asset or liability or a
highly probable forecast transaction or the foreign currency risk of
a committed future transaction, the effective portion of any gains
or losses on remeasurement of the derivative financial instrument
to fair value are recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated separately in equity in the hedging reserve. The
ineffective portion of any gain or loss is recognised immediately in
profit or loss.

If a hedge of a forecast transaction subsequently results in the
recognition of a non-financial asset or non-financial liability, the
associated gain or loss is reclassified from equity to be included in
the initial cost or other carrying amount of the non-financial asset or
liability.

If a hedge of a forecast transaction subsequently results in the
recognition of a financial asset or a financial liability, the associated
gain or loss is reclassified from equity to profit or loss in the same
period or periods during which the asset acquired or liability
assumed affects profit or loss (such as when interest income or
expense is recognised).

For cash flow hedges, other than those covered by the preceding
two policy statements, the associated gain or loss is reclassified
from equity to profit or loss in the same period or periods during
which the hedged forecast transaction affects profit or loss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Cash flow hedges (continued)

When a hedging instrument expires or is sold, terminated
or exercised, or the entity revokes designation of the hedge
relationship but the hedged forecast transaction is still expected to
occur, the cumulative gain or loss at that point remains in equity
until the transaction occurs and it is recognised in accordance with
the above policy. If the hedged transaction is no longer expected to
take place, the cumulative unrealised gain or loss is reclassified from
equity to profit or loss immediately.

Investment properties

Investment properties are land and/or buildings which are owned
or held under a leasehold interest (see note 1(j)) to earn rental
income and/or for capital appreciation. These include land held
for a currently undetermined future use and property that is being
constructed or developed for future use as investment properties.

Investment properties are stated at fair value unless they are still
in the course of construction or development at the end of the
reporting period and their fair value cannot be reliably measured at
that time. Any gain or loss arising from a change in fair value or from
the retirement or disposal of an investment property is recognised
in profit or loss. Rental income from investment properties is
accounted for as described in note 1(t)(iii).

When the Group holds a property interest under an operating lease
to earn rental income and/or for capital appreciation, the interest
is classified and accounted for as an investment property on a
property-by-property basis. Any such property interest which has
been classified as an investment property is accounted for as if it
were held under a finance lease, and the same accounting policies
are applied to that interest as are applied to other investment
properties leased under finance leases.

Other property, plant and equipment

Other items of property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses (see note 1(k)).

When an owner-occupied property becomes an investment
property carried at fair value, the property is revalued at the date
of transfer. Any resulting decrease in the carrying amount of the
property is recognised in profit or loss and any resulting increase in
carrying amount is recognised in other comprehensive income and
increase in the land and buildings revaluation reserve.

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal of an item
of property, plant and equipment are determined as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the
item and are recognised in profit or loss on the date of retirement
or disposal. Any related revaluation surplus is transferred from the
land and buildings revaluation reserve to retained profits and is not
reclassified to profit or loss.
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B 7% 3R R B &

For the year ended 3| March 2016 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Other property, plant and equipment (continued)

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of items of property,
plant and equipment, less their estimated residual value, if any, using
the straight-line method over their estimated useful lives as follows:

—  Leasehold land is depreciated on a straight-line basis over the
remaining term of the lease;

—  Buildings situated on leasehold land are depreciated over the
shorter of the unexpired term of the lease and their estimated
useful lives, being no more than 60 years after the date of
completion;

—  Plant and machinery between 4 to 10 years; and

—  Other assets between 3 to 5 years.

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have
different useful lives, the cost of the item is allocated on a
reasonable basis between the parts and each part is depreciated
separately. Both the useful life of an asset and its residual value, if
any, are reviewed annually.

Intangible assets

Intangible assets that are acquired by the Group are stated at
cost less accumulated amortisation (where the estimated useful
life is finite) and impairment losses (see note 1(k)). Amortisation of
intangible assets with finite useful lives is charged to profit or loss on
a straight-line basis over the assets’ estimated useful lives. Both the
period and method of amortisation are reviewed annually.

Intangible assets are not amortised while their useful lives are
assessed to be indefinite. Any conclusion that the useful life of
an intangible asset is indefinite is reviewed annually to determine
whether events and circumstances continue to support the indefinite
useful life assessment for that asset. If they do not, the change in
the useful life assessment from indefinite to finite is accounted for
prospectively from the date of change and in accordance with the
policy for amortisation of intangible assets with finite lives as set out
above.

Leased assets

An arrangement, comprising a transaction or a series of
transactions, is or contains a lease if the Group determines that
the arrangement conveys a right to use a specific asset or assets
for an agreed period of time in return for a payment or a series of
payments. Such a determination is made based on an evaluation of
the substance of the arrangement and is regardless of whether the
arrangement takes the legal form of a lease.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Leased assets (continued)
Classification of assets leased to the Group

Assets that are held by the Group under leases which transfer to
the Group substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership are
classified as being held under finance leases. Leases which do
not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership
to the Group are classified as operating leases, with the following
exceptions:

—  property held under operating leases that would otherwise
meet the definition of an investment property is classified as
investment property on a property-by-property basis and, if
classified as investment property, is accounted for as if held
under a finance lease (see note 1(g)); and

— land held for own use under an operating lease, the fair value
of which cannot be measured separately from the fair value
of a building situated thereon at the inception of the lease, is
accounted for as being held under a finance lease, unless the
building is also clearly held under an operating lease. For these
purposes, the inception of the lease is the time that the lease
was first entered into by the Group, or taken over from the
previous lessee.

Operating lease charges

Where the Group has the use of assets held under operating leases,
payments made under the leases are charged to profit or loss in
equal instalments over the accounting periods covered by the lease
term, except where an alternative basis is more representative of
the pattern of benefits to be derived from the leased asset. Lease
incentives received are recognised in profit or loss as an integral part
of the aggregate net lease payments made.

The cost of acquiring land held under an operating lease is
amortised on a straight-line basis over the period of the lease term
except where the property is classified as an investment property
(see note 1(q)).
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For the year ended 3| March 2016 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Impairment of assets

Impairment of investments in debt and equity securities and other
receivables

Investments in debt and equity securities and other current and
non-current receivables that are stated at cost or amortised cost
or are classified as available-for-sale securities are reviewed at the
end of each reporting period to determine whether there is objective
evidence of impairment. Objective evidence of impairment includes
observable data that comes to the attention of the Group about one
or more of the following loss events:

significant financial difficulty of the debtor;

a breach of contract, such as a default or delinquency in
interest or principal payments;

it becoming probable that the debtor will enter bankruptcy or
other financial reorganisation;

significant changes in the technological, market, economic or
legal environment that have an adverse effect on the debtor;
and

a significant or prolonged decline in the fair value of an
investment in an equity instrument below its cost.

If any such evidence exists, any impairment loss is determined and
recognised as follows:

For investments in an associate and joint ventures accounted
for under the equity method in the consolidated financial
statements (see note 1(d)), the impairment loss is measured
by comparing the recoverable amount of the investment
with its carrying amount in accordance with note 1(k)(ii). The
impairment loss is reversed if there has been a favourable
change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable
amount in accordance with note 1(k)(ii).

For unquoted equity securities carried at cost, the impairment
loss is measured as the difference between the carrying
amount of the financial asset and the estimated future cash
flows, discounted at the current market rate of return for
a similar financial asset where the effect of discounting is
material. Impairment losses for equity securities carried at cost
are not reversed.

For trade and other current receivables and other financial
assets carried at amortised cost, the impairment loss is
measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying
amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows,
discounted at the financial asset’s original effective interest rate
(i.e. the effective interest rate computed at initial recognition of
these assets), where the effect of discounting is material. This
assessment is made collectively where these financial assets
share similar risk characteristics, such as similar past due
status, and have not been individually assessed as impaired.
Future cash flows for financial assets which are assessed for
impairment collectively are based on historical loss experience
for assets with credit risk characteristics similar to the collective

group.
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For the year ended 3| March 2016 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
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1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 1.
(continued)

(k) Impairment of assets (continued)

(i) Impairment of investments in debt and equity securities and other

(ii)

receivables (continued)

If in a subsequent period the amount of an impairment loss
decreases and the decrease can be linked objectively to an
event occurring after the impairment loss was recognised, the
impairment loss is reversed through profit or loss. A reversal
of an impairment loss shall not result in the asset’s carrying
amount exceeding that which would have been determined
had no impairment loss been recognised in prior years.

—  For available-for-sale equity securities, the cumulative loss that
has been recognised in the investment revaluation reserve is
reclassified to profit or loss. The amount of the cumulative loss
that is recognised in profit or loss is the difference between
the acquisition cost (net of any principal repayment and
amortisation) and current fair value, less any impairment loss
on that asset previously recognised in profit or loss.

Impairment losses recognised in profit or loss in respect of
available-for-sale equity securities are not reversed through
profit or loss. Any subsequent increase in the fair value of such
assets is recognised in other comprehensive income.

Impairment losses are written off against the corresponding assets
directly, except for impairment losses recognised in respect of
trade debtors and bills receivable included within trade and other
receivables, whose recovery is considered doubtful but not remote.
In this case, the impairment losses for doubtful debts are recorded
using an allowance account. When the Group is satisfied that
recovery is remote, the amount considered irrecoverable is written
off against trade debtors and bills receivable directly and any
amounts held in the allowance account relating to that debt are
reversed. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously charged to
the allowance account are reversed against the allowance account.
Other changes in the allowance account and subsequent recoveries
of amounts previously written off directly are recognised in profit or
loss.

Impairment of other assets

Internal and external sources of information are reviewed at the end
of each reporting period to identify indications that the following
assets may be impaired or an impairment loss previously recognised
no longer exists or may have decreased:

—  other property, plant and equipment;

—  pre-paid interests in leasehold land classified as being held for
own use under an operating lease;

- intangible assets; and

— investments in subsidiaries, an associate and joint ventures in
the Company’s statement of financial position.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 7% 3R R B &

For the year ended 3| March 2016 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Impairment of assets (continued)

Impairment of other assets (continued)

If any such indication exists, the asset’s recoverable amount is
estimated. In addition, for intangible assets that have indefinite useful
lives, the recoverable amount is estimated annually whether or not
there is any indication of impairment.

Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an asset is the greater of its fair
value less costs of disposal and value in use. In assessing
value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to
their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value of money and
the risks specific to the asset. Where an asset does not
generate cash inflows largely independent of those from other
assets, the recoverable amount is determined for the smallest
group of assets that generates cash inflows independently (i.e.
a cash-generating unit).

Recognition of impairment losses

An impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss if the carrying
amount of an asset, or the cash-generating unit to which it
belongs, exceeds its recoverable amount. Impairment losses
recognised in respect of cash-generating units are allocated
to reduce the carrying amount of the other assets in the unit
(or group of units) on a pro rata basis, except that the carrying
value of an asset will not be reduced below its individual fair
value less costs of disposal (if measurable) or value in use (if
determinable).

Reversals of impairment losses

An impairment loss is reversed if there has been a favourable
change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable
amount.

A reversal of an impairment loss is limited to the asset’'s
carrying amount that would have been determined had no
impairment loss been recognised in prior years. Reversals of
impairment losses are credited to profit or loss in the year in
which the reversals are recognised.
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For the year ended 3| March 2016 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Impairment of assets (continued)
Interim financial reporting and impairment

Under the Listing Rules, the Group is required to prepare an interim
financial report in compliance with HKAS 34, Interim financial
reporting, in respect of the first six months of the financial year.
At the end of the interim period, the Group applies the same
impairment testing, recognition, and reversal criteria as it would at
the end of the financial year (see notes 1(k)(i) and (ii)).

Impairment losses recognised in an interim period in respect of
available-for-sale equity securities and unquoted equity securities
carried at cost are not reversed in a subsequent period. This is the
case even if no loss, or a smaller loss, would have been recognised
had the impairment been assessed only at the end of the financial
year to which the interim period relates. Consequently, if the
fair value of an available-for-sale equity security increases in the
remainder of the annual period, or in any other period subsequently,
the increase is recognised in other comprehensive income and not
profit or loss.

Inventories

Inventories are carried at the lower of cost and net realisable value.

Cost is calculated using the weighted average cost formula and
comprises all costs of purchase, costs of conversion and other
costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location
and condition.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary
course of business less the estimated costs of completion and the
estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of those inventories
is recognised as an expense in the period in which the related
revenue is recognised. The amount of any write-down of inventories
to net realisable value and all losses of inventories are recognised as
an expense in the period the write-down or loss occurs. The amount
of any reversal of any write-down of inventories is recognised as a
reduction in the amount of inventories recognised as an expense in
the period in which the reversal occurs.

Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are initially recognised at fair value
and thereafter stated at amortised cost using the effective interest
method, less allowance for impairment of doubtful debts (see note
1(k)), except where the receivables are interest-free loans made to
related parties without any fixed repayment terms or the effect of
discounting would be immaterial. In such cases, the receivables are
stated at cost less allowance for impairment of doubtful debts.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 7% 3R R B &

For the year ended 3| March 2016 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Interest-bearing borrowings

Interest-bearing borrowings are recognised initially at fair value less
attributable transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition,
interest-bearing borrowings are stated at amortised cost with any
difference between the amount initially recognised and redemption
value being recognised in profit or loss over the period of the
borrowings, together with any interest and fees payable, using the
effective interest method.

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are initially recognised at fair value. Except
for financial guarantee liabilities measured in accordance with
note 1(s)(i), trade and other payables are subsequently stated at
amortised cost unless the effect of discounting would be immaterial,
in which case they are stated at cost.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and on hand,
demand deposits with banks and other financial institutions, and
short-term, highly liquid investments that are readily convertible into
known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant
risk of changes in value, having been within three months of maturity
at acquisition.

Employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits and contributions to defined contribution
retirement plans

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave, contributions to
defined contribution retirement plans and the cost of non-monetary
benefits are accrued in the year in which the associated services are
rendered by employees. Where payment or settlement is deferred
and the effect would be material, these amounts are stated at their
present values.

Long service payments

The Group’s net obligations in respect of long service payments
are the amounts of future benefits that employees have earned in
return for their services in the current and prior periods, calculated in
accordance with the relevant laws.

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised at the earlier of when the Group
can no longer withdraw the offer of these benefits and when it
recognises restructuring costs involving the payment of termination
benefits.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 7% 3R R B

For the year ended 3| March 2016 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Income tax

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and movements in
deferred tax assets and liabilities. Current tax and movements in
deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognised in profit or loss
except to the extent that they relate to items recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case the
relevant amounts of tax are recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, respectively.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income for
the year, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the
end of the reporting period, and any adjustment to tax payable in
respect of previous years.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from deductible and taxable
temporary differences respectively, being the differences between
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting
purposes and their tax bases. Deferred tax assets also arise from
unused tax losses and unused tax credits.

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all deferred tax liabilities, and
all deferred tax assets to the extent that it is probable that future
taxable profits will be available against which the asset can be
utilised, are recognised. Future taxable profits that may support the
recognition of deferred tax assets arising from deductible temporary
differences include those that will arise from the reversal of existing
taxable temporary differences, provided those differences relate
to the same taxation authority and the same taxable entity, and
are expected to reverse either in the same period as the expected
reversal of the deductible temporary difference or in periods into
which a tax loss arising from the deferred tax asset can be carried
forward. The same criteria are adopted when determining whether
existing taxable temporary differences support the recognition of
deferred tax assets arising from unused tax losses and credits, that
is, those differences are taken into account if they relate to the same
taxation authority and the same taxable entity, and are expected to
reverse in a period, or periods, in which the tax loss or credit can be
utilised.

The limited exceptions to recognition of deferred tax assets and
liabilities are those temporary differences arising from the initial
recognition of assets or liabilities that affect neither accounting nor
taxable profit (provided they are not part of a business combination),
and temporary differences relating to investments in subsidiaries
to the extent that, in the case of taxable differences, the Group
controls the timing of the reversal and it is probable that the
differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future, or in the case of
deductible differences, unless it is probable that they will reverse in
the future.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 7% 3R R B &

For the year ended 3| March 2016 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Income tax (continued)

Where investment properties are carried at their fair value in
accordance with the accounting policy set out in note 1(g), the
amount of deferred tax recognised is measured using the tax rates
that would apply on sale of those assets at their carrying value at
the reporting date unless the property is depreciable and is held
within a business model whose objective is to consume substantially
all of the economic benefits embodied in the property over time,
rather than through sale. In all other cases, the amount of deferred
tax recognised is measured based on the expected manner of
realisation or settlement of the carrying amount of the assets and
liabilities, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the
end of the reporting period. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are not
discounted.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is reviewed at the
end of each reporting period and is reduced to the extent that it
is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available
to allow the related tax benefit to be utilised. Any such reduction
is reversed to the extent that it becomes probable that sufficient
taxable profits will be available.

Additional income taxes that arise from the distribution of dividends
are recognised when the liability to pay the related dividends is
recognised.

Current tax balances and deferred tax balances, and movements
therein, are presented separately from each other and are not
offset. Current tax assets are offset against current tax liabilities,
and deferred tax assets against deferred tax liabilities, if the Group
has the legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets against
current tax liabilities and the following additional conditions are met:

- in the case of current tax assets and liabilities, the Group
intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realise the asset
and settle the liability simultaneously; or

— in the case of deferred tax assets and liabilities, if they relate to
income taxes levied by the same taxation authority on either:

—  the same taxable entity; or

—  different taxable entities, which, in each future period
in which significant amounts of deferred tax liabilities
or assets are expected to be settled or recovered,
intend to realise the current tax assets and settle the
current tax liabilities on a net basis or realise and settle
simultaneously.
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For the year ended 3| March 2016 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Financial guarantees issued, provisions and contingent liabilities
Financial guarantees issued

Financial guarantees are contracts that require the issuer (i.e. the
guarantor) to make specified payments to reimburse the beneficiary
of the guarantee (the “holder”) for a loss the holder incurs because
a specified debtor fails to make payment when due in accordance
with the terms of a debt instrument.

Where the Group issues a financial guarantee, the fair value of the
guarantee is initially recognised as deferred income within trade and
other payables. The fair value of financial guarantees issued at the
time of issuance is determined by reference to fees charged in an
arm’s length transaction for similar services, when such information
is obtainable, or is otherwise estimated by reference to interest
rate differentials, by comparing the actual rates charged by lenders
when the guarantee is made available with the estimated rates
that lenders would have charged, had the guarantees not been
available, where reliable estimates of such information can be made.
Where consideration is received or receivable for the issuance of
the guarantee, the consideration is recognised in accordance with
the Group’s policies applicable to that category of asset. Where
no such consideration is received or receivable, an immediate
expense is recognised in profit or loss on initial recognition of any
deferred income. Where the guarantee is issued by the Company in
respect of the banking facilities granted to its subsidiaries, the asset
identified is a form of capital contribution, i.e. an addition to the cost
of the investment in the subsidiary.

The amount of the guarantee initially recognised as deferred income
is amortised in profit or loss over the term of the guarantee as
income from financial guarantees issued. In addition, provisions are
recognised in accordance with note 1(s)(ii) if and when (j) it becomes
probable that the holder of the guarantee will call upon the Group
under the guarantee, and (i) the amount of that claim on the Group
is expected to exceed the amount currently carried in trade and
other payables in respect of that guarantee i.e. the amount initially
recognised, less accumulated amortisation.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 3| March 2016 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Financial guarantees issued, provisions and contingent liabilities
(continued)

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for other liabilities of uncertain timing
or amount when the Group has a legal or constructive obligation
arising as a result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow
of economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and
a reliable estimate can be made. Where the time value of money
is material, provisions are stated at the present value of the
expenditure expected to settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits
will be required, or the amount cannot be estimated reliably, the
obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the probability
of outflow of economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations,
whose existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-
occurrence of one or more future events are also disclosed as
contingent liabilities unless the probability of outflow of economic
benefits is remote.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received
or receivable. Provided it is probable that the economic benefits will
flow to the Group and the revenue and costs, if applicable, can be
measured reliably, revenue is recognised in profit or loss as follows:

Sale of goods

Revenue is recognised when goods are delivered at the customers’
premises or when goods are shipped on board, depending on the
terms agreed with customers, which is taken to be the point in time
when the customer has accepted the goods and the related risks
and rewards of ownership. Revenue excludes value added tax or
other sales taxes and is after deduction of any trade discounts.

Processing service income, management fee income and commission
income

Processing service income, management fee income and
commission income are recognised when the relevant services are
rendered.

(iii) Property rental income

Rental income receivable under operating leases is recognised in
profit or loss in equal instalments over the periods covered by the
lease term, except where an alternative basis is more representative
of the pattern of benefits to be derived from the use of the leased
asset. Lease incentives granted are recognised in profit or loss as
an integral part of the aggregate net lease payments receivable.
Contingent rentals are recognised as income in the accounting
period in which they are earned.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 7% 3R R B

For the year ended 3| March 2016 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
HE-F-—AF=A=t—BLEE CUETH)

v)

(vi)

(w)

54

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Revenue recognition (continued)
Dividends

Dividend income from unlisted investments is recognised when the
shareholder’s right to receive payment is established.

Interest income

Interest income is recognised as it accrues using the effective
interest method.

Government grants

Government grants are recognised in the statement of financial
position initially when there is reasonable assurance that they will
be received and that the Group will comply with the conditions
attaching to them. Grants that compensate the Group for expenses
incurred are recognised as income in profit or loss on a systematic
pbasis in the same periods in which the expenses are incurred.

Translation of foreign currencies

ltems included in the financial statements of each of the Group’s
subsidiaries are measured using the currency of the primary
economic environment in which the entity operates (“the functional
currency”). The consolidated financial statements are presented
in Hong Kong dollars, which is the Company’s functional and
presentation currency.

Foreign currency transactions during the year are translated at the
foreign exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates. Monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are
translated at the foreign exchange rates ruling at the end of the
reporting period. Exchange gains and losses are recognised in profit
or loss.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured in terms of
historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the foreign
exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates. Non-monetary assets
and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies that are stated at fair
value are translated using the foreign exchange rates ruling at the
dates the fair value was measured.

The results of foreign operations are translated into Hong
Kong dollars at the exchange rates approximating the foreign
exchange rates ruling at the dates of the transactions. Statement
of financial position items are translated into Hong Kong dollars
at the closing foreign exchange rates at the end of the reporting
period. The resulting exchange differences are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated separately in equity in the
exchange reserve.

On disposal of a foreign operation, the cumulative amount of the
exchange differences relating to that foreign operation is reclassified
from equity to profit or loss when the profit or loss on disposal is
recognised.

YANGTZEKIANG GARMENT LIMITED RT3 &4 A |

ANNUAL REPORT 2016 & %R

2 oy al ok (41)

(t) WeAmER (B)
(iv) BB

b 4 2 S AR AE R OB R 2
R M) o e R Ry A B T RE -

(v) HEBKLE

S i i S 2 B R R B 3 TE E AR I AR o

(vi) BN 4

AT LA B E AR SR T U B BUR R BY
7 B JE AT 5% 4 B B B A R 1R R B & Ak
T 5 AR DL 2K B il B RS o S 980 4
AEEOEETHMB > &S EL
9 303 ] A 2% A 4 A 28 10 R R 2 Wi AR o

(u) AW

A 45 T S JB8 28 R 45 B 22 B R P LA 2
HESMEAZEEESE 2 TREERTZ
BWEE (TR EW ] - o MBHREL
BEIIR - BRAALFRZ RN K E
5| £ W -

B 4F 2 B SR 2 $E R RS o B 2 AN
SRR o AN EHEN B EE XA
IR A5 H I SR S R o BE
L AR i KRR -

DA st BAS w8 1) S0 O B W B
B 5 B ERBRE o DA T EEF
19 S0 I B W M B B DL E
TR {E Y HE S R

\

3> D Sy

e ShSEHs 2 SEHUR 1% AL 52 5 A RO BE =
WA BT - MBRULRIEE R &R A
Y BE A F o BE S8 22 BRI 23 il it R L A
TR WS A e B S B A RE AR A 2 S A o

H B i AP SEBS I > B AR B 1R BT
FR o AR AP SES Y RE S0 R 2 RSt
TREEFER B EEER -



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 7% 3R R B &

For the year ended 3| March 2016 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(v) Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they are
incurred.

(w) Related parties

(1) A person, or a close member of that person’s family, is related
to the Group if that person:

(i)  has control or joint control over the Group;
(i)  has significant influence over the Group; or

(i) is a member of the key management personnel of the
Group or the Group’s parent.

(2) An entity is related to the Group if any of the following
conditions applies:

(i)  The entity and the Group are members of the same group
(which means that each parent, subsidiary and fellow
subsidiary is related to the others).

(i) One entity is an associate or joint venture of the other
entity (or an associate or joint venture of a member of a
group of which the other entity is a member).

(i)  Both entities are joint ventures of the same third party.

(iv) One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the other
entity is an associate of the third entity.

(v) The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the
benefit of employees of either the Group or an entity
related to the Group.

(vi) The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person
identified in (1).

(vi) A person identified in (1)(i) has significant influence
over the entity or is a member of the key management
personnel of the entity (or of a parent of the entity).

(vii) The entity, or any member of a group of which it is a
part, provides key management personnel services to the
Group or to the Group’s parent.

Close members of the family of a person are those family members
who may be expected to influence, or be influenced by, that person
in their dealings with the entity.

BHE—

T—RF=ZA= + Eiifﬂ%ﬁmﬁ)

1. B A ah R (8)

(v) fi§ B AS
B A ¥ TE 8 £ B B [ N 31 52 -

(w) BEAL

(1)

i A L SO ER B R B B
R R A BN L i % AR
AL

(i) f2 ] SO R 2 A SR
(i) BAEBAERNZERS K

(i) 2 A 4E B o A 4 B BE N ) R A
HMABWEZ — -

— I8 B A A AR T SR AR R
PR RAEE AL

(i) % EC BN AR 4R T2 [R] — 4 I A9 R
B (ML R - 8N R K
2 W 8 2x F O AR LAY

(i) — 1A EHR S — A A
HEEEE (R AERAE &
BB R B F B A
My —HEAE—EEZRE) -

(i) WAMEEEREE AR = A o

(iv) — A B R 5 = B 0 5
3 M0 — A R =
e RO N A

(v) WZE Y5 R T AR B B A
4 1A ) 2 AR 0 (R AR AR
A A w1 o

(vi) w%H 8 Z E () s N L B
ol 3t [ 2 )
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%ﬁik%ﬁﬁiﬁﬁg% %
BEHEgAA) TEEHAEREZ

—

(viii) [a] A= 4E 9 o A 4 [ B 2N\ 4R 4t
T A B AR 2 E B sk CH T &
EEHZALM R E NF -

IR BN = B 2 OBL B R B 9 R B I R B
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A e
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For the year ended 3| March 2016 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
HE-F-—AF=A=t—BLEE CUETH)

56

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment item
reported in the financial statements, are identified from the financial
information provided regularly to the Group’s most senior executive
management for the purposes of allocating resources to, and
assessing the performance of, the Group’s various lines of business
and geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not aggregated for
financial reporting purposes unless the segments have similar
economic characteristics and are similar in respect of the nature
of products and services, the nature of production processes, the
type or class of customers, the methods used to distribute the
products or provide the services, and the nature of the regulatory
environment. Operating segments which are not individually material
may be aggregated if they share a majority of these criteria.

CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The HKICPA has issued the following amendments to HKFRSs that
are first effective for the current accounting period of the Group:

—  Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2010-2012 Cycle
- Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2011-2013 Cycle

The Group has not applied any new standard or interpretation that
is not yet effective for the current accounting period. Impacts of the
adoption of the amended HKFRSs are discussed below:

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2010-2012 Cycle and 2011-2013
Cycle

These two cycles of annual improvements contain amendments to
nine standards with consequential amendments to other standards.
Among them, HKAS 24, Related party disclosures has been
amended to expand the definition of a “related party” to include
a management entity that provides key management personnel
services to the reporting entity, and to require the disclosure of the
amounts incurred for obtaining the key management personnel
services provided by the management entity. These amendments
do not have an impact on the Group’s related party disclosures as
the Group does not obtain key management personnel services
from management entities.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1 7% R & MY o

For the year ended 3| March 2016 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BE_Z—RF=A=1+—HILFE (L&)

3. REVENUE

At~ RO TR B A EMHE -

The principal activities of the Group are the manufacture and sale of
garments and textiles, provision of processing services and rental of
properties.

WA BMEERES &M EEE - MT
e 55 Wi 4 e A < WAt o TR AR TR Tl RE I A%
ZA S HA AT

Revenue represents the invoiced value of goods supplied to
customers, processing service income and rental income. The
amount of each significant category of revenue recognised during
the year is as follows:

2016 2015
RN B Sl S
$°000 $°000
T T
Manufacture and sale of garments B T8 AR 866,463 1,030,187
Manufacture and sale of textiles 3 T BH B BT AR 35,443 72,920
Processing service income in TR S i 25 27,270 20,924
Property rental income W) 2ETH 4 i i 9,258 9,833
938,434 1,133,864
The Group’s customer base is diversified and includes two KEFZEFREMBRESEW  HP MM

customers (2015: one) with whom transactions have exceeded
10% of the Group’s revenue. For the year ended 31 March 2016,
revenue from sales of garments to these customers amounted
to approximately $107,697,000 (2015: $105,886,000) and
$100,029,000 (2015: $139,075,000). Details of the concentrations
of credit risk arising from the customers are set out in note 26(a).

(ZF—HAFE . — ) BT WS EEER
AEBMBAZI0O% - BHE -FE—XRNF=H
=T —HIEFEE > KRHEETEZEEFN
B % B 49107,697,0007C (=& —TLAF -
105,886,0007t) & #1100,029,0007C (.
F— L4 139,075,00078) - IZ&EEF
T 518 2 A5 88 R 10 42 w1 B0 5 4 571 B 78
M 5E26(a) -

4. OTHERINCOME ., A FofBMCE
2016 2015
R —NAE TE—HAR
$°000 $’000
T F
Net gain on disposal of a subsidiary Hh A — B RS 2 W 4 i RE
(note 14) (Ktat14) 4,490 =
Scrap income JBE Rl Wk £ 2,920 1,825
Government grants Qi ) 1,423 -
Interest income L 4 1,301 2,440
Dividend income from equity JBCHE 78 I 2 IS i 2=
securities 1,015 455
Management fee income CREENIEN 804 804
Write off of aged payables L B 1 A 3Kk TH 671 3,293
Commission income i e 435 19
Net gain on disposals of other MY BE KR
property, plant and equipment LG REIE | 25 3,698
Net exchange loss i 52, 5 15 13 A (4,199) (6,478)
Net claim (expenses)/income B (S ) i 4 1 (2,234) 75
Net loss on disposal of an associate 8 — W8 A ) e 18 AR
(note 15(b)) (B2 15(b) - (336)
Sundry income HoAth i 25 2,378 1,250
9,029 7,045
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 7% 3R 2 MY =E

For the year ended 3| March 2016 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
HE-F-—AF=A=t—BLEE CUETH)

5. PROFIT/(LOSS) BEFORE TAXATION = 5. BRGL§E#s,  OEsl). .
Profit/(loss) before taxation is arrived at after charging/(crediting): B AT A (B8 24k (5FA) -
2016 2015
“E A —E—hF
$°000 $°000
T For
(a) Finance costs (a) W& A
Interest on bank loans SRAT R R
(including bank charges) (ELI5 R 17 ) 2,970 3,659
Cash flow hedges: reclassified B4 v AR s
from equity (note 9(b)) 0 B (A 9(b)) 32 12
3,002 3,671
(b) Staff costs* (b) B T A
Salaries, wages and other e L' K H AR
benefits 168,962 181,458
Contributions to defined WE 7 b 3R AR 314t 3k
contribution retirement
schemes 13,897 15,861
Provision for long service 1= 01 IR 55 4 43 A 1
payments, net (note 24) ([} ##£24) 5,942 4,409
188,801 201,728
(c) Other items (c) HAb¥H
Cost of inventories’ 7B A 774,124 968,503
Amortisation of pre-paid TE AT AL &+ Hh K H Y
interests in leasehold land* o 58 60
Amortisation of intangible assets WV G B (Mt 13)
(note 13) 39 -
Depreciation® e 10,021 13,409
Net (gain)/loss on cash flow TEHE 25w BB 0 I
hedging instruments Bl e LR
reclassified from equity (W f5) /s 18 75 %4
(note 9(b)) (M #9(b)) (282) 141
Impairment losses on: WE R
- trade receivables (note 19(b)) — MR K (M £ 19(b)) 122 129
- other receivables (note 14) — H Al RE K (M aET4) 3,647 =
— interest in an associate - — WA AR AR
(note 15(a)) (K7 15(a)) - 1,220
Write off of other receivables At JRE o L i - 1,000
Auditors’ remuneration %% S5l P 4
- audit services - WA R 1,970 1,784
— other services — HoAth AR B 604 168
Operating lease charges: KEHEER
minimum lease payments B I AR B AT 3k EE
- property rentals* S E Vi 6,850 7,382
Rentals receivable from TG W) 3 E R 48 Tk
investment properties less H % 7 H1,163,0000C
direct outgoings of (F— R4
$1,163,000 (2015: $1,750,000) 1,750,0007C) (8,095) (8,083)
# Cost of inventories includes $104,818,000 (2015: $118,609,000) relating to # FEERRACTEE T l4A » A S+ K IE

58

staff costs, amortisation of pre-paid interests in leasehold land, depreciation

and operating lease charges, which amount is also included in the

respective total amounts disclosed separately above for each of these types

WO - T AR AL BN - A B OR 3
104,818,0007C (— % — Fi 4 : 118,609,000
TC) = A B AR B REALE £ S0 B BT R 2

of expenses.
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INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 7% 3R R B &

For the year ended 3| March 2016 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

Income tax in the consolidated statement of profit or loss

BE-F~F=A=t—BLEE WETH)
6. By 4820 3 i 1 O 49 B

(a)

BB R AR R TR PR AR B

represents:
2016 2015
RN TR AR
$°000 $'000
T+ FC
Current tax - Hong Kong AAEBLIE — A8
Profits Tax
Provision for the year A A Rl VE 4355 5 1,919 3,262
(Over)/under-provision in respect DUTEAT B (MRS MH)
of prior years AR (62) 52
e 18857 s,814
Current tax - Overseas A% AR BLH — BiAb
Provision for the year AR L TE 45 g 3,189 621
Under-provision in respect of DUFEAF BE B S 2
prior years - 4,239
.38 4,860
Deferred tax B %t BE
Origination and reversal BT 25 B AR R
of temporary differences ( 1,388) _________ 5 682
3,658 13,856

The provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax for 2016 is calculated at
16.5% (2015: 16.5%) of the estimated assessable profits for the

year.

Taxation for subsidiaries outside Hong Kong is charged at the
appropriate current rates of taxation ruling in the relevant countries.

T NAT A R A B R AR AR
Z Ak E SR A LA16.5% (& —TL4F -
16.5%) BBl K FTE o

A s 55 A0 O > ] 2 B TE S DAAH B B R
M2 BATB R R -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 7% 3R 2 MY =E

For the year ended 3| March 2016 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
HEZZ—R"F=A=+—HILFE (X&)

6. INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 6. HiOHBRI AP (H)
STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS (continued)

(0) Reconciliation between tax expense and accounting profit/(loss) at  (b) B TE 3 H & 51 A7 (ks 18) #8 F1 BL =

60

applicable tax rates: FHE AR
2016 2015
ZE N —E— A
$°000 $°000
T For
Profit/(loss) before taxation I Bl i 8 A (s $8) 8,015 (9,752)
Notional tax on profit/(loss) iz BEAE AR B R A A A
before taxation, calculated (s $5) 19 28 1 B R 51
at the rates applicable to B B iU A (s 3H) 19
profits/(losses) in the 2 FEBLIA
countries concerned (911) (5,156)
Tax effect of share of losses of JE Ak A %fh‘%& Wit 8 3
joint ventures and an associate &5 48 119 B JA Sy 2 7,098 5,178
Tax effect of non-deductible ASAT 09k 32 Y B TE B 2
expenses 7,561 2,708
Tax effect of non-taxable 78 51 B U A 1 Bl I 5 2
revenue (8,331) (3,656)
Tax effect of temporary KRR BT RE 2 A BLIE
difference not recognised 12 (2)
Tax effect of unrecognised tax i ﬂiﬁﬁﬁ B B S M 4R 1Y
losses utilised Tl TE 7 (2,247) =
Tax effect of unused tax losses I HlE R AR AT R BLES SR
not recognised Bl JH R 1,497 4,197
Tax effect of transfer from i &%‘%%ﬁﬁ"%ﬁﬁﬁ%% S
investment properties to W55 R w3 A 11 ol O R 2
other property, plant and
equipment - 4,365
Tax effect of undistributed G A FER A T i R Y
profits of joint ventures i JE R (29) 1,016
(Over)/under-provision in DAUTEAR B G )
respect of prior years MR 2 (62) 4,291
Others HoAth (930) 915
Actual tax expense BB BLE 3,658 13,856
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 7% 3R R B &

For the year ended 3| March 2016 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

7. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS

Directors’ emoluments disclosed pursuant to section 383(1) of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and Part 2 of the Companies

BRE-F-AF=A=T-ALTE GUETH)

ARE T O = 9] 565 38 3(1) ok I /) ($e %
R 4 R RG] 5 288 2 B E T B R 2

(Disclosure of Information about Benefits of Directors) Regulation are EHEMEW R
as follows:
Salaries, allowances Retirement scheme
Directors’ fees and benefits in kind  Discretionary bonuses contributions Total
e EEAR )Y Y LA 8 OR  f k it
2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015
ZE-AE CF-LF 20K CF-0F ZE2-AK CF-0F Z%2-0K CF-LF CR2-0E CF-4F
$000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000
Tr T T T Tr Tr T 7 Tr 7
Executive directors HifHE
Mr. Chan Sui Kau B ek 5 30 30 2,047 2,047 - - - - 2,077 2,077
Mr. Chan Wing Fui, Peter BxErs 30 30 1,911 1,911 - - - - 1,94 1,94
Mr. Chan Wing Kes Bk B 30 30 1,911 1,911 - - - - 14 1,041
Mr. Chan Wing To B 30 30 - - - - - - 30 30
Ms. Chan Suk Man ARkt 30 3 1,165 1,165 - - - - 1,195 1195
Mr. Chan Wing Sun, Samuel Bk 4 %6 30 30 - - - - - - 30 30
Ms. Chan Suk Ling, Shirley ~ FIB#A 4+ 30 30 - - - - - - 30 30
Mr. So Ying Woon, Alan RS Rt 30 30 1,446 1,420 530 410 16 63 2,022 1,923
Independent non-executive B3 kAT
directors
Mr. Leung Hok Lim REREE 160 160 - - - - - - 160 160
Mr. Lin Keping Hr¥PEsE 80 80 - - - - - - 80 80
Mr. Sze Cho Cheung, Michael  Hifl # 5 120 120 - - - - - - 120 120
Mr. Choi Ting Ki BRALE 100 100 - = - = - = 100 100
700 700 8,480 8,454 530 410 16 63 9,726 9,627

8. INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST EMOLUMENTS

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments, four (2015:
four) are directors whose emoluments are disclosed in note 7. The
emoluments of the other individual (2015: other individual) for the
year ended 31 March 2016 are as follows:

FE T (L R 2 Ao P (— B
4 UA) B A M 7
g - ME-FAFZA= LA
BEHAA L (ZB - A L) 2

ST
2016 2015
RN Sl
$°000 $°000
T I T
Salaries and other emoluments ¥4 N HoAth P 4 1,091 1,065
Discretionary bonuses 19 1% 16 AL 620 750
Retirement scheme contributions FERANGi [ REI 49 48
1,760 1,863

The emoluments of the individual (2015: the individual) with the
highest emoluments are within the following band:

A EoE I N (S — T %A

+) BB F TSR

2016 2015

A% 5 i

$1,000,001 to $2,000,000 1,000,0017E %#2,000,00078 1 1
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 7% 3R R B

For the year ended 3| March 2016 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
HE-F-—AF=A=t—BLEE CUETH)

9. OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

(a) Tax effects relating to each component of other comprehensive

9. b 2 viii UK At

(a)  FUfib 2 i HAC 4k 1 4% 2L K B 0 v B 5 3

income
2016 2015
“E-N v Sk
Before-tax Net-of-tax  Before-tax Net-of-tax
amount  Tax effect amount amount Tax effect amount
REiAH  REEE  REKEM  REWeE  BERE  REKSE
$1000 $7000 $7000 $1000 $000 $000
i A i Tz 7 Tz
Exchange differences on EiEH:
translation of:
- financial statements of ~BEBESINNE
subsidiaries outside Tk s ]
Hong Kong L (6,891) - (6,891) (62) - (62)
- share of an associate’s and -BREE R AT R
joint ventures’ net assets RELEEER (31,197) - (31,197) 686 = 686
(38,089) - (38,089) 624 . 624
Change in fair value recognised in FREAREEHRE
the investment revaluation MATEEES
reserve during the year (897) - (897) 114 - 114
Net movement in the hedging HINGE 28
reserve (1,160) 191 (969) 590 (97) 498
Surplus on revaluation of land THRBFEGR R
and buildings transferred to BREHENE
investment property - - - 834 - 834
Other comprehensive income BRI (40,145) 191 (39,954) 2,162 (97) 2,065
(b) Components of other comprehensive income (b) I i 2 v W 23 BY AL B By
2016 2015
TR —NAE ZE A
$°000 $'000
T Fr
Cash flow hedges: Bewi
Effective portion of changes ENHERE W LR Z A
in fair value of hedging B 43 1 N 1 {H 5 )
instruments recognised
during the year (910) 437
Reclassification adjustments for HH o0 S A R R £
amounts transferred to Z AR
profit or loss:
- revenue — A (282) 141
— finance costs — Al A 32 12
Net deferred tax credited/ AR JE ol T ¥ R
(charged) to other H Ath A THT A £ A
comprehensive income FEA L (Fn) 191 (97)
Net movement in the hedging AF R At 2 1 0k 2R R
reserve during the year TlE 2 0 3 o 8 A 5 )
recognised in other T #H
comprehensive income (969) 493
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(b)

(a)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 7% 3R R B &

For the year ended 3| March 2016 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

. EARNINGS/(LOSS) PER SHARE

Basic earnings/(loss) per share

The calculation of basic earnings/(loss) per share is based on the
profit attributable to ordinary equity shareholders of the Company
of $4,413,000 (2015: loss of $23,241,000) and 206,748,000 (2015:
206,748,000) ordinary shares in issue during the year.

Diluted earnings/(loss) per share

The diluted earnings/(loss) per share is the same as the basic
earnings/(loss) per share as there were no dilutive potential ordinary
shares in existence during the years ended 31 March 2016 and
2015.

. SEGMENT REPORTING

The Group manages its business by divisions. In a manner
consistent with the way in which information is reported internally to
the Group’s most senior executive management for the purposes
of resource allocation and performance assessment, the Group has
presented the following three reportable segments. No operating
segments have been aggregated to form the following reportable
segments:

—  Manufacture and sale of garments and textiles: this segment
covers the manufacture and sale of garment and textile
products, and provision of garment processing services.

— Interests in joint ventures: the Group’s joint ventures engage in
the manufacture and sale of textile yarn products.

—  Property leasing: this segment leases commercial and industrial
premises to generate rental income.

Segment results, assets and liabilities

For the purposes of assessing segment performance and allocating
resources between segments, the Group’s senior executive
management monitors the results, assets and liabilities attributable
to each reportable segment on the following bases:

Manufacture and sale of garments and textiles and property leasing
segments

Segment assets include all assets with the exception of intangible
assets, interest in an associate, other financial assets, deferred
tax assets, current tax recoverable and other corporate assets.
Segment liabilities include all liabilities managed directly by the
segments with the exception of current tax payable, deferred tax
liabilities and other corporate liabilities.

Revenue and expenses are allocated to the reportable segments
with reference to revenue generated by those segments and the
expenses incurred by those segments or which otherwise arise
from the depreciation or amortisation of assets attributable to those
segments.

YANGTZEKIANG GARMENT LIMITED Rir &4 B A |

(a)

(b)

(a)

BRE-F-AF=A=T-ALTE GUETH)

B A A, Ol 48

BRI Z A (518 5 A 558 HE 158 B i A
7 ) 5 B AR R A A B Ak s F4,413,000
J6 (=& — R4 1 51H23,241,00070) K A4F
N E B 175 4 E206,748,000/8 (& — 1
4E 1 206,748,000/%) FHE o

IR A O #)

WE - FE—AER F-REZH=+—
I Ak 45 - A28 7 S 06 AT 4

2 ;O LA R () B
151 30 A (AR M -

. o Wk

A 55 1 DAy B AR B B H ZE S o AR 4R I DL 1)
AW R ATECE BN B A IR 2 WA R (5
O3 BC B IR R w4 R B — 2 X 25 L
T = AEE T Bk R o A 48 [ S S 5 AT Ao
REE i a wELUE BT 51 H T Bk

- R R ol R KRR B AR
5 838 o 89 45 AR Bl B o > AR
AR 0 T

- AEMXMLS ARESEMERSR
PR E R B AR R A

- Wy SEMLE - ey B A R 3 e T g
F LA O & Wi g e

Vg B3 RNV &N

By WAk o3 W R BB 2y WL > W E IR > A SR
P RRAT U BN B DL T R KT
S SR B SRR - HE KR

R B 5 65 W 4 Bt By A iy 2 ¥y % Bl 47 4 7

DHEEGMGEHAEE > EAQEEEE
o B s e EE - B
JIE B T A~ i ] A B R L At A 3
B o 20 iR A RUALAE i o HR A LAY P
AR B BIE A A B - I AE L
A R bR

7 BiL 2 AT 2 23 HB B WA B S R DL S 2k
G HB B E AR HR WA A S i B A A k)
A B 5 B i BT R R ST E

63

ANNUAL REPORT 2016 3§



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 7% 3R 2 MY =E

For the year ended 3| March 2016 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
HE-F-—AF=A=t—BLEE CUETH)

11. SEGMENT REPORTING (continued)

(a)

64

Segment results, assets and liabilities (continued)

Manufacture and sale of garments and textiles and property leasing
segments (continued)

The measure used for reporting segment profit/loss is “adjusted
EBITDA” i.e. “adjusted earnings before interest, taxes, depreciation
and amortisation”, where “interest” is regarded as including
investment income and finance cost and “depreciation and
amortisation” is regarded as including impairment losses on non-
current assets. To arrive at “adjusted EBITDA”, the Group’s
earnings/losses are further adjusted for items not specifically
attributed to individual segments, such as share of losses of an
associate, net valuation gains on investment properties, auditors’
remuneration and other head office or corporate administration
costs.

In addition to receiving segment information concerning “adjusted
EBITDA”, management is provided with segment information
concerning revenue (including inter-segment sales), interest income
and finance costs from cash balances and borrowings managed
directly by the segments, depreciation, amortisation, impairment
losses and additions to non-current segment assets used by the
segments in their operations. Inter-segment sales are priced with
reference to prices charged to external parties for similar orders.

Interests in joint ventures

The Group’s interests in joint ventures are accounted for in the
consolidated financial statements under the equity method, and
presented as a separate reportable segment. The Group’s senior
executive management reviews the post-tax result of the interests
in joint ventures, which is defined as the reportable segment
profit/loss for this particular segment. Reportable segment assets
represent the Group’s share of net assets of the joint ventures.
Revenue of joint ventures is not presented as reportable segment
revenue because it is not reviewed by the Group’s senior executive
management for resource allocation purposes.

YANGTZEKIANG GARMENT LIMITED RT3 &4 BA v
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 7% 3R R B

For the year ended 3| March 2016 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

11. SEGMENT REPORTING (continued)

(a) Segment results, assets and liabilities (continued)

Information regarding the Group’s reportable segments as provided
to the Group’s most senior executive management for the purposes
of resource allocation and assessment of segment performance for
the years ended 31 March 2016 and 2015 is set out below:

HE_ZT—AREZA=+—B8I&FE (UE )

11, 7 7 Wt o (41)

(a) Zr¥EAE - WA K AT (8

BE_F-AFER_F-HF=A=1—
HOAR AR A 42 2 k7 AR 4R T A 3 47 B
BN B AR E IR 2> LA 23 A 3R BT A Y
HT B WER T

Manufacture and sale of Interests in
garments and textiles joint ventures (note) Property leasing Total
R AR RK
RGi% ARERES ) LBV it
2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015
CR-NE CF-0F CR-NE CF-0F CR-8E CF-1F CR-8E C%-4E
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $000
7z 77 Tx 77 T 77 T T
Revenue from external RASMEFRH
customers A 929,176 1,124,031 - - 9,258 9,833 938,434 1,133,864
Inter-segment revenue AHEHFFIBA - - - S 1,742 1,996 1,742 1,996
Reportable segment revenue AT ERHAHRA 920,176 1,124,031 - - 11,000 11,829 940,176 1,135,860
Reportable segment AT RB
profit/(loss) WA/ (B8
(adjusted EBITDA) (WBRRAA
ULRE RV
BAmHAN) 20,830 11,381 (28,391)  (2035%) 10,640 10,883 3,079 1,908
Interest income il:Yien 1,301 2,440 - = - = 1,301 2,440
Finance costs HEHA (3,000  (367) - - - - (3,009  (3,671)
Depreciation and amortisation REREH (10,118)  (13,469) - - - - (10,118)  (13,469)
Impairment loss on FR Rt f W e A
plant and equipment (4,656) - - - - - (4,656) -
Impairment loss on A ER
other receivables (3,647) - - - - - (3,647) -
Reportable segment CEER PS )7
assets 505786 611,799 541,095 600,683 313,992 288,134 1,450,873 1,500,616
Additions to non-current EEREEERE
segment assets during PHEE
the year 5,911 11,166 - - - - 5,911 11,166
Reportable segment liabilities RPERMABAR 127,300 149,805 - = - - 127,300 149,805

Note: Other financial information regarding the interests in joint ventures is

Wit -

5 i S A 1) b B R M 1 6

disclosed in note 16.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 7% 3R 2 MY =E

For the year ended 3| March 2016 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
HEZZT—R"F=A=1T—HIEFE (L&)

11. SEGMENT REPORTING (continued) 11, i (80)
(b) Reconciliation of reportable segment revenue, profit or loss, assets (b) AT R IBBA ~ %A SEH - &
and liabilities a5 2 B i
2016 2015
RN —E—HAR
$’000 $’000
T Fr
Revenue A
Reportable segment revenue AT 25 LA 940,176 1,135,860
Elimination of inter-segment 53 B FE TS ] M A AH B3 8
revenue (1,742) (1,996)
Consolidated revenue AR WA 938,434 1,133,864
Profit/(loss) i (1)
Reportable segment profit REHEMAAREFWETERD
derived from the Group’s 43 B s A (R % ok A S,
external customers BEIE - P8 R 8 & w0 2R
(adjusted EBITDA) 3,079 1,908
Finance costs Al A (3,002) (3,671)
Interest income Ll £ 1,301 2,440
Depreciation and amortisation P85 I 4 6 (10,118) (13,469)
Net valuation gains on g Y/ LR R
investment properties 20,759 6,964
Share of losses of an associate JE A — Tk 2 2 ) s 48 - (355)
Unallocated head office and Ko BHALR S A 2B A
corporate expenses (4,004) (3,569)
Consolidated profit/(loss) AR A BRBLETE R (BB
before taxation 8,015 (9,752)
Assets B
Reportable segment assets HT BB EE 1,450,873 1,500,616
Elimination of inter-segment a3 T S B K A O 6
assets (80,485) (72,938)
1,370,388 1,427,678
Intangible assets A 3,270 3,117
Other financial assets HiAth 4 Rl & 4,250 7,052
Current tax recoverable AT i [m] 7 HA B I 804 3,799
Deferred tax assets % 908 Bl JEA 1,687 1,501
Unallocated head office and KB LA EEE
corporate assets 870 905
Consolidated total assets A EEAHE 1,381,269 1,444,052
Liabilities Ai1g
Reportable segment liabilities AT B 4 B A 127,300 149,805
Current tax payable JE A5H A 3 Bl TE 14,668 13,799
Deferred tax liabilities I 4 ol T A i 17,292 18,484
Unallocated head office and T JH AR B A AR
corporate liabilities 4,350 2,123
Consolidated total liabilities HAEME 163,610 184,211
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 7% 3R R B &

For the year ended 3| March 2016 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

11. SEGMENT REPORTING (continued)

Geographic information

The following table sets out information about the geographical
location of () the Group’s revenue from external customers and
(i) the Group’s investment properties, other property, plant and
equipment and interest in leasehold land held for own use under
operating leases, intangible assets, interests in an associate and
joint ventures (“specified non-current assets”). The geographical
location of customers is based on the location at which the services
were provided or the goods delivered. The geographical location of
the specified non-current assets is based on the physical location
of the asset, in the case of investment properties, other property,
plant and equipment and interest in leasehold land held for own
use under operating leases, the location of the operation to which
they are allocated, in the case of intangible assets, and the location
of operations, in the case of interests in an associate and joint
ventures.

BRE-F-AF=A=T-ALTE GUETH)

11, 7 7 Wt o (41)

(c) b W& 2y 3 % R

TR A B () AR JE B AN F Bk
A5 R(ii) A 4R B B W 36 oAb 3 - R
5 Ry RS E B 2 B S i
M WMEEE  —BELRLAGELDS
M (MR € R B B E D) A9 s 7 i &
KL o B0 5 BT TE 4 4R 43 B % 2k i B
E o REFMBEETHBEYE - HAb
W~ R RS R EHEZ B
FH B+ i f) BE £ BT 7E MR AR 9B B 00 R
fr B AE 5 T 1 T M o3 T Y O b
A RE 5 M0 — W N ] R A SEE R
T o S 45 HL 8 75 3 B T E

Revenue from Specified
external customers non-current assets
K H A% P RBA e 58 R 1) ¥

2016 2015 2016 2015

ZE-NE ZE N ZBNE ZF

$°000 $000 $°000 $°000

Fri T Fri T

Hong Kong (place of domicile) s (4 4 T B 76 H ) 61,342 78,255 234,641 217,261

Europe e

- United Kingdom ~JL 152,194 168,697 — =

- ltaly N 130,994 131,927 - -

- Spain ~FE 9T 89,700 122,117 = =

- Other European countries —H At M B R 138,671 158,272 = =

Mainland China H K B 83,013 97,920 612,353 683,321
North America Jb M

- United States -%H 152,106 169,745 - -

- Canada SIESN 7,608 10,689 - -

Others HAb 122,806 196,242 14,741 13,605

877,092 1,055,609 627,094 696,926

938,434 1,133,864 861,735 914,187
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 7% 3R R B

For the year ended 3| March 2016 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BE-F-—AF=A=t+—ALEE (KETH)

12. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES, OTHER

(a)

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND fii B AL L e
....... LEASEHOL D L AND e e
Reconciliation of carrying amount (a) MR i A 3 MR
Interest in
leasehold
land held
Land and for own
buildings use under
held for  Plant and Other Investment  operating
own use  machinery assets  Sub-total  properties leases Total
FefE & 8
#fEH R itz
(TER Wi H AL
)3 &4 RBA HbEE At BERE LRMER wit
$'000 $000 $'000 $000 $000 $'000 $000
T T T T FI FI FI
Cost or valuation: AT A :
At 1 April 2014 RZZ—ENA—H 86,466 214,615 117,387 418,468 233,776 3,009 655,253
Transfer from land and midkEFEEs
buildings to investment REmE
properties (195) - - (195) 951 - 756
Transfer from investment BB ERER
properties to land and TR EF
buildings 26,570 - - 26,570 (26,570) - -
Exchange adjustments W 51, 3 68 (280) (195) (407) 75 5 (327)
Additions WE - 5,899 5,267 11,166 - - 11,166
Disposals e - (B8407)  (30,108)  (88,513) - - (88,513
Fair value adjustment ATEERE = = = = 6,964 = 6,964
At 31 March 2015 BoZ-HEZA=+—H 112,909 161,827 92,353 367,089 215,196 3,014 585,299
Representing: o
Cost A 89,143 161,827 92,353 343,323 - 3,014 346,337
Valuation - 1988 il —— /U 23,766 - - 23,766 - - 23,766
Valuation - 2015 fili-—%F—H% = - - - 215,196 - 215,196
112,909 161,827 92,353 367,089 215,196 3,014 585,299
Cost or valuation: WA gl fE ¢
At 1 April 2015 BoZ-HENA—H 112,909 161,827 92,353 367,089 215,196 3,014 585,299
Exchange adjustments [ i i % (2,327) (7,326) (2,396) (12,049) (2,449 (156) (14,654)
Additions WE - 3,038 2,873 5,911 - - 5,911
Disposal of a subsidiary 0 — W A A
(note 14) (Hit14) - - (1,297) (1,297) - - (1,297)
Disposals & - (95) (949) (1,044) - - (1,044)
Fair value adjustment AT EERE = = = = 20,759 = 20,759
At 31 March 2016 REZF-REZJ=+—H 110,582 157,444 90,584 358,610 233,506 2,858 594,974
Representing: o
Cost A 86,816 157,444 90,584 334,844 - 2,858 387,702
Valuation - 1988 il —— /U 23,766 - - 23,766 - - 23,766
Valuation - 2016 filE——F =A% = - - - 233,506 - 233,506
110,582 157,444 90,584 358,610 233,506 2,858 594,974
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1 7% 3R & MY o

For the year ended 31 March 2016 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BE_T-R"F=A=1+—BILFE L ETt)

12. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES, OTHER
PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND
LEASEHOLD LAND (continued)

Reconciliation of carrying amount (continued)

12, BEEEW 3 -~ b3k - B Bt

i e AL A5 - b (&)

(a) M v £ 38 G (48)

Interest in
leasehold
land held
Land and for own
buildings use under
held for  Plant and Other Investment  operating
own use  machinery assets  Sub-total properties leases Total
fEER
AR iz
i+ 3 Wik H AL
4 53 RRE  JUbRE At R¥ERE LBWER L
$000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000
T T T T T T T
Accumulated Rt WiER
amortisation, WAl
depreciation and
impairment:
At 1 April 2014 REZ—HENGA—H 47,879 194,181 106,534 348,594 - 1,313 349,907
Transfer from land and RS €t
buildings to investment REmE
properties (78) - - (78) - - (78)
Exchange adjustments I Ja i %% 51 (207) (148) (304) - 3 (301)
Charge for the year REEBERIE 2,707 4,841 5,861 13,409 - 60 13,469
Written back on disposals H I 0 - (58,380) (29,705) (88,085) - - (88,085)
At 31 March 2015 R_F-RE=A=+—H 50,559 140,435 82,542 273,536 - 1,376 274,912
At 1 April 2015 RZE-RFEMA—H 50,559 140,435 82,542 273,536 - 1,376 274,912
Exchange adjustments e 53 (1,479) (6,635) (2,244) (10,358) - (72) (10,430
Charge for the year AR B BT E 2,793 4,756 2472 10,021 = 58 10,079
Written back on disposal o — 0 ] A
of a subsidiary (note 14) (Hit14) - - (668) (668) - - (668)
Written back on disposals oy R - (86) (859) (945) - - (945)
Impairment loss BEER - 4,578 83 4,656 = = 4,656
At 31 March 2016 REF=ARE=ZA=1—H 51,873 143,043 81,326 276,242 - 1,362 277,604
Net book value: G 45 4 <
At 31 March 2016 REZZ—AE=A=1—H 58,709 14,401 9,258 82,368 233,506 1,496 317,370
At 31 March 2015 RZZE-HE=ZA=1—H 62,350 21,392 9,811 93,553 215,196 1,638 310,387
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 7% 3R R B

For the year ended 3| March 2016 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

BEZT—X&E=A= + EUJ:EEF(L/{/ 7Eu7L)

12. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES, OTHER
PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND
LEASEHOLD LAND (continued)

(b) Fair value measurement of properties

(i) Fair value hierarchy

The following table presents the fair value of the Group’s properties
measured at the end of the reporting period on a recurring basis,
categorised into the three-level fair value hierarchy as defined in

(b) #13E W 21 B G i
(i) 2V 1 i 5%

HKFRS 13, Fair value measurement. The level into which a fair

value measurement is classified is determined with reference to the
observability and significance of the inputs used in the valuation

technique as follows:

—  Level 1 valuations: Fair value measured using only Level 1 -
inputs i.e. unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for

identical assets or liabilities at the measurement date

—  Level 2 valuations: Fair value measured using Level 2 inputs -
i.e. observable inputs which fail to meet Level 1, and not using
significant unobservable inputs. Unobservable inputs are inputs

for which market data are not available

— Level 3 valuations: Fair value measured using significant -

unobservable inputs

TREIIAREHY) KL NFEE - ZnF
EER A H QL ERE - Wi dF
i%ﬁ?h%%l?zth'ﬂ%EU>>§€135FV‘¥[‘?’/E“§%§J

= BAFEEEFD B - A FHEE

*EQ&EH G0 JR ) H5 A (B D5 v R BT T SR
Z P B T AR R E

S — AL 1 BR A — AR B
5> BIAE A & E A R AR BRI
BT B RAE CR RSB AReHR A
- fiE i

55 R A (A ¢ BRSSO B
B oR B4 2 58 — ORI A9 AT B B
ERE NI NCIE F-3 € 3 S N
SPEAE o AN AT BB BOR A MR M A
5 BRI R

55 = SR AIAG (A ¢ PR RO W) B B
T N /A SR

Fair value at Fair value measurements as at
31 March 2016 31 March 2016 categorised into
RZ—ANE
ZH=Z+—H REB-AEZHA=Z+—H
Z AP VYRR VS Y
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
B—HH BB BB
$°000 $°000 $°000 $°000
Tr Tr Ti Tr
Recurring fair value B A F B
measurements
Investment properties: BEME
- Mainland China mhil: PN 46,395 - - 46,395
- Hong Kong — ik 187,111 - - 187,111
Fair value at Fair value measurements as at
31 March 2015 31 March 2015 categorised into
A S
ZA=+—H RZF-RE=ZA=+—H
ZNFEE AN BT 2B A T
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
— S A B =5
$000 $000 $000 $°000
T T T T
Recurring fair value B Pk A Y- B
measurements
Investment properties: BHEWE:
- Mainland China il PN 46,741 - - 46,741
- Hong Kong — &k 168,455 - = 168,455
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 7% 3R R B &

For the year ended 3| March 2016 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

12. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES, OTHER

(i)

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND
LEASEHOLD LAND (continued)

Fair value measurement of properties (continued)
Fair value hierarchy (continued)

During the year ended 31 March 2016, there were no transfers
between Level 1 and Level 2, or transfers into or out of Level 3. The
Group’s policy is to recognise transfers between levels of fair value
hierarchy as at the end of the reporting period in which they occur.

All of the Group’s investment properties were revalued as at 31
March 2016. The valuations of investment properties located in
Hong Kong and Mainland China were carried out by independent
firms of surveyors, Knight Frank Petty Limited and RHL Appraisal
Limited respectively, who have among their staff Fellows of the
Hong Kong Institute of Surveyors with recent experience in the
location and category of property being valued. The Group’s
management have discussion with the surveyors on the valuation
assumptions and valuation results when the valuation is performed
at the end of reporting period.

Information about Level 3 fair value measurements

12

(ii)

BE-F~F=A=t—BLEE WETH)

BB - ML 3K~ BB Bt
il B AT 13 (4)

e
4 VBT R (4

BE_ZT-RFE=ZH=+—HILFEE %
— BB AR 2 TR SIS AR T S = AR
I S N O o A 2 P Y RO TR A R
FI e 8 B % A 19 4 - 1 6 R A% ] 2 RS -

AELEBEBTABLEYER -F—RNE=A
=t — BT EAY o A7 A S K R
Z BCE Y 3E 0 A o B S B A AT A A
B F A AT AR 2 B Bk M AT S (6 B AR
NAMEEAEE > ZEREMAT KA B
RS G ERE > HEMTGEY
B IR B AR - R&AH
HEEAT A (B - 4R A PEE © B 8 R AT
s At (L 1B e 2 Al (B 465 2R

B =B 2T A i A 2

Valuation Unobservable Weighted
techniques inputs Range average
iy ¥ AL Bk g RT3 Y
Investment properties #ENE
- Mainland China — K B Market comparison Adjusted price RMB26,240 to RMB28,415
approach per sg. m. RMB32,340  (2015: RMB27,146)
i35 LBk BFHkZ (2015 RMB24,181
WA to RMB31,027)
- Hong Kong &k Market comparison Adjusted price  $2,400 to $8,400 $2,614
approach per sq. ft. (2015: §2,160 (2015: $2,356)
b Lk FTHRZ to $7,640)
B A
Income capitalisation Average market $8 $8
approach rent per sq. ft. (2015: $7.2) (2015: §7.2)
s EAR AL per month
HICE THEAGT
TR A
Capitalisation rate 4% 4%
BRI % (2015; 4%) (2015: 4%)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 7% 3R R B

For the year ended 3| March 2016 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BE_Z—RF=A=+—RHILFE LET)

12. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES, OTHER

72

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND
LEASEHOLD LAND (continued)

Fair value measurement of properties (continued)
Information about Level 3 fair value measurements (continued)

The fair value of investment properties located in Mainland China
and certain investment properties located in Hong Kong is
determined using market comparison approach by reference to
recent asking price of comparable properties on a price per square
meter and square feet basis respectively, adjusted for quality and
location of the buildings and income potential. Higher the value of
adjusted price will result in a higher fair value measurement.

The fair value of certain investment properties located in Hong Kong
is determined using income capitalisation approach by capitalising
the rent derived from the existing tenancies with reference to market
rent and the provision for any reversionary income potential. The
capitalisation rate used in income capitalisation approach has been
adjusted for the expected market rental growth, occupancy rate and
quality and location of the buildings. The fair value measurement is
positively correlated to the market rent and negatively correlated to
the risk-adjusted capitalisation rate.

Fair value adjustment of investment properties is recognised in the
line item “net valuation gains on investment properties” on the face
of the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

Exchange adjustment of investment properties is recognised in
other comprehensive income in “exchange reserve”.

All the gains recognised in profit or loss for the year arise from the
properties held at the end of the reporting period.

YANGTZEKIANG GARMENT LIMITED RT3 &4 A |
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1 7% R & MY o

For the year ended 3| March 2016 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BE_Z—RF=A=1+—HILFE (L&)

12. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES, OTHER 12. BeEWE - AW E - B Kk
PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND i B AL b (&)
....... LEASEHOLD LAND (continued) . e
(¢) The analysis of net book value of properties is as follows: (c) MEWRWMBHESHWT :
2016 2015
RN TR —hAE
$°000 $'000
T T C
In Hong Kong — medium T s — AR A
term leases 230,839 214,170
Outside Hong Kong — medium HWs B — A
term leases 62,872 65,014
293,711 279,184
Representing: e -
Land and buildings held for FefE B H Yt Je
own use 58,709 62,350
Investment properties wEmE 233,506 215,196
Interest in leasehold land held HEREHEZ 8 A
for own use under operating FHE £ #h Y HE 25
leases 1,496 1,638
293,711 279,184
(d) Assets leased out under operating leases (d) DAEBALE S mALNEE
The Group leases out investment properties under operating leases. AEBUKLSHESAH AR EYE -
The leases typically run for an initial period of one to three years, BAHENIH — KA —FE2 =4 FH
with an option to renew the lease after that date at which time all B REGREEAE AN R A > JE R T LA R
terms are renegotiated. None of the leases includes contingent HE Bk o T A E S 400 A 61 5
rentals. All properties held under operating leases that would A AN EHREYEERUKLEH
otherwise meet the definition of an investment property are classified EHANYE S EEHEYE -
as investment properties.
The Group’s total future minimum lease payments under non- AR EARPE AR RS E S H
cancellable operating leases are receivable as follows: 15 e W ) S IR B AT R AR A T
2016 2015
ZE N e e TS
$°000 $’000
T Tz
Within 1 year —E RN 7,579 7,551
After 1 year but within 5 years — AR AH AR DAY - 7,248
7,579 14,799
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 7% 3R R B

For the year ended 3| March 2016 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BE_Z—RF=A=+—RHILFE LET)

12.

74

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES, OTHER
PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND
LEASEHOLD LAND (continued)

Impairment loss

Whampoa Garment Manufacturing (Guangxi) Co., Ltd, (“WGM
Guangxi”), a subsidiary of the Company, engaged in garment
manufacturing in Guangxi, Mainland China. As WGM Guangxi
suffered continuous operating losses in recent years, the Group
assessed the recoverable amount of plant and equipment of WGM
Guangxi as at 31 March 2016 and as a result, the carrying amount
of the plant and equipment was written down to its recoverable
amount of $Nil. An impairment loss of $4,656,000 was recognised
in the line item “impairment loss on plant and equipment” on the
face of the consolidated statement of profit or loss. The estimates
of recoverable amount were based on the value-in-use calculation.
The calculation uses a ten-year cash flow projections of which, the
first five-year projections were based on financial budgets approved
by management and no growth has been applied from the sixth to
tenth years. The cash flows were discounted using a discount rate
of 13.6%. The discount rate used is pre-tax and reflects specific
risks relating to WGM Guangxi.

. INTANGIBLE ASSETS

13.

AN ) — B S F - VLR AR (V) A
B2 A (T80 VTS PG 1) o A v [ ok e Jig g
T 5 AR Bt o Pl A T AT BV VTR P A A2
A gEE REMEFMER T —X
G I e = R AN il D & ]
Y AT 0[] 4 48 > NI PRI R B sk 2 BR
AT (B 2 B4 0ok 25 6L mT i [l 4 B T - I (E
Ji5 84,656,000 B FE#B N 45 & B 4 £ -
TRk 55 Je w3t 6 ok M s $8 » T i ) 4
ZANFE TR AE A A AR T o %%
FIE T B R AR B A O E W A
g Heb o BN EE S REEHED
FEHEAG A T A N & A 0 1E A
B A R m AL 5 o B4 e 0 B R
13.6% AT I BL = il ] 2 Ak B 2% % i iy LA
R 2 Wk A B R VL T ARG A R R -

Club debentures

s
$°000
For
Cost: WA
At 1 April 2014, 31 March 2015 N FE PR —H s S B
and 1 April 2015 ZHA=Z++—HA KA F—TFEMNA—H 3,117
Additions o 192
At 31 March 2016 W_Z—-AR¥=A=+—-8 | 3,309
Accumulated amortisation: Bl sy .
At 1 April 2014, 31 March 2015 W E—EMHA—H -~ ZE—HAE
and 1 April 2015 =H=+—HE-F—HLHFENH—H -
Charge for the year 7R AT i i 8 39
At 31 March 2016 R=-F—-N¥=A=t—H | 39
Net book value: R i A -
At 31 March 2016 W oE—RNF=H=1+—H 3,270
At 31 March 2015 RN FE—HF=H=1+—H 3,117

The amortisation charge for the year is included in “other operating
expenses” in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 7% 3R R B &

For the year ended 3| March 2016 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

14. PRINCIPLE SUBSIDIARIES

The following list contains only the particulars of subsidiaries which
principally affected the results, assets or liabilities of the Group at 31
March 2016. The class of shares held is ordinary unless otherwise

BE—T - ANE=A=+—RALEE (L ETH)
14. LB A vl

TREFIR _-F-ANE=ZA=+—H %
AEBES BEERAFEAERVEZE
LB~ F 2 wEE o BRI A REWISL - BT R

stated. B2 ey 3 1 W A
Place of
incorporation/ Particulars of Group’s
establishment issued and effective
Name of company and business paid up capital interest Principal activity
R Y A CHAT RS AgEH
kL 3 $-2% 1 JBe A B B BE 23 B E 3
Hong Kong Knitters Limited Hong Kong 3,000,000 shares 100% Garment
B E A R A 7 3,000,000/ manufacturing and
investment holding
AR B R
Easeley Knitwear Limited Hong Kong 10,000 shares 100% Garment
K IRF 4% Bk A PR A W R 10,000/ manufacturing
Exquisite Knitters (Guangzhou) The People’s Republic HK$75,600,000 100% Knitting and dyeing
Limited of China (“the PRC”) of fabrics and
A (M) A RRAR i manufacturing
of garments
iRk - B ]
A B3
Whampoa Garment Manufacturing The PRC HK$18,000,000 100% Garment
(Guigang) Co., Ltd 2 manufacturing
O ILRAK () A BRA A JRAR B 1
Whampoa Garment Manufacturing The PRC HK$4,000,000 100% Garment
(Guangxi) Co., Ltd Ll manufacturing
BRI R A (B 7Y) A FRA R JRAR B i
Lavender Garment Limited Bangladesh Taka35,511,050 69% Garment
)1 EDA manufacturing
Vestis Limited United Kingdom GBP2 100% Garment
B [ wholesaling
A A B
Dagon Talent Garment Limited Myanmar USD1,000,000 75% Garment
A manufacturing
& The English translation of the names is for reference only. The official names @ A EL L A TR o SRR A

FHEMRSFH o 5N F B b B oL 2
EEHEA G D

of these entities are in Chinese. These are also wholly-owned foreign
investment enterprises registered in the PRC.

A S5 [ 1Y B R 2 D Sl ¥ A ORI JF AR
M 4 o

The subsidiaries of the Group do not have material non-controlling
interests.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 7% 3R 2 MY =E

For the year ended 3| March 2016 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BE-F-—AF=A=t+—ALEE (KETH)

14. PRINCIPLE SUBSIDIARIES (continued) = 4. FEMB AR (B)
On 5 November 2015, the Group disposed of its entire 67% WNoE—HE+—HAH » REHDURE
equity interest in Wuxi Zhuo Cheng Textile Technology Co., Ltd. AR #7,000,0007C (4145 j28,509,0007C)
to the existing non-controlling shareholder (“the Purchaser’) at a e H A 4 85 e R AT Ak R B A BR A\
consideration of RMB7,000,000 (equivalent to $8,509,000). As B ATROT % VE R HE 45 T BLA 1Y IF R K
such, a net gain on disposal of $4,490,000 was recognised in profit WTEF]) - WL #E " F—ANE=H
or loss for the year ended 31 March 2016. The principal activity = — H 1k AR R R A R i g T
of Wuxi Zhuo Cheng Textile Technology Co., Ltd. was garment #4,490,0007T - #E85 =R MEHH A RA
manufacturing. A B A UK A o

$’000
T
Assets and liabilities disposed of: B EERAR:
Other property, plant and equipment HAb Y2 ~ BB I 629
Deferred tax assets % SIE B JH & 7 214
Inventories ey 5,884
Trade and other receivables JRRE A e S e At it 3k 17,873
Cash and cash equivalents W& RS EY 343
Trade and other payables JRE AN R 3K B H Al JE A5 3k (18,038)
Provision for long service payments 1= W R B 4 8 A (858)
Net assets T 6,047
Release of exchange reserve upon A H B R R S8 £k 8 43 o)
disposal (12)
Less: non-controlling interest W I e A RRE A (2,016)
4019
Total consideration RAE 48 %8 (8,609)
Net gain on disposal of a subsidiary th B — i B 0 Wk A v (4,490)
Consideration received, satisfied £ DA B 4 S AT i AR
in cash 2,431
Cash and cash equivalents CHEZHE RESEED
disposed of (343)
Net inflow of cash and cash Bl B B4 S5 A8 W) i A T AR
equivalents 2,088
In accordance with the sale and purchase agreement, the WMEEREWE R _F—ANF=H=1T—
outstanding consideration as at 31 March 2016 is receivable as H 2 BEU AR BT A BE R R -
follows:
$’000
o
Within 1 year —A4EAN 4,862
After 1 year but within 5 years — B EAAF LR 1,216
6,078
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 7% 3R R B &

For the year ended 3| March 2016 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

14. PRINCIPLE SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Based on the latest information and internal assessment, the
directors consider the recovery of a portion of the outstanding
consideration is remote. As such, an impairment loss of $3,647,000
was recognised in profit or loss for the year ended 31 March 2016.

E-T-RF=ZA=+—RIFE COET)

14. LA b (4)

R 45 BB 1Y kL R TR B BT A 3 SRR A
O3 A B A AR AE e m] )R] RE M AR o R
BEEFE-NEZH=Z1+—HIL4EE > B
{H E5183,647,0007C B it 18 %5 A fE 52 -

15, INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE . ... . 15. -BBAAMR
2016 2015
ZEB NI —EhAE
$°000 $°000
T Fo
Share of net assets JRE A R 1,220 1,220
Less: Impairment loss (note (a)) W WA R (K i (a) (1,220) (1,220)

The particulars of the associate at 31 March 2016, which is an
unlisted corporate entity whose quoted market price is not available,
are as follows. The class of shares held is ordinary unless otherwise
stated.

MoE—ANE=ZA=Z+—H2ZHEATZ
FEN R o T A% B s\ 2 ST G i
#tﬁi/\ﬁﬂ o F?%?ﬁ‘éiﬁﬁﬁb » TR 2
1y 59 1

Place of Particulars of Group’s

establishment issued and effective
Name of associate and business paid up capital interest Principal activity
BEATAR JR L B 4 o CHAT RSB A A5 o B A EU S
Guangdong Xi Mu Industrial The PRC RMB10,000,000 20% Garment
Company Limited i manufacturing
5% PG I E A R A and retalling
BN REE

# The associate is a sino-foreign equity joint venture established in the PRC. # T 45 0N A oy S R B AR ST 2 R AN A R A A

The English translation of the name is for reference only. The official name of
this entity is in Chinese.

The above associate is accounted for using the equity method in
the consolidated financial statements, and considered to be not
individually material.

The Group considered that the entire interest in an associate,
Guangdong Xi Mu Industrial Company Limited, was not recoverable
as the associate continued to incur losses. An impairment loss of
$1,220,000 was recognised in profit or loss for the year ended 31
March 2015 accordingly.

On 1 April 2014, the Group disposed of the entire interest in
an associate, Guangzhou Top Yield Garment Limited, at nil
consideration. Accordingly, a net loss on disposal of $336,000 was
recognised in profit or loss for the year ended 31 March 2015.

YANGTZEKIANG GARMENT LIMITED Rir &4 B A |

%
3 o WA E LR SO RERE M > 2 SO ER Y
HBTERSE -

A |8 28 W) DURE i 5 R AR A B R B
CE =R R TR 02 B NG N

FH A B 2 ) R ROV A B 2 AT PR A | R A
BRAT R > A 4R 1 TR MO T N Y A
BEZE M A REU ] o UL > B & — F4E
=H=+—HI1LFE > BEkIE1,220,000
JC BN 1 25 N RERR o

R PUAE D H — H AR D
B R B A | R N R R K A RR A D
ZEMHER - H E T —AEZH
=+ —H L4 E > &k 5 %E336,000
JC B 1E 45 A ERR o
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 7% 3R 2 MY =E

For the year ended 3| March 2016 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
HEZZT—R"F=A=1T—HIEFE (L&)

16. INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES

2016 2015

ZE A s g

$°000 $°000

T FI

Share of net assets JE A R (A 541,095 600,683

A 45 [ LAHE 2 3 AR A B ORI BR 2 &
BREMR ZFEHNT

Details of the Group’s interests in joint ventures, which is accounted
for using the equity method in the consolidated financial statements,
are as follows:

Place of Group’s

establishment effective
Name of joint venture and business interest Principal activity
TRERAR L B BB L 7 4 1T B A T ERH
Wuxi No. 1 Cotton Investment The PRC 49% Investment holding
Co., Ltd. (Note) i & P

) —MIE AR (M)

Taizhou Changxin Textile The PRC 49% Manufacturing of
(Xinghua) Co., Ltd. o textile products
RN =W B A% (BLAL) A BR 2 ) K5 4k i R
Allied Textiles Co., Ltd. The PRC 49% Manufacturing of
I Bt B 5577 4 A PR 2 H garments and textiles
Wuxi YGM Textile Co., Ltd. The PRC 49% Manufacture and
1 55 = YLK % %) 4 A PR 22 A LAY sale of textiles
ok T 54 & B A
Dongtai NAA Textiles Co., Ltd. The PRC 49% Manufacturing of
HA IR &5 Ak A R Al il garments and textiles
* Wholly owned subsidiaries of Wuxi No. 1 Cotton Investment Co., Ltd. MY — I EARRA T Z 2 EHA KHE N A

Note: Wuxi No. 1 Cotton Investment Co., Ltd. is established by the Group
and other joint venture partners in Wuxi. It holds the above mentioned

Bt - S5 — AU AT B W By A 4 1 B A A
W AE A M85 WAL 2 AR o HBEA b STk
B 2 W) > R A AR E P B RO R
B~ R 7 R E R B EE e

subsidiaries which are mainly engaged in the production of medium
range to high graded compact yarn, special textile products and garment
products.

All of the joint ventures are sino-foreign equity joint ventures rE G &S AN PRS2 PAANEE
established in the PRC. The English translation of the names of L o G ENEH U D L TEEM -
the joint ventures is for reference only. The official names of these WU ENS T EMEE

entities are in Chinese.

AEES WA E
WM LA AT -

3 WA EN

All the joint ventures in which the Group participates are unlisted
corporate entities whose quoted market prices are not available.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1 7% 3R & MY o

For the year ended 3| March 2016 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BE_Z—RF=HA=1+—HILFE (L &)

3 5 — i B AR 2 ) S e 2 m) B
BRI R > R HLER S MBS R AR (EH 2

Summarised financial information of Wuxi No.1 Cotton Investment
Co., Ltd. and its subsidiaries, and a reconciliation to the carrying

amount in the consolidated financial statements, are disclosed

HIRWEWT

below:
2016 2015
RN —ER— AR
$°000 $'000
T+ Fr
Gross amount of joint AEAEEMB
ventures’
Non-current assets I H) & 978,134 1,091,580
Current assets B & 638,247 723,847
Non-current liabilities I B A (7,757) (13,282)
Current liabilities =R (504,348) (576,261)
Equity HE 25 (1,104,276) (1,225,884)
Included in the above WHGETE Lok i & A K
assets and liabilities: A1
Cash and cash equivalents Wa KB EEEY 155,006 96,093
Current financial liabilities T B 4 il A B
(excluding trade and other (A B 935 JE A AR 3K %
payables and provisions) Aty AT S % 4 AR (269,183) (310,379)
Revenue A 1,597,257 1,386,937
Adjusted EBITDA AR RS - B -
PT84 It 8 i i) 2 44,778 58,876
Loss from continuing AR R T R
operations and total T A4 P 2 ) it 25 AR A
comprehensive income
for the year (57,941) (41,542)
Dividend received i B 5 - (37,799)
Included in the above loss: 45 7E Lol i s 48
Depreciation and amortisation P8 I 6 8 (103,126) (102,522)
Interest income ) B 45 1,310 1,298
Interest expense FIE 32 H (6,924) (6,298)
Income tax credit Jr 1% B A 6,021 7,104
Reconcile to the Group’s AEEG B AR
interests in the Z Bk
joint ventures
Gross amount of net assets G EEEFHEHAH
of the joint ventures 1,104,276 1,225,884
Group’s effective interest A AL 1B 2R 49% 49%
Carrying amount in the A &5 G o 75 e 36 R T (E
consolidated financial
statements 541,095 600,683
YANGTZEKIANG GARMENT LIMITED EiL®KA RA 79
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 7% 3R 2 MY =E

For the year ended 3| March 2016 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
HE-F-—AF=A=t—BLEE CUETH)

17. OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS . .. ... . 17 X EWBEE
2016 2015
—FE—-A SE A
$°000 $°000
T FL
Held-to-maturity debt ELRE R E PRy e
securities:
Listed outside Hong Kong F s L . 1,939
Available-for-sale equity W 4 o 5 B B 2 -
securities:
— Unlisted, at cost —JF B> HAA 3,028 3,028
— Listed outside Hong Kong, —FHW AN B T E
at market value (Kt 7t26(e)(i)
(note 26(e)(i)) 3,395 4,258
N 256
6,423 9,225
Less: Impairment loss W WE S (2,173) (2,173)
4,250 7,052
Market value of listed securities LTS E 3,395 6,120
As at 31 March 2016 and 2015, certain of the Group’s listed W oE—NER_E—HAE=ZH=+—
available-for-sale equity securities were individually determined to be H oo A58 B 2 S R n] {3 o 8 4 3% o
impaired on the basis of a material decline in their fair value below T 1515 Il 3 g 5 | BN A (B BN B R
cost and adverse changes in the market in which these investees APLR o B4 AR ] 2 48R e i ] T A
operated which indicated that the cost of the Group’s investment W E - 5% 55 180E 2 W (E R 18R 8 S0 B
in them may not be recovered. Impairment losses on these FE1(K) (1) B9 & R IBUSK A5 48 4 A FERR o

investments were recognised in profit or loss in accordance with the
policy set out in note 1(k)(i).

The held-to-maturity debt securities at 31 March 2015 were neither RoFE—HAFE=A=+—H > A =3
past due nor impaired. 215 RE W 5 E 406 v A Bl U o
18, INVENTORIES i I8 A8H .
(a) Inventories in the consolidated statement of financial position (a) HEBREAWMHERAELE
comprise:
2016 2015
—F-AHE  “FHF
$°000 $'000
T T T
Raw materials JEBE R 11,157 14,826
Work in progress TE & 56,779 74,585
Finished goods AL 11,546 19,115
79,482 108,526
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1 7% 3R & MY o

For the year ended 3| March 2016 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BE_Z—RF=HA=1+—HILFE (L &)

18. INVENTORIES (continued) 18. R (B
(b) The analysis of the amount of inventories recognised as an expense b) RIS W R AR NN H
and included in profit or loss is as follows: mp
2016 2015
“E—A —E TR
$’000 $°000
T T
Carrying amount of 17 B 85 5 MR T (B
inventories sold 769,224 964,412
Write-down of inventories A7 B ik 6,193 4,784
Reversal of write-down A7 B ek 43 [m]
of inventories (1,293) (693)
774,124 968,503

The reversal of write-down of inventories made in prior years arose
due to an increase in the net realisable value of garment products by
reference to the sales made during the year and subsequent to the

A AR T 2 A7 B8 OS8R (B AR 4 AR E
TS A T B A B A RAR B S S - T B B
S FEE b T 5 B IR B0 A S R B

year end.
19. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES = = 19, JHE W Mie oK B JC fb ME WAk
2016 2015
R A S
$°000 $°000
T T
Trade debtors JRE Wi K 60,753 86,717
Bills receivable JE Wi B 5 38,453 28,901
Less: allowance for W R IR A
doubtful debts (note 19(b)) (Bt 19(b)) (267) (3,874)
98,939 111,744
Deposits, prepayments and W&~ FAT R K&
other debtors L Ath JE i 5K 20,392 20,976
Amounts due from related JEE i [ 78 ] kI
companies (note 28(c)) (Ktit28(c)) 2,319 3,149
Amount due from an associate JRE Wi — W 7 A W) AR
(note 28(c)) (Kt #E28(c)) 17 17
Amounts due from joint ventures JRE WA A FE B
(note 28(c)) (Kt it28(c)) - 105
Derivative financial instruments held FHEEHSREH I TR
as cash flow hedging instruments Z A AR TR
(note 26(c)(i)) (Mt 7£26(c)(i) - 531
121,667 136,522

B B SR 14 Th 4R 2 3 A1 o A SR B 2 4R K BT
73 WA B K S L Al B WSk 2 T A R — 4 1A
W [ B e B 5 S i

B TAEIE W B 5 KT BT iEfT 2 &K 5 o B
W B A R~ A 2 R — T A R AR
JE WA MR~ R ALE o AT A R R
W [a]

Substantially all of the Group’s trade and other receivables, apart
from those mentioned in note 14, are expected to be recovered or
recognised as an expense within one year.

The amounts due from related companies, joint ventures and an
associate are unsecured, interest-free and recoverable on demand
except for those trade related items under normal trade terms.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 7% 3R 2 MY =E

For the year ended 3| March 2016 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
HE-F-—AF=A=t—BLEE CUETH)

19. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
(continued)

19. K B Wi sk B 3G b ok (4)

(a) WRB2Hr

JREEFH o AR EE ST H R 1 BR R SRR
5 4% 119 B SR R B B i SR (L RE A K
R A B JHC At R SRR F SR B 2 BT A T

(a) Ageing analysis

As of the end of the reporting period, the ageing analysis of trade
debtors and bills receivable (which are included in trade and other
receivables), based on the invoice date and net of allowance for
doubtful debts, is as follows:

2016 2015

R -AE  —“EF-HF

$°000 $000

T Tz

Within 1 month —f®H LA 38,242 42,819
Over 1 month but within — {8 A L EE A AN

2 months 17,365 33,219
Over 2 months but within AR A L EE =R A LK

3 months 34,254 27,597
Over 3 months but within =@ A L BB AR A LA A

4 months 4,550 1,942

Over 4 months v A Bk 4,528 6,167

98,939 111,744

JRE Wi B K B ME WA BE AR A BE B H W2 0 E 120
H A B o A BE A 45 B 19 15 80 BOK 1
$ A B 5E26(a)

S M M sk B S MR 5% % R A

A 4 T i R AR R R i R R 2 W (E s
18> DB R AR o o A 42 R /5 i [
AR (9 AT RE TR R o U (R A 4R B R
JRE Wi e K B B Wi S e R (2 B R (k)
(i) e

A [ SR ST A B ) (9 A R
W98 2 AR ) 0 F

Trade debtors and bills receivable are due between 0 to 120 days
from the date of billing. Further details on the Group’s credit policy
are set out in note 26(a).

(b) Impairment of trade debtors and bills receivable

(b)

Impairment losses in respect of trade debtors and bills receivable
are recorded using an allowance account unless the Group is
satisfied that recovery of the amount is remote, in which case
the impairment loss is written off against trade debtors and bills
receivable directly (see note 1(k)(i)).

The movement in the allowance for doubtful debts during the year,
including both specific and collective loss components, is as follows:

82

2016 2015

TR —NAE —E A

$°000 $'000

T Tz

At the beginning of the year R AEH) 3,874 3,745

Impairment loss recognised T AH Vs 1R e AR

(note 5(c)) (Kt7E5(c)) 122 129
Uncollectible amounts AN R R ] < LB

written off (3,729) -

At the end of the year TA AR 4 267 3,874
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 7% 3R R B A

For the year ended 3| March 2016 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

19. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

(c)

(continued)

Impairment of trade debtors and bills receivable (continued)

At 31 March 2016, the Group’s trade debtors and bills receivable
of $267,000 (2015: $3,874,000), were individually determined
to be impaired. The individually impaired receivables related to
customers that were in financial difficulties and management
assessed that the receivables are expected not to be recoverable.
Consequently, specific allowances for doubtful debts of $267,000
(2015: $3,874,000) were recognised. The Group does not hold any
collateral over these balances.

Trade debtors and bills receivable that are not impaired

The ageing analysis of trade debtors and bills receivable that are
neither individually nor collectively considered to be impaired are as
follows:

BRE-F-AF=A=TALTE GUETH)

19. K B Wi sk B 3G il 1 Bk ()

O 18293 Lies 3 2:4¢ )

(c)

W oFE—ANE=ZH=+—H  &AELH
267,0007C (% — F.4F : 3,874,0007C) &
JRE sz R X B ke S 0 o A 9] R A o BRI
- Z5 RN A M EF S &5 AR
I 45 2 2 B A AR TE B K A BB Ui [ 5% K i
oo R > FF 2 2 R B IR 4 f#267,00000
(& —TF4F : 3,874,00070) B #iflER o A
82 [ 51 408 At 5% S 4 R R A AT TR O e

W AR AL 22 M OB SR ke M T R

S 40 01 31 5 B e B £ 0 R R
T JE Ui 3548 B )

2016 2015
ZE N —E -4
$°000 $’000
T F

Neither past due nor WE 406 7 A B8 9ok
impaired L 79,384 94,714
Less than 61 days past due w61 H 15,820 11,487
61 to 90 days past due w61 E90H 103 359
More than 90 days past due oo H Lk 3,632 5,184
_______ 19,555 17,030
98,939 111,744

Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired relate to a wide
range of customers for whom there was no recent history of default.

Receivables that were past due but not impaired relate to a number
of independent customers that have a good track record with the
Group. Based on past experience, management believes that no
impairment allowance is necessary in respect of these balances
as there has not been a significant change in credit quality and the
balances are still considered fully recoverable. The Group does not
hold any collateral over these balances.

YANGTZEKIANG GARMENT LIMITED Rir &4 B A |

W e 7 11 K (L 2 MR AR ok BEL R 22 7 Sl T
MR ZET A

340 303 1L 07 A 9o (B 22 R WA K B 2 A B S
FAE > Z%&5FRALBNEETRR
oo MBI ERER THER L > %54
PR WA W AFEE R EELR
S > AR BOBLAE AT 2 ol lal o A 4R
V) S 48 A 5% 4 A Bk A AL (T R A o
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 7% 3R R B

For the year ended 3| March 2016 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
HEZZT—R"F=A=1T—HIEFE (L&)

(b)

20 CASH AND CASHEQUIVALENTS = 20 BEXEBEFEW. ...
(a) Cash and cash equivalents comprise: (a) BEeRBEEEEYOR
2016 2015
ZE N —E A
$°000 $’000
T T
Cash at bank and in hand SRATIE WAk L3 & 311,644 272,465
Reconciliation of profit/(loss) before taxation to cash generated from  (b) BXBimi & A~ (54 MR EHE 534
operations: ZHUE
2016 2015
e S e
Note $’000 $'000
Wzt Tr T
Profit/(loss) before taxation BB R A OB R 8,015 (9,752)
Adjustments for: R
Dividend income from equity i 7 5 2 e Bl 45
securities 4 (1,015) (455)
Interest income S A 4 (1,301) (2,440)
Net gain on disposals of other W H ¥ KE
property, plant and equipment T w5 A i 42 1 AR 4 (25) (3,698)
Net gain on disposal of a B — BB 2 ) i 4
subsidiary FH 4 (4,490) =
Net loss on disposal of an W& —BrE A v e E
associate FH 4 - 336
Finance costs BlE A 5(a) 3,002 3,671
Amortisation of pre-paid FEAE A
interests in leasehold land 1¥) 445 43 5(c) 58 60
Amortisation of intangible Y & e 81
assets 5(c) 39 -
Depreciation e 5(c) 10,021 13,409
Impairment loss on plant and LSS A i
equipment 12(e) 4,656 -
Impairment loss on interest in — g A FHE 4R
an associate 80 {H i 1 5(c) - 1,220
Share of losses of an associate o A — B 4 ) i R 15 - 355
Share of losses of joint ventures T4 & 8 1> k5 4R 16 28,391 20,356
Net valuation gains on BEWEAE
investment properties G Rt 12(a) (20,759) (6,964)
Foreign exchange (gain)/loss T 5 (e ds) /4R (4,163) 639
Operating profit before BEESBHE
changes in working capital 28 i 22,429 16,737
Changes in working capital: BEERE
Decrease in inventories D 23,160 6,728
Decrease in trade and other JRE AT B 5 B L A
receivables JRE e 2 2,529 22,761
Decrease in trade and other JEE A R 7 &/E:-ﬁi?.
payables JEE 5 3k > (5,076) (43,911)
Increase/(decrease) in provision E%ﬁﬂﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁ*ﬁ
for long service payments B,/ () 3,957 (1,794)
Cash generated from operations BEEREAEE 46,999 521
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1 7% 3R & MY o

For the year ended 3| March 2016 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BE_Z—RF=HA=1+—HILFE (L &)

21. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 21. BEAT R 2k B I fib WE ) 5%

2016 2015
RN e 2
$°000 $’000
T FC
Trade creditors JHE 5% B 3K 59,399 74,353
Bills payable JRE At S 48 1,846 1,089
61,245 75,442
Accrued charges and JE T R Ath R AT 3K
other creditors 47,483 56,367
Amounts due to related JRE S B 8/ ) 3K IR
companies (note 28(c)) (Mt #t28(c)) 356 378
Amounts due to joint AT & A 3R IH
ventures (note 28(c)) (Kt7E28 (c)) 113 13
Amount due to an JREASE — Wi 4 > W) AKCIH
associate (note 28(c)) (Kt 7t28(c)) 209 220
Derivative financial BN E (TR L
instruments held as cash THRZMAeEEMTEHE
flow hedging instruments (M 7£26(c)(i)
(note 26(c)(i) 671 -
109,977 132,420

I A B AR R i e Al R AT 3 T AU S — 4
P 158 752 e 2 A A R O A B B R

Br THEIE® B 5 ek T~ it 2 2 5 >
B 7]~ &8 A 36— B8 R 3OA
ERAIEM - R E > ST e R
R -

JRESFH > RIBEEE H MR A TR AT AR
R T H Al BB ASF 350 JEE AT B i B B AR 5 R Y

All of the trade and other payables are expected to be settled or
recognised as income within one year or are repayable on demand.

The amounts due to related companies, joint ventures and an
associate are unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand
except for those trade related items under normal trade terms.

Included in trade and other payables are trade creditors and bills
payable with the following ageing analysis, based on the invoice

date, as of the end of the reporting period: HRES AT -

2016 2015

ZER N —E A

$°000 $°000

T T T

Within 1 month — 8 A AN 34,387 32,720
Over 1 month but within —{@H L EHE A

2 months AR 14,259 16,126
Over 2 months but within “fAH M EE=1 A

3 months PAA 10,431 18,902

Over 3 months =@ H UL 2,168 7,694

61,245 75,442

YANGTZEKIANG GARMENT LIMITED Rt 8#&4 BA w 85
ANNUAL REPORT 2016 £ #§



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 7% 3R R B

For the year ended 3| March 2016 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BE-F-—AF=A=t+—ALEE (KETH)

22,

86

EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT BENEFITS

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (“the
MPF scheme”) under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident Fund
Schemes Ordinance for employees employed under the jurisdiction
of the Hong Kong Employment Ordinance. The MPF scheme is a
defined contribution retirement plan administered by independent
trustees. Under the MPF scheme, the employer and its employees
are each required to make contributions to the scheme at 5% of the
employees’ relevant income, subject to a cap of monthly relevant
income of $30,000 ($25,000 prior to June 2014). The employer’s
contributions to the MPF scheme vest immediately.

The Group also operates a Mandatory Provident Fund Exempted
ORSO Scheme in Hong Kong for those employees who were
eligible to participate in the scheme. This scheme is operated in
a way similar to the MPF scheme, except that when an employee
leaves the scheme prior to his/her interest in the Group’s employee
contributions vesting fully, the ongoing contributions payable by the
Group are reduced by the relevant amount of forfeited employer’s
contributions or refunded to the employer.

The employees of subsidiaries of the Group established in the PRC
are members of a state-sponsored retirement scheme organised
by the local government in the PRC. The subsidiaries are required
to contribute, based on a certain percentage of payroll, to the
retirement scheme to fund the benefits. The only obligation of the
Group with respect to these retirement schemes is to make the
required contributions under the terms of the scheme.

. INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

Current taxation in the consolidated statement of financial position
represents:

22. @ BB KA

AL [ IR P A A w0 4 2 AR
5 AW IR 0 ) B8 2 8 B %A 5
AR EFH ([ FH ) - mike
w1 2 BE 2 At R AR SE B > ST 5 REA
B RBEBEETH > BEXEERY
A B H R B A B 2 A Z5%1F H
e o MR A A B A 2 EBR 230,00000
(ZZF— VU475 A LA £525,00008) ° B &
I 5 B 4w B AE 2 3t 2k B RS B A 8 -

A o AR F TR B B 2 B IR
O3 T O TR AR R ) 22 R B WL %
wt & o w%wt I DAL o A B w3 2 77 XA
BoOMERERASEREBEAAEN
e 518 0 i A I > I i M 3 R
PR WAR 4 B B AR 2 s OB 2 R & -

A £ B A AR SL 2 B R 2 AR B TS
B 5 b R AL A% 2 Bk A 8 R o IR B et
ZHE - ZEMB AR HERE TEZ A
T 23 Lo AR AR R SRk - A S R
PRt B B R 3 2 ME — BT R SR %R BB
TE Z K -

23, &5 A B R UL 3R P o W 9 13 B

(a) 554 W B 5K B 3 BT 7 9 A 91 BE X 2y

2016 2015

e S ZE A

$°000 $'000

T F

Current tax recoverable ALY ] A A A TH (804) (3,799)
Current tax payable JRE AT A 1 Bl TH 14,668 13,799
13,864 10,000
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1 7% 3R & MY o

For the year ended 3| March 2016 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

23. INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

(continued)

(i)

Deferred tax (assets)/liabilities recognised:

The components of deferred tax (assets)/liabilities recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position and the movements during

the year are as follows:

Depreciation

BHE—

T—-RFE=A= ‘f’ Eliif(ﬁ/{/%zu%)

23. ﬁgamﬁmémamm&m

(b) CHERIEREBLH (KR AR :

(i) O 551 I 50k DA o 8 1 A8 4 B 3 (&
FE) H A 1 3L 1 R A g S )

F

allowances
Revaluation in excess of Provision for Undistributed
of investment  the related Provision for long service profits of  Cash flow
properties depreciation  inventories payments joint ventures hedge Total
HEWE BEHMNE 3] ¥ hBEE BAodiR
Tfh 24 E 4R 148 Bl RAREN i G
$000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000
FI FI T FI T T FI
Deferred tax arising from: EEHERA -
At 1 April 2014 RoZ—mENA—H 7,948 1,815 (142) (4,730) 6,317 (15) 11,193
Exchange adjustments T 5.3 % 12 @) 8) 10 = = 11
Charged/(credited) to EBRERMEG/(GEA)

profit or loss (15) 5,001 (719) 399 1,016 - 5,682
Charged to reserves TR MR - - - - - 97 97
At 31 March 2015 REF-HEZA=1—H 7,945 6,813 (869) (4,321) 7,333 82 16,983
At 1 April 2015 RoE—-LENA—H 7,945 6,813 (869) (4,321) 7,333 82 16,983
Exchange adjustments E 51,90 % (421) 116 60 232 - - (19)
Charged/(credited) to TER 8 B /GGEA)

profit or loss 689 (207) 972) (869) (29) - (1,388)
Disposal of a subsidiary E— WA i 14)

(note 14) = = = 214 = = 214
Credited to reserves LR A - - - - - (191) (191)
At 31 March 2016 REF-AEZA=1+—H 8,213 6,722 (1,781) (4,744) 7,304 (109) 15,6056
Reconciliation to the consolidated statements of financial position (ii) 5 Ik P07 B

2016 2015
R —NAE e S
$°000 $'000
T T T
Net deferred tax assets TE 556 BB IR DL 3=
recognised in the TifE 52 14 2% 4 B IH
consolidated statement % EFE
of financial position (1,687) (1,501)
Net deferred tax liabilities TE &5 & W5 PR
recognised in the it 52 14 2% 4 B IH
consolidated statement AREE
of financial position 17,292 18,484
15,605 16,983
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 7% 3R R B

For the year ended 3| March 2016 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BE_Z—RF=A=+—RHILFE LET)

23. INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
(continued)

Deferred tax assets not recognised:

In accordance with the accounting policy set out in note 1(r),
the Group has not recognised deferred tax assets in respect of
cumulative tax losses of $110,091,000 (2015: $127,401,000)
attributable to certain subsidiaries as it is not probable that future
taxable profits against which the losses can be utilised will be
available in the relevant tax jurisdiction of the entities. Tax losses
amounting to $6,277,000 (2015: $7,137,000) do not expire under
the relevant current tax legislation, while the remaining tax losses
amounting to $103,814,000 (2015: $120,264,000) incurred by the
PRC subsidiaries will expire before 2021, in five years after they are
incurred.

23. &5 45 W85 5N OL 3 B s 1 i 7 B

—_
N—

7

AR W B 1 IE 4 B W

AR5 S B T () A9 € T IBOOR > AN SR T
Rl T B 2 w0 ] K 0 s 1R T R A B
F 4% %E B JE & 4 $0110,091,0000C (—
F—H A4 127,401,0007C) - B iR 7E A
BB BB RIA R RN F o A nl B
2 i 8 DA S A 2l I R B s A 2w Bk AR
% o MRIEH BB AT BB R > A € 2]
Bl 45 5 18 & 3£6,277,0007C (=% — F4E
7,137,0007%) - 1 76 6% 19 B Hp 2 B JE 2
7E A I BB B 18 A 351083,814,00000 (=%
— HAFE : 120,264,00070) #i #% 5 15 E A
W AAE S N F R

24. PROVISION FOR LONG SERVICE PAYMENTS  24. R WIJRG S8 ...
2016 2015
BN T —HAE
$°000 $'000
T T T
At the beginning of the year TR AE A 19,508 21,302
Exchange adjustments [ifE 5, o (933) 11
Provision made EoNE i 5,942 4,409
Payments during the year GSANE R (1,986) (6,214)
Disposal of a subsidiary B — A ]
(note 14) (KiE14) (858) -
At the end of the year A A& 21,673 19,508

88

Under the Hong Kong Employment Ordinance, the Group is obliged
to make lump sum payments on cessation of employment in certain
circumstances to employees who have completed at least five years
of service with the Group. The amount payable is dependent on
the employees’ final salary and years of service, and is reduced by
entitlements accrued under the retirement schemes of the Group
that are attributable to contributions made by the Group.

Under the PRC Labour Contract Law, the Group is obliged to
make lump sum payments on cessation of employment in certain
circumstances to employees. The amount payable is dependent on
the employees’ final salary and years of service.

The Group does not set aside any assets to fund the above
remaining obligations.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 7% 3R R B A

For the year ended 3| March 2016 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(a) Movements in components of equity

BE-F~F=A=t—BLEE KETH)
25, JBEAS > gl Al e B

(a) HEIRALWGE Dy 2 % W)

The reconciliation between the opening and closing balances of
each component of the Group’s consolidated equity is set out in the
consolidated statement of changes in equity. Details of the changes

A B [ A M 2 4% AR RT3 1) 401 0 BT R
R BIREN AR A HER B K o AN FIHE
i 1 1) AEL SR A7 TS A ) S A ¢ 2 B ) R A

in the Company’s individual components of equity between the mr
beginning and the end of the year are set out below:
Land and
Investment buildings
Share  revaluation  revaluation Hedging Retained
capital reserve reserve reserve profits Total
% LAEMT
BeAk ERT 1] Ak it bRl RETA it
Note $'000 $000 $'000 $'000 $000 $000
Mt Tz I Tz T Tz T
Balance at 1 April 2014 REB—~MAEN A —~H 28 208,418 (548) 33,151 (75) 698,326 939,272
Changes in equity for the year: AR
Profit for the year A EEG A - - - - 32,565 32,565
Other comprehensive income HAh 2w - 114 8,611 493 = 9,218
Total comprehensive income AEERT i A5
for the year - 114 8,611 493 32,565 41,783
Dividends approved in respect REERERR b5
of the previous year iR 25(b)(i) - - - - (6,202) (6,202)
Balance at 31 March 2015 REZ-HEZAZF—H
b4 208,418 (434) 41,762 418 724,689 974,853
Balance at 1 April 2015 REF-TAENA —H2ER 208,418 (434) 41,762 418 724,689 974,853
Changes in equity for the year: AR
Profit for the year REFE - - - - 32,691 32,691
Other comprehensive income K 2w - (897) - (924) - (1,821)
Total comprehensive income AEERTRGEAH
for the year - (897) - (924) 32,691 30,870
Dividends approved in respect REFERHERR E—F K
of the previous year )93 25(o)i) - - - - (6,202) (6,202)
Balance at 31 March 2016 REZ-AEZAZF—H
b4 4 3 208,418 (1,331) 41,762 (506) 751,178 999,521
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 7% 3R 2 MY =E

For the year ended 3| March 2016 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
HE-F-—AF=A=t—BLEE CUETH)

25. CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS 25. S A ~ filf i B I B ()
....... (COMLMUEA) s e
(b) Dividends (b) BB
(i) Dividends payable to equity shareholders of the Company attributable (i)  MEATAR 25 vl JEHE 5 5 N A4 e
to the year
2016 2015
ZE N CF AR
$°000 $°000
T Tz
Final dividend proposed A H R R IR 5
after the end of the ECli'dsEsTile
reporting period of W 0.10C
$0.10 (2015: $0.03) (ZF—H4 :0.0370)
per ordinary share 20,675 6,202
The final dividend proposed after the end of the reporting period has TANGEE A AR E IR R R B MR 4
not been recognised as a liability at the end of the reporting period. BOH R A o
(ii) Dividends payable to equity shareholders of the Company attributable (i) MEAF K 2 a R HE A AN 83 | — Y B AE
to the previous financial year, approved and paid during the year JE 5 G AR A JE B HE R 3 A B
2016 2015
ZE N el
$°000 $°000
T T C
Final dividend in respect J& R b — B BUARE
of the previous financial A A A AF BE A K
year, approved and paid FAT AR R B
during the year of $0.03 A B 59 20.03 0
(2015: $0.03) per (ZF—H% :0.0370)
ordinary share 6,202 6,202
(¢) Share capital (c) JA&
2016 2015
ZE N e S e
Number of Number of
shares Amount shares Amount
J& 4 ¥ H 2% i % H &
000 8’000 '000 8’000
TH i TH# T
Ordinary shares, issued CEFRCHRE
and fully paid: 0 B
At the beginning and AR R AE £
the end of the year 206,748 208,418 206,748 208,418
The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive dividends as W9 B A A RS R E IR 9 B
declared from time to time and are entitled to one vote per share W B REAE AR S F R K & b e g i —
at meetings of the Company. All ordinary shares rank equally with Z LG 2 B B o TG A B AE AR
regard to the Company’s residual assets. TR EE LY = h SR o

90 YANGTZEKIANG GARMENT LIMITED RT3 &4 BA v
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(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

v)

(e)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 7% 3R R B A

For the year ended 3| March 2016 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

. CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS

(continued)

Nature and purpose of reserves
Exchange reserve

The exchange reserve comprises all foreign exchange differences
arising from the translation of the financial statements of operations
outside Hong Kong. The reserve is dealt with in accordance with the
accounting policy set out in note 1(u).

Investment revaluation reserve

The investment revaluation reserve comprises the cumulative net
change in the fair value of available-for-sale equity securities held at
the end of the reporting period and is dealt with in accordance with
the accounting policy set out in note 1(e).

The investment revaluation reserve is not available for distribution to
equity shareholders of the Company.

Land and buildings revaluation reserve

The land and buildings revaluation reserve has been set up and is
dealt with in accordance with the accounting policy adopted for land
and buildings set out in note 1(h).

The land and buildings revaluation reserve is not available for
distribution to equity shareholders of the Company.

Hedging reserve

The hedging reserve comprises the effective portion of the
cumulative net change in the fair value of hedging instruments used
in cash flow hedges pending subsequent recognition of the hedged
cash flow in accordance with the accounting policy adopted for
cash flow hedges in note 1(f).

Other reserve

Other reserve represents a statutory reserve fund. According to the
articles of association of the subsidiaries of the Group in the PRC,
the subsidiaries are required to transfer at least 10% of their net
profit, as determined in accordance with the PRC accounting rules
and regulations applicable to enterprises with foreign investment,
to the statutory reserve fund until the reserve balance reaches 50%
of the registered capital. The transfer to this reserve must be made
before distribution of a dividend.

Distributability of reserves

At 31 March 2016, the aggregate amount of reserves available for
distribution to equity shareholders of the Company, as calculated
under the provisions of section Part 6 of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, was $439,821,000 (2015: $439,537,000). After the end
of the reporting period, the directors recommended the payment of
a final dividend of $20,675,000 (2015: $6,202,000) in respect of the
year ended 31 March 2016 (note 25(b)). This dividend has not been
recognised as a liability at the end of the reporting period.

YANGTZEKIANG GARMENT LIMITED Rir &4 B A |

BE-T-AFZA=T—HLFE WETH)
25, JBEA ~ gk Ml B B B (40)

() ik 48 009 BEET B 08
(i) BE S faff

ME St foft M 60 45 TR 4 8 7 ik 0 O 365 2 W S
R A A 2 B A BE S 2 o XA IR
B RE 1 (u) BT 3 2 & R R B

(ii) B T A

BOE A A A RS B A
FieHE R 7 N B R At R E) > MR
O B RE 1 (e) Y & wH UK BE B -

BB FAG A A AT S IR T A R IR £
ZEPND

(iii) T Jib B B 5 AL A% ik

AN R B oL R M AL A o Y
AR M R M BT SR O B A () &
wl BUR L

o+ R A T B AN A N T IR T AR A H
e AN -

(iv) B fif i

ESRU T RON=gPiTD e E S RUNDE S RLL
THZ AR 0N R whiF ) -
M 5% B 4 I 5 368 0 A7 5 i AR AR 4 A0S Y 3
1(F) Bl 4 U 5 B 00 BT BOR T A RR o

(v) A fif g

(e)

A fok 45 % 15 E f A 2 4 o AR SR R
B W N Rl 2 AL AR AN o B R A
AR R IE RN E R H g
wE AR B A 78 o 2 AR 2 B AD10% & ik
JE ol 2 4 o OB A SRR B BRI A
Z50% 7 1k o [ 5 faff 445 T 1 435 6 JHAE O3
Fic Je 2 iAo e

wf 43 2 Uk 4

MRoB—NE=ZA=Z+—H BEFEL
ARG S 6B EE A > A ) Al A IR T AR
)RR A ON Y f A AR 8H 5 439,821,000
JG (& — L4 1 439,537,00070) - i &4k
BHfZ EHERREHE _FT-AF=
H =+ —H Ik 4F E K M 1t 820,675,000
JG (& — F 4 ¢ 6,202,00070) (M
25(b)) o sZMLE AL H MR IERR 5 B -
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25.

92

CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS
(continued)

Capital management

The Group’s primary objectives when managing capital are to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern,
so that it can continue to provide returns for shareholders and
benefits for other stakeholders, by pricing products and services
commensurately with the level of risk and by securing access to
finance at a reasonable cost.

The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages its capital
structure to maintain a balance between the higher shareholders
returns that might be possible with higher levels of borrowings and
the advantages and security afforded by a sound capital position,
and makes adjustments to the capital structure in light of changes in
economic conditions.

The Group monitors its capital structure on the basis of a net
debt-to-adjusted-capital ratio. For this purpose the Group defines
net debt as total debt (which includes interest-bearing loans and
borrowings) plus unaccrued proposed dividends less cash and cash
equivalents (which excluded pledged deposits). Adjusted capital
comprises all components of equity, less unaccrued proposed
dividends.

During the current financial year, the Group’s strategy, which was
unchanged from the previous financial year, was to maintain the
net debt-to-adjusted-capital ratio at a reasonable level. In order to
maintain or adjust the ratio, the Group may adjust the amount of
dividends paid to shareholders, issue new shares, return capital to
shareholders, raise new debt financing or sell assets to reduce debt.

As at 31 March 2016 and 2015, neither the Company nor any of its
subsidiaries had outstanding interest-bearing loans and borrowings.

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries are subject to
externally imposed capital requirements.

. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR

VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Exposure to credit, liquidity and currency risks arises in the normal
course of the Group’s business. The Group is also exposed
to equity price risk arising from its equity investment in other
entities. The Group’s exposure to these risks and the financial risk
management policies and practices used by the Group to manage
these risks are described below.
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For the year ended 3| March 2016 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

26. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR

(b)

VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(continued)

Credit risk

The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to cash at bank and
trade and other receivables. Management has a credit policy in
place and the exposures to these credit risks are monitored on an
ongoing basis.

In respect of cash at bank, the Group only places deposits with
major financial institutions which management believes are of high
credit rating.

In respect of trade and other receivables, individual credit
evaluations are performed on all customers requiring credit over a
certain amount and for all new customers. These evaluations focus
on the customer’s past history of making payments when due and
current ability to pay, and take into account information specific to
the customer as well as pertaining to the economic environment in
which the customer operates. Trade receivables are due between O
to 120 days from the date of billing. Normally, the Group does not
obtain collateral from customers.

The Group’s exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by
the individual characteristics of each customer and significant
concentrations of credit risk primarily arise when the Group has
significant exposure to individual customers. The default risk of
the industry and country in which customers operate also has an
influence on credit risk but to a lesser extent. At the end of the
reporting period, the Group has a certain concentration of credit risk
as 17.1% (2015: 10.5%) and 47.2% (2015: 38.7%) of the total trade
debtors was due from the Group’s largest customer and the five
largest customers respectively within the manufacture and sale of
garments and textiles segment.

Further quantitative disclosures in respect of the Group’s exposure
to credit risk arising from trade and other receivables are set out in
note 19.

Liquidity risk

Individual operating entities within the Group are responsible for their
own cash management including the short term investment of cash
surpluses. The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor its current and
expected liquidity requirements to ensure that it maintains sufficient
reserves of cash and readily realisable marketable securities and
adequate committed lines of funding from major financial institutions
to meet its liquidity requirements in the short and longer term.

BRE-F-AF=A=TALTE GUETH)
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(b)

i (%)

A 55 [ B0 45 8 L B T AR SR AT A ek B e
WA e R B A R Wi o R B B AR R
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26. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR

(c)

94

VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(continued)

Liquidity risk (continued)

The following table details the remaining contractual maturities at
the end of the reporting period of the Group’s derivative financial
instruments, which are based on contractual undiscounted cash
flows (including interest payments computed using contractual rates
or, if floating, based on rates current at the end of the reporting
period) and the earliest date the Group can be required to pay.

26. B BB P A T H 2 A
A (&)
(b)?‘ﬁiibﬁﬁ:ﬁl‘ﬁ(@) .................................

TRV AEEMWAESM T HERGA A
M1 B S AR o BT ARIR R B A £ R AL
HOHE &8 (BF%a ARG 2 A
B g E R > BN & E B E R R
at ) B A G2 M B RLUASCAT A o

2016 2015
i S i1k
Contractual ~ Contractual Contractual Contractual
undiscounted  undiscounted undiscounted  undiscounted
cash inflow  cash outflow cashinflow — cash outflow
GEARY T AR ] SHLRMEN  AHLRERR
RAHA RAH HaHA Hadih
within 1 year  within 1 year Carrying amount ~within 1 year ~ within 1 year  Carrying amount
orondemand orondemand  on31March  orondemand  orondemand  on 31 March
RERZA-H RER=1-H
~EARKER  ~FHREER Rl —ENGEER EREEER a3
$000 $000 $000 $000 §000 §'000
i i i 7 7 7
Derivative financial instruments held FHERSHEINTR
as cash flow hedging ingtruments ZiEERIA 26,120 (26,803 (671) 6,805 (6,271) 531

Save as the above, the Group’s financial liabilities are repayable
within one year or on demand and the contractual undiscounted
cash outflow of these financial liabilities equals their carrying values
on the consolidated statement of financial position.

Currency risk

The Group is exposed to currency risk primarily through sales
and purchases which give rise to receivables, payables and
cash balances that are denominated in a currency other than the
functional currency of the operations to which the transactions
relate. The currencies giving rise to this risk are primarily Euros,
United States dollars (“USD”), Pounds Sterling, Hong Kong dollars
(*HKD”) and Renminbi.

As the HKD is pegged to the USD, the Group does not expect
any significant movements in the USD/HKD exchange rate.
However, management acknowledges that the Group is exposed to
fluctuations in the exchange rates for other currencies.

(c)
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26. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR

(i)

VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(continued)

Currency risk (continued)
Forecast transactions

At any point in time the Group aims to effectively hedge its
estimated foreign currency exposure in respect of committed future
sales, excluding those transactions denominated in USD which are,
or are expected to be, entered into by operations with a functional
currency of HKD. Such transactions are currently not hedged under
the Group’s foreign currency risk management strategy as the
Group currently considers the risk of movements in exchange rates
between the HKD and the USD to be insignificant.

The Group uses forward exchange contracts to hedge its currency
risk and classifies these as cash flow hedges. All of the forward
exchange contracts have maturities of less than one year after the
end of the reporting period. At 31 March 2016, the Group had
forward exchange contracts hedging forecast transactions with
a net fair value of $671,000 (liabilities) (2015: $531,000 (assets)),
recognised as derivative financial instruments (see notes 19 and 21).

Exposure to currency risk

The following table details the Group’s exposure at the end of the
reporting period to currency risk arising from recognised assets
or liabilities denominated in a currency other than the functional
currency of the entity to which they relate. For presentation
purposes, the amounts of the exposure are shown in Hong Kong
dollars, translated using the spot rate at the year end date.

BHE—

T—RF=ZA= + Eiifﬂ%ﬁmﬁ)

26. 85 W A B ek T L 2 AP

(i)

i (%)

T LB ()
WA =5

AL E B A AT e e R RE A Ak L R B E
1E W H 1% 85 B 2 Ad w14 TE JEL B K 78 4 47 3
Mo HMTEER BB L EENFT L2
25 o A AN EEE DA 2 JCHEHE 2 38 5 5 T
MFTSL L ETCHFMEZ S - IREARLEE 2
AN T = R = T i Rl
o WA H AT A #sn i E It 2 M
H) T %6 3k 8 &\ B Sl S EE K o

A 4 [ A s B 40 BE A &) DL H B
JE B Sl A 2 o R B T R e TR
HSMNES MBI H AR HE—FR o
R_FE—ANE=ZA=1+—H  &AEEAL
B E I G 1 E WA E S K 2 A EE

14 5671,0000C (A fE) (- F— A4
531,0007C (&&E)) » CHER B ESBT

B (2B WME19K&21) -

(ii) RZ2Z B

TRFIIAEERE T B TRZ 2B
B > % % B R B Y R BT B 2 R D
HENABEUZEBIIEE RS Z B
FHE T ZE A o A B R ORI 2 Y 1R R
A H Z RV RE R B B AR RS2 A -

Exposure to foreign currencies (expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

RZZWRR (D)
2016 2015
SRRk “E-1F

United Hong United Hong

Pounds  States Kong Pounds  States Kong

Sterling Dollars  Euros Renminbi Dollars  Sterling  Dollars ~ Euros Renminbi Dollars

k% *x BER OARW  #¥x  XE Ex BE OARW  ¥x

$000  $'000  $000  $'000  $'000 $'000 §000  §000  §000  §000

it Tx Tx Fx Fxr Tx Txr Fr Fr  Tr

Trade and other receivables JE VBB A e 3k 4 72,59 15956 3N 3 16 84561 7438 147 3

Cash and cash equivalents Iﬁi&fﬁ% FEY 3,311 93,499 252 492 9 5556 71,351 330 57,509 97

Trade and other payables e R o B L £ 5 (488) (34,180) (1,086)  (776) - (457) (33679 (495  (594) =
Amounts due from B AR

group companies 11,257 931 - - 41,893 8598 8758 - - 23,685
Net exposure arising RECHDEER

from recognised assets AREMRRAETR
and liabilities 14,084 132,846 15122 4,521 41,988 13,713 130,991 7273 57,062 23,785
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26.

96

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(continued)

Currency risk (continued)
Sensitivity analysis

The following table indicates the instantaneous change in the
Group’s profit/loss after tax (and retained profits) that would arise if
foreign exchange rates to which the Group has significant exposure
at the end of the reporting period had changed at that date,
assuming all other risk variables remained constant. In this respect,
it is assumed that the pegged rate between the HKD and the USD
would be materially unaffected by any changes in movement in
value of the USD against other currencies.

26. W %5 M,

HH BT H2Z AT

(c) B2 M B (%)
(iii) R JE S Hr

T RBN R A 2 BRBAR R R (&
PR ) PR &5 R HE 3R 2 B e A
Bl (A 52 [ ZE0 A M 58 ) /R A2 B K JE B ) T
A RV S ) > 7 O R e H: A JE B A oA
5 o LT E > AL B EBITHEEITT L
i 22 MR A O & K] 3 O S A B T 2 MR
AF: ] 5 B) 52 3 TR R B -

2015
R AR ZE—RAE
(Decrease)/
Increase/ increase in
Increase/ (decrease) Increase/ loss after tax
(decrease) in profit after (decrease) and (increase)/
in foreign tax and in foreign decrease in
exchange rates retained profits exchange rates retained profits
W B 3 ) R BREB D)
R i A 88 B Ak B8 i
& L 7H/(F ) B/ (%) BE2 £ TH/(T BK) (K )/
% $'000 % $'000
ARl T A T
Pounds Sterling Yegk 10% 1,176 10% (1,145)
(10)% (1,176) (10)% 1,145
Euros i 2 10% 1,263 10% (607)
(10)% (1,263) (10)% 607
Renminbi N 8% 302 8% (3,812)
(8)% (302) (8)% 3,812
Hong Kong Dollars T 8% 2,519 8% (1,427)
(8)% (2,519) (8)% 1,427

Results of the analysis as presented in the above table represent
an aggregation of the instantaneous effects on each of the Group
entities’ profit/loss after tax and equity measured in the respective
functional currencies, translated into HKD at the exchange rate
ruling at the end of the reporting period for presentation purposes.
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(a)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 7% 3R R B A

For the year ended 3| March 2016 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(continued)

Currency risk (continued)
Sensitivity analysis (continued)

The sensitivity analysis assumes that the change in foreign
exchange rates had been applied to re-measure those financial
instruments held by the Group which expose the Group to currency
risk at the end of the reporting period, including inter-company
payables and receivables within the Group which are denominated
in a currency other than the functional currencies of the lender or the
borrower. The analysis excludes differences that would result from
the translation of the financial statements of foreign operations into
the Group’s presentation currency. The analysis is performed on the
same basis for 2015.

Equity price risk

The Group is exposed to equity price changes arising from equity
investments classified as available-for-sale equity securities (see
note 17).

The listed investments held in the available-for-sale portfolio have
been chosen based on their longer term growth potential and are
monitored regularly for performance against expectations.

The Group’s unquoted investments are held for long term strategic
purposes. Their performance is assessed at least bi-annually
against performance of similar listed entities, based on the limited
information available to the Group, together with an assessment of
their relevance to the Group’s long term strategic plans.

At 31 March 2016, it is estimated that an increase/decrease
of 10% (2015: 10%) in the relevant stock market index (for
listed investments), with all other variables held constant, would
have increased/decreased the Group’s other components of
consolidated equity as follows:

26.

(c)

HE"T—XR&E=A= ‘f’ Eiiﬁ(ﬁ/{féﬁﬂv

b 5 e Y I e i TR 2 A
e i (%1)

T LB ()

(iii) 8 RJE B (F7)

(d)

TR BE 23 A T M s HE e 5 Bl e ) R ik A
B H A A5 B A S T 3 A L M A < R
TH > A% A AR A 2 ] ) R A R S
JRE WSO R T - % S IE DA O R O 9 2 g

BN B RHE - 0 M A B AR B i Ak
SE TS R B R R A 4R B B R R P
BHWER - N TIU T —HFEZM

/] A v A AT o
JB £ B, B3
A 45 B AR 37 Bl e A T AR o B R R 4

G2 EE TR (2HME17) -

FEEBE M EREASPRHAN LT E
FBCE R IR H R RIE S > A
B H R BRI -

AL B BT A JF T A T A R R s
Mgk o HRBFMED —FEATWK - JT
MRS LT B 2 KRB AR E TR
il R B Al 355 A S A = 0 R e 1 B
Y 98 15 B

AN —NE=ZHA=+—H  EB&ZHEih
BMAERE A MARMKRETE (EA#&
%) A8 EEE N, WP 10% (L FE AR
10%) > fhsF & n, W ALY 5% E
HE 55 H At A BCER 43 a0

2016 2015
—F— e Sl
Effect on other Effect on other
components components
of equity of equity
B 23 B
A AL B FAth 4 1%
i YA oz e
% $’000 % $’000
ipd 4 Fr ZEaiA TC
Change in relevant stock T B 75 5 T
market index: 1EH T
Increase s m 10% 255 10% 921
Decrease 58 (10)% (255) (10)% (921)
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26. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR

(e)

98

VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(continued)

Equity price risk (continued)

The sensitivity analysis indicates the instantaneous change in other
components of consolidated equity that would arise assuming that
the changes in the stock market index had occurred at the end of
the reporting period and had been applied to re-measure those
financial instruments held by the Group which expose the Group
to equity price risk at the end of the reporting period. It is assumed
that the fair values of the Group’s equity investments would change
in accordance with the historical correlation with the relevant
stock market index, that none of the Group’s listed available-for-
sale investments would be considered impaired as a result of the
decrease in the relevant stock market index, and that all other
variables remain constant. The analysis is performed on the same
basis for 2015.

Fair value measurement
Financial instruments measured at fair value
Fair value hierarchy

The following table presents the fair value of the Group’s financial
instruments measured at the end of the reporting period on a
recurring basis, categorised into the three-level fair value hierarchy
as defined in HKFRS 13, Fair value measurement.

Fair value measurements

26. S 5 I 4 P e 4k T 2 AP

(e)
)

i (%)

b A M, B (290)

U 2 B R > RS M # B T
RAE H EAE - I TR R R R A
BT 2 i TH > ez THASARE
B A &5 5 ZEUR 3 BCE LB > AR 2
fo7 o BE A 0 JFL At KL BEER 0 A B 2 A BRIV IR
B o MBSO SR I R 1 2 NP E(E
o AR 45 B i 4R B JEE IS AR L B AR T A
B o oAt S BUOR RN B R AR Y Wl 3 i
B b T B N & T s O BR T B AR
fes A - RO T B — FUAR AR ]
LT -

AV
B 2T A1 2 T
A0 R 4

TR EA L E A R A H AT
EEFF RS M TH AR ik B )

eI H135% [ 4\ 1B (H At 4 P R
O VAR E R SR o JH 2 = R AR

Fair value measurements

Fair value at as at 31 March 2016 Fair value at as at 31 March 2015
31 March 2016 categorised into 31 March 2015 categorised into
RZZ-A4 REF—HF
EVES | REB-AEZH 1N ZA=1-1 REZ-HE=A=1—H
PR TSR A CNTEE ATEEFENEA
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
H-H BN BEHN £-45 #Z4 B
$000 $000 $000 $000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
i i i i i T i I
Recurring fair value BERATEHR
measurements ilE
Assets: B
- Listed available-for-sale — Wk E b
equity securities %% 3,395 3,395 - - 4,258 4,258 = =
- Derivative financial ~FHERENE
instruments held as cash HWIAZ
flow hedging instruments fEeMIE - - - - 531 - 531 -
Liabilities: il
- Derivative financial -RAERERE
instruments held as cash HWIRZ
flow hedging instruments fikeR TR (671) - (671) - - - - -
During the years ended 31 March 2016 and 2015, there were no BEZX - AREL_F-HE=H=+—

transfers between Level 1 and Level 2 or transfers into or out of
Level 3. The Group’s policy is to recognise transfers between levels
of fair value hierarchy as at the end of the reporting period in which
they occur.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 3| March 2016 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR

VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(continued)

Fair value measurement (continued)
Financial instruments measured at fair value (continued)

Valuation technique and inputs used in Level 2 fair value
measurements

The fair value of forward foreign exchange contracts in Level 2 are
marked to market by discounting the contractual forward price and
deducting the forward rate at the end of the reporting period. The
discount rate used is derived from the prevailing market interest rate
at the end of the reporting period.

Fair value of financial instruments carried at other than fair value

The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial instruments carried
at cost or amortised cost are not materially different from their fair
values as at 31 March 2016 and 2015.

. COMMITMENTS

Capital commitments outstanding at 31 March 2016 not provided
for in the consolidated financial statements were as follows:

26

BE-F~F=A=t—BLEE KETH)

BV B e 4 T B2 AP
fei i ()

(ii)

AP ek i ()
AT it 50 £ i T ()

R I ) 22 V- (6 1 it 22 A9 1 16 77 72
VLR €3

A A 2 PR A (58 =880 TG B
A RUE BB R EE B AR BT B
WIMESR o REBI AT 2 BUR 455 A BT 45
A R E

UHA TR L &8 TR 2T
FEERF-AFERL_F-HFE=A

= — H DABAS SRR S A 51 MR Y <
TR 2 R B B - (e e R 5 o

B FE—=ARE=ZA=+—H  IREEHES
PARS fRRAE B < BARIEIT -

2016 2015
RN ZR— AR
$°000 $’000
T For
The Group’s share of the KL B G EE AN
capital commitments BRI
of joint ventures:
Contracted for SR 34 2,846
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27. COMMITMENTS (continued) 27768 (8 .
(b) At 31 March 2016, the total future minimum lease payments in  (b) A ~E —NE=ZH=+—H - WA f#
respect of properties under non-cancellable operating leases are R B 288 0B A AU 76 H 4R BB AT 1Y ik 2
payable as follows: GENCE DG R/ N
2016 2015
ZE N SER—n AE
$°000 $’000
T T T
The Group’s operating 7K IE [F] 19 55 B
lease commitments: R
Within 1 year —EPLA 1,889 2,266
After 1 year but within 2 years — AR AH AR DAY 833 1,225
After 2 years but within 5 years T AF & B 1 4R DA IR 1,725 2,859
After 5 years TLAFEAR - 81
4,447 6,431
The Group is the lessee in respect of a number of properties held AEE BB RKESHETF Y ERN K
under operating leases. The leases typically run for an initial period AN o B E — RV A —EANE (2
of one to six years (2015: one to six years), with an option to renew FE—FAE  — BN o I A SRR
the lease upon expiry when all terms are renegotiated. None of the B A B AW JE R BT A G 3K 2 AT R R
leases includes contingent rentals. E o FEHESGHT AEERAHRS -
28. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY 28. BB AN L2 KRR Y
....... TRANS A CTIONS o eeeeeeeeeeeeee e
In addition to the transactions and balances disclosed elsewhere % 7 AN B 75 i 36 o Ath b 7 B P 2 2 38 5 M
in these financial statements, the Group entered into the following EEERAN > AREBFT L UL N E KBS A LK
material related party transactions: VR
(a) Transactions with YGM Trading Limited and its subsidiaries (a) BYGME S ARAG LW E A
(“YGMT Group”) (TYGMTHH ) 2R 5
2016 2015
ZE N —E TR
$°000 $’000
T T T
Purchases of garment products i B AK 7 12 613
Sales of garment products B B B AK 2 20,361 27,307
Rental income received and O Wi S M i iy S FH 4 i i
receivable 6,967 7,112
Management fee received and . Wi e e i A 0 2
receivable 804 804
Building management fee received Wi M i e 5 4 S
and receivable 288 294
Note: Vg3
YGMT Group is related to the Group as certain directors and their associates are YCMTHEME 2 & T #H H R K E2Z B8 AL F A
collectively the controlling shareholders of both YGMT Group and the Group. YGMTEE [ K A4 [ 2 ¥ I B OR o [RUG - YGMT4EH

T AL B AL .
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28. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY

(c)

(@)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1 7% 3R & MY o

For the year ended 3| March 2016 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BE_Z—RF=HA=1+—HILFE (L &)

28. BB A L2 ARG (4)

TRANSACTIONS (continued)

Transactions with other related parties

(b) JCAbBHREA 42 3 5

2016 2015
SR N —E A
Note $°000 $°000
Jiogia T T
Wuxi YGM Textile Co., Ltd. e ) I VRS 4 # Bk
A (i)

Purchases of raw materials =Y 11,183 18,852

Note: Mzt

() Wuxi YGM Textile Co., Ltd. is a wholly owned subsidiary of Wuxi No. 1 () EHGRIBEGHRARARSAREH L HE
Cotton Investment Co., Ltd., a joint venture of the Group. MY — WG A RA A 2 285 IS

YN

Balances due from/(to) related companies, joint ventures and an (c) MEMC, (WA} WUEAF - SBEER B

associate: BRG] XHE :

2016 2015

SR AN —E A

Note $’000 $'000
it TFi T

Amount due from YGMT Group JEUCYGMTEE [ 3k JH 2,319 3,149

Amount due to YGMT Group JEAHYGMT4E [ 28 (10) (49)

Amount due to WTCO07 Holdings JEATWTCO7 Holdings Pte Ltd.

Pte Ltd. A () (346) (329)

Amount due to Allied Textiles JRE AT 385 B BB 477 4k A B ) #K0E

Co., Ltd. (if) (13) (18)

Amount due from Wuxi YGM JRE WA 486 55 1= VRS %5 & 4 A PRA 7

Textile Co., Ltd. IR (i) - 105
Amount due from Guangdong Xi JRE ST JE SRS A A R A R

Mu Industrial Company Limited A 17 17
Amount due to Guangdong Xi JOEASF Jo BTG I S BR A A

Mu Industrial Company Limited IR (209) (220)

Notes: Mt a#

()  WTCO7 Holdings Pte Ltd. is related to the Group as it is held by a director ()  WTCO7 Holdings Pte Ltd.H 4< 4 [ — {i # &
of the Group. B4 - Ik > WTCO7 Holdings Pte Ltd. % 4

EHZBEANL -

(i) Alied Texties Co., Ltd. and Wuxi YGM Textile Co., Ltd. are wholly owned (i) B e L Ak A PR A D B 8 R VRS R A AR
subsidiaries of Wuxi No.1 Cotton Investment Co., Ltd., a joint venture of the [RAFABAERM SEMCEMY HLER
Group. FRA R 2 4 HEA WG A W o

Transactions with key management personnel d FEEHABNRY

All members of key management personnel are the directors of the A ETEEHMANBYAALNRZES #

Company, and their emoluments is disclosed in note 7. HMEE R EE7EE -
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ANNUAL REPORT 2016 £ #§



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 7% 3R 2 MY =E

For the year ended 3| March 2016 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
HE-F-—AF=A=t—BLEE CUETH)

29.

(a)

(b)

102

ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES

The Group believes the following critical accounting policies
involve the most significant judgements and estimates used in the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements.

Write-down of inventories

The Group performs regular reviews of the carrying amounts of
inventories with reference to aged inventories analyses, projections
of expected future saleability of goods and, management experience
and judgment. Based on this review, a write-down of inventories
will be made when the estimated net realisable value of inventories
decline below their carrying amounts. Due to changes in customers’
preferences, actual saleability of goods may be different from
estimations and profit or loss in future accounting periods could be
affected by differences in these estimations. The write-down and
reversal of write-down of inventories are disclosed in note 18.

Impairment

The Group reviews the carrying amounts of the assets at the end
of each reporting period to determine whether there is objective
evidence of impairment. When indication of impairment is identified,
management assesses the differences between the carrying amount
and recoverable amount and makes provision for impairment
loss. Any change in the assumptions adopted in calculating the
recoverable amount would increase or decrease the provision for
impairment loss and affect the Group’s financial position.

Provision for impairment of trade debtors and other receivables is
assessed and made based on the management’s regular review of
ageing analysis and evaluation of collectibility. A considerable level of
judgement is exercised by management when assessing the credit
worthiness and past collection history of each individual customer.
Any increase or decrease in such provision would affect the Group’s
profit or loss in future years.

YANGTZEKIANG GARMENT LIMITED RT3 &4 BA v
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(a)

(b)

A5 A A 7R AR R A A ISR R LT
4 R B T B e s OR W % i T Y ) B
AL FF o

A7 50 39

ALEE 2 A7 BRI A > IR AR B Y
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WA
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29.

(@)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 7% 3R R B A

For the year ended 3| March 2016 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (continued)

Valuation of investment properties

The valuation of investment properties requires various assumptions
and factors relevant to the valuation. The Group engages
independent professional qualified valuers to conduct an annual
revaluation of the Group’s investment properties based on
assumptions agreed between the Group and the valuers prior to
adoption. The details of valuation of investment properties are
disclosed in note 12(b).

Provision for long service payments

As explained in note 24, the Group makes provision for lump sum
payments on cessation of employment in certain circumstances to
employees in both Hong Kong and the PRC. The payments due are
dependent on future events and recent payment experience may
not be indicative of future payments. Any increase or decrease in the
provision would affect the profit or loss in future years. The details of
long service payments are disclosed in note 24.

. IMMEDIATE AND ULTIMATE CONTROLLING

At 31 March 2016, the directors consider the immediate and
ultimate controlling party of the Group to be Chan Family Investment
Corporation Ltd, which is incorporated in the Cayman Islands.

YANGTZEKIANG GARMENT LIMITED Rir &4 B A |
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(c)

(d)

BE-F~F=A=t—BLEE KETH)

- Bk A B R At ()
&§%¥ﬁﬁ ........................................

B W 3 G (B PR T BLAG (B B I 45 JE R
B R 3R o AR AR [ T ST S AR Y
BRI - A PR A IR 45 A 42 [0 BEL A i 15
E )% RS B BRSO AT AR AT
fili o 35 W S A (R E 19 R BT RE1 2(b) BE R -

1 390 I 5 i 488 Al

B RE24 BT A > A SR B A % R R A K
B 1 g B e T 0T B IR A2 R T
ST — S A AR A o R IR &
9 S T R E A H AR 7 DL I JE 2 1 5 1
DL o M 2 AT ] 38 00 52 2B R AR 4F 2 2 4R
gt o 1= ) R B W A R B RE24 4 BR -

CEHAE R I P L

W oE—NE=HA=+—H> EFRLHR
2 Bk R AP T B Chan Family
Investment Corporation Ltd (A Bl € Bt 5
kST -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 7% 3R 2 MY =E

For the year ended 3| March 2016 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
HEZZT—R"F=A=1T—HIEFE (L&)

31. COMPANY - LEVEL STATEMENT OF

31. 2 v Jg i =2 W55 R UL 3%

....... FINANCIAL POSITION .
2016 2015
RN —E— A
Note $’000 $°000
Mt Fi Fc
Non-current assets I R W) %
Investment properties Evd <t/ E S ‘ 267,596 241,393
Other property, plant and HAbY) 2 ~ W E B sk M
equipment 82,390 85,293
349,986 326,686
Intangible assets HEEE 3,270 3,117
Investments in subsidiaries R Ja N i 4% 86,401 79,514
Interests in joint ventures S 230,818 230,818
Other financial assets HAth 45 fil & 4,250 7,052
______ 674,725 647,187
Current assets i W
Inventories & 42,396 45,114
Trade and other receivables JRE iz B R R L At JRE Wi 3k 136,840 164,351
Current tax recoverable Al g ] A HA B I 804 =
Cash and cash equivalents e LB EEEY 220,976 196,766
______ 401,016 406,231
Current liabilities HR U RER
Trade and other payables JRE ASH R 3 B Al JE A5F 3K 61,067 61,275
Current tax payable JE A5 A H B IH - 1,653
_______ 61,067 62,928
Net current assets wEEESEE 339,949 . 343,303
Total assets less current B A B O ) A
liabilities _..1,014,674 990,490
Non-current liabilities ki By £1 B
Provision for long service 1% IR 5 4 1 ff
payments 1,435 1,217
Deferred tax liabilities % SiE B IH A AE 13,718 14,420
_______ 15,153 15,637
NET ASSETS ¥ 999,521 974,853
CAPITAL AND RESERVES A B ol Al 25(a)
Share capital Ji A 208,418 208,418
Reserves it fh 791,103 766,435
TOTAL EQUITY i 2% 28 % 999,521 974,853

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 29
June 2016.

Chan Wing Fui, Peter
Chairman

Chan Wing Kee
Managing Director
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 7% 3R R B A

For the year ended 31 March 2016 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

EZT-ANFZA=TALFE KETH)

32. POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, NEW N.HKE_F-A¥=H=1+—HIL

STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED
BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR
ENDED 31 MARCH 2016

Up to the date of issue of these financial statements, the HKICPA
has issued a few amendments and new standards which are not
yet effective for the year ended 31 March 2016 and which have
not been adopted in these financial statements. These include the
following which may be relevant to the Group.

AR ARl 1 f’iikélaakﬁﬁ%”f
0 i T e PR T R M R 5 O

HEAMBHREZERZH > FEgaiin
GOHEGE THREE—ANFE A =+—
Lk 45 BE i R A 200G 1B T Rk HE ) - T A
A B R 3R R A PR A TE TR o AR R AR
LB ERMT -

Effective for
accounting periods

beginning on B 35 sk 390 IR
or after DALY
Annual improvements to HKFRSs 2012-2014 cycle | Z M B8k g HI 4 /& i it 1 January 2016 ZZ-A%E—A—H
(ZF—=ZFZF—WERY)
Amendments to HKAS 1, Disclosure initiative FiE Gt 19 (B3T) 1 January 2016 —“Z—-A¥E—-A—H
WEGTH
Amendments to HKFRS 11, Accounting for e O st R B 56115 (87T 1 January 2016 ZE-RE-J-H
acquisitions of interests in joint operations BALEEF G
Amendments to HKAS 16 and HKAS 38, Fl gt ENF16% RE R 1 January 2016 ZE-AF-J—H
Clarification of acceptable methods of ERIE38Y (B5]) > AR A
depreciation and amortisation HHEZ T2 B
HKFRS 15, Revenue from contracts with T 1 T T e 5 e ) 51 59 1 January 2018 “E-)\—-A—H
customers KR A
HKFRS 9, Financial instruments FBMTRE RS 2@ 1A 1 January 2018 ~“Z-NE—H—H
HKFRS 16, Leases TR E16% A E 1 January 2019 “E-fE-A—H

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of what the
impact of these amendments is expected to be in the period of
initial application. So far it has concluded that the adoption of them
is unlikely to have a significant impact on the consolidated financial
statements.

A4 [ B IE 7E FE Al bk E QB RT R E R
PR 30 T 6000 T E AR G B - R E AT A
1k > A4 R 7%3‘“!’952%"@@“*?%%?{5
S 5 i o 7 K
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GROUP PROPERTIES

L ES

Details of the major properties of the Group are as follows: AEMEEYEGHFEIWT ¢

Location L Existing use ik Term of lease A4
Major properties held for investment

BlEREN G LEYE

The whole building i Commercial [HES Medium-term AL A
22 - 24 Tai Yau Street JURE R

San Po Kong, Kowloon KA 22 - 24%;

Hong Kong A1

Units 10C3, 10D and 10E1 on level 10 CiE YN Commercial [HES Medium-term R )
Junyao International Plaza g T A B [

No. 789 Zhaojiabang Road B FE IA T899k

Xuhui District, Shanghai City 1) 5 B W e

The People’s Republic of China % 7510C3, 10D KX 10ET

Unit 1505 - 1508 on level 15 CiE YN Commercial [HES Medium-term R )
Fudan Science Park Tower (Block 11) L T A

No. 11 Guotai Road B 7% B 115

Yangpu District, Shanghai City HERERKE

The People’s Republic of China
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FIVE-YEAR SUMMARY

T

M=

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(AT A1)
2012 2013 2014 2015 2016
“E - ZF-ZF ZF-NE ZF-HE “R-ANE
$000 $000 $000 $°000 $°000
T T T T Fi
Results X5
Revenue A 1,750,673 1,333,068 1,074,132 1,133,864 984,434
Profit/(loss) from operations mEw A (ER) 82,233 39,273 (8,499 7,666 23,305
Finance costs il A (5,799) (4,398) (3,860) (3,671) (3,002)
Share of losses of associates A £ 7 ) i 4R (192) (398) (220) (355) -
Share of profits/(losses) of MEAG A8 2w A (BR)
joint ventures 7,522 (4,821) 18,515 (20,356) (28,391)
Impairment loss on plant ik 7 Dl o A ok 1 s 4R
and equipment - (8,504) (6,935) - (4,656)
Net valuation gains on B A i i v A
investment properties 33,392 44,905 19,257 6,964 20,759
Profit/(loss) before taxation bR B A A, ) 117,156 66,057 18,258 (9,752) 8,015
Income tax XCE) (12,823) (10,311) (7,059) (13,856) (3,658)
Profit/(loss) for the year AAEERRA O #H) 104,333 55,746 11,199 (23,608) 4,357
Attributable to: 35 B %
Equity shareholders of /NGNS RS N
the Company 103,159 53,082 11,920 (23,241) 4,413
Non-controlling interests I 2 B e AR 4 1,174 2,664 (721) (367) (56)
Profit/(loss) for the year AMERA OER) 104,333 55,746 11,199 (23,608) 4,357
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FIVE-YEAR SUMMARY

FFEHE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(B TE)

2012 2013 2014 2015 2016
SE-CE CF-ZFE CF-NE CFE-RF ZZ-NE
$°000 $000 $°000 $°000 $°000
+c +c +c T Fr
Assets and liabilities % &A1
Investment properties, other BEWE- L - K5
property, plant and equipment P& DTN
and leasehold land 272,789 303,109 305,346 310,387 317,370
Intangible assets T B 3,117 3,117 3,117 3,117 3,270
Interests in associates T 0 ) HE £ 16 2,096 1,912 = =
Interests in joint ventures HEDENS 611,270 610,118 638,810 600,683 541,095
Prepayment for other property, Hibwk - E K
plant and equipment A AT K 789 870 = = =
Other financial assets oA 4 il 8,079 7,069 7,381 7,052 4,250
Deferred tax assets i SE B B 11,328 2,454 2,403 1,501 1,687
Net current assets T B 362,702 375,052 363,221 375,093 388,952
Total assets less current B B B AR
liabilities 1,270,090 1,303,885 1,322,190 1,297,833 1,256,624
Non-current liabilities FinE A E (47,886) (31,958) (34,898) (37,992) (38,965)
Net assets BRGH 1,222,204 1,271,927 1,287,292 1,259,841 1,217,659
Share capital (&N 208,418 208,418 208,418 208,418 208,418
Reserves 74 1,010,707 1,055,602 1,071,598 1,044,243 1,002,557
Total equity attributable to equity | HE k& i A 2 w) B HE
shareholders of the Company P AHE 45 40 3 1,219,125 1,264,020 1,280,016 1,252,661 1,210,975
Non-controlling interests I 125 W P TR 22 3,079 7,907 7,276 7,180 6,684
Total equity HiE 25 S 1,222,204 1,271,927 1,287,292 1,259,841 1,217,659
Per share basis )8 Y4 A
Basic and diluted earnings/(loss) | 4 i A K # %
per share BH/ (E#R) HK$0.49  HK$0.26  HK$0.06  HK$(0.11)  HK$0.02
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